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Introdution

INTRODUCTION

Italtel's commitment to innovation sets it apadrfr the competition. The company has consistenthlieg its
acquired technical know-how to drive progress iedemmunications and to provide high quality praduc
solutions and services which meet the particulaadeeof clients - whether operators, businessesublicp
administration bodies. In a sector known for exefmfast technological development, Italtel designs
innovative network architecture and network intpexability solutions and offers high added-valuastdtancy
services through unrivaled know-how, providing Bi@sis for successful partnerships with clients.

Enabling people and devices to communicate witlimits and fully integrating technologies, applicats and
networks. This is Italtel’s mission.

Italtel Group

Italtel is the leading player in the telecommurimmas market, with its technology deployed in maoymtries
across the globe. Italtel designs, develops andufaatures IP-based products and solutions for médsvand
new generation telecommunication services. The emyppitilises its network and system integrationacéy
to build open and flexible reliable infrastructurased on proprietary or third party technologi¢s.pbrtfolio
includes proprietary solutions and products, neltwemgineering and consultancy services and ICT getha
services and solutions, such as Unified Commurminag Collaboration, Telepresence, Cloud, SmarteSitind
Integrated Security.

Italtel maintains a close focus on innovation ameests in ongoing research and development. Overf e
leading telecommunications operators globally éated among the client base. In Italy, the compeng
leading partner both for large companies and fer Bublic Administration in creating new generatiéh
networks and in setting up their client communmaservices.

In addition to its leadership position on the Halimarket, Italtel has established a strong presebwmad: the
company operates in France, Germany, Spain, Gréetand, the United Arab Emirates and in Latin Aiceer
(Argentina, Brazil, Columbia and Peru).
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Key Financial Highlights

(thousands of Euro)

2012 2011

IFRS IFRS
Revenues 257,676 322,411
EBITDA @ 25,314 35,765
Margin % 9.8 11.09
EBIT @ (6,229) (134,983)
Margin % (2.4) (41.87)
Net loss (14,539) (150,666)
Margin % (5.6) (46.73)

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Capext® 23,260 27,730
Net Debt® 294,548 313,574
Shareholders’ Equity (52,307) (37,768)
NCE® 242,241 275,806
Adjusted NCE® 72,676 106,241
Cash flow from operating activities (6,198) (30,211)
Cash flow from investing activities (21,556) (25,889)
Cash flow from financial activities 35,320 16,248

(1) EBITDA comprises the operating result before ansation, depreciation and write-downs

(2) EBIT is the operating result

(3) Capex or capital expenditure is the sum of intalegémd tangible asset investments, excluding tfeetsffrom the finance lease on

the building in Castelletto

(4) Net Debt is reported in the Directors’ Report

(5) Net Capital Employed (NCE)

(6) Net Capital Employed (NCE), adjusted for Goodwill
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Information on Italtel S.p.A shareholders

Italtel S.p.A. is wholly-owned by Italtel Group S (the parent company), which in turn is held by:

Clayton Dubilier & Rice

Clayton Dubilier & Rice (holding of 48.77%, takirgcount of the ordinary Class "A" shar8s} a leading US
private equity company with a long tradition in timelustrial sector and manages closed funds onlfbeha
institutional investors.

Telecom ltalia

Telecom lItalia (holding of 19.37%, taking accoufitttee ordinary Class “A” share$) listed on the Italian
Stock Exchange, is a leading European industrialigr The group is now present abroad with a sicpuifi
initiative in Latin America.

Cisco Systems
Cisco Systems (holding of 18.40%, taking accounthefordinary class "A" share®) listed on the NYSE, is
the global leader in Internet networking. The comphas been present in Italy since 1994.

Capita Trustees Limited

Capita Trustees Limited, as Trustee of the Itdigiployees Benefits Trust (total holding of 10.81t%king
account of the ordinary Class "A" shar&3)is an English registered trust, exclusively essaleld in order to
hold and manage shares of Italtel Group S.p.Afuture employee share-based plans.

Cordusio Fiduciaria

Cordusio Fiduciaria (holding of 2.65%, taking acebaf the ordinary "A" shared)is a trust company of the
UniCredit Group, appointed to manage the shareebplms and the existing stock options of employaes
Directors of Italtel. The above-stated holdingsresent both the shares of employees and Director&x-
Directors), in addition to the treasury shareshef¢ompany.

0 The subscribed and paid-in share capital of Itadedup S.p.A., amounting to Euro 131,426,652 atdbewer 31, 2012 and reducing to
Euro 825,695 on March 27, 2013, is comprised 07@2,976 shares, of which 8,881,488 Class “A” sharekl as reported above and
8,881,488 Class “B” preference and convertibleahas per the By-laws. The shareholders Telecdia Rmance S.A., Cisco Systems
International BV and Cordusio Fiduciaria per Azidwid, in addition to the Class “A” shares in thergentages reported above, also
Class “B” shares as follows: Telecom ltalia: 4,885, Cisco Systems: 4,440,365 and Cordusio Fidagear Azioni: 758.
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Corporate Boards

Board of Directors (1)

Chairman
Umberto De lulio*

Chief Executive Officer
Stefano Pileri*

Directors
Giulio Agostini*
Roberto Cornettd
Stefano Carlin®
Ross lan Fowler
Brian Fukuhara
Paolo Leone
Salvatore Spiniell®*

Secretary to the Board of Directors
Nicold de’ Castiglioni

Board of Statutory Auditors®

Chairman
Marco Tani

Statutory Auditors
Marco Baccani
Carlo Delladio

Alternate members
Mauro laniro
Guido Paolucci

Independent Audit Firm

PriceWaterhouseCoopers S.p.A.

(1) Appointed on September 23, 2010 and until the $indders’ Meeting called for the approval of the 2@nnual Accounts.

(2) Appointed on December 21, 2012 and until the Strddelns’ Meeting called for the approval of the 2@%&thual Accounts.

(3) Appointed on April 21, 2011 and until the Shareleodd Meeting called for the approval of the 2012hAal Accounts.

(4) Appointed on December 21, 2012 and until the Strddelns’ Meeting called for the approval of the 2@#hual Accounts.

(5) Appointed on March 15, 2013 following the resigoaton November 16, 2012 of Director Giannini. Hd vémain in office, with
the entire Board, until the Shareholders’ Meetiatiec! for the approval of the 2012 Annual Accounts.

(*)  Independent Director

[6]
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In the section concerning considerations on th@gaoncern of the company of the 2011 Directorgddre
dated December 11, 2012, the Directors describedketail the significant features of the Debt Resgtiting
Agreement, drawn up as per Article 182 of the Baptay Law, highlighting a remaining element of urammty
concerning the approval of the Restructuring Agreetand the consequent recapitalisation of It&ltplA..

It is with great pleasure that, following the apmbof the Milan Court on February 26, 2013 anahdlin the
Companies Register on March 1, 2013, the agreemastfully executed. Thanks to the commitment of the
credit institutions and the industrial shareholddirsancial receivables of Italtel S.p.A. of a valof approx.
Euro 153 million were converted into equity instemts, resulting in the capital and financial rebaiag of the
Company.

The Shareholders’ Meetings previously called tocet® the agreement and approve the financing axistren
addition to their substantial disbursement in thants required by the Company, confirmed thatcti@ces
made by Directors in relation to the adoption @& going concern principle — which were directhatetl to the
restructuring process currently in progress — weasonable. The Italtel Group’s next challengéésdfore to
achieve the objectives of the 2012-2016 induspiiah which forms the basis of the Restructuringefgnent.

In relation to the actions taken concerning thdaw-amendments, Corporate Governance and the akdegt
of investment holdings, reference should be madeibsequent sections of the present report.

The reaching of this fundamentally important agreetrhas itself put us in a position to report om year just
concluded, which features the extensive procesgiomedl above and — with a vision which can agagufoon
business matters - the outlook for future yearbiwia highly complex marketplace.

The continued uncertainty throughout 2012 relatethé restructuring process impacted the Compamgislts,
with revenues of Euro 257.7 million compared tod&822.4 million in 2011 (reducing Euro 64.7 milljorThe
decrease relates to the protracted restructuringegs which, as noted, was only completed on Deeeliib,
2012. This resulted in some delays in industri@rafions and a significant part of revenues partgito 2012
(approx. Euro 18.6 million) could only be invoicerthe initial days of January 2013.

2012 EBITDA amounted to Euro 25.3 million compatedEuro 35.8 million in 2011 (reducing Euro 10.5
million).

The EBIT reports a loss of Euro 6.2 million, congzato an EBIT loss of Euro 135.0 million in the yioeis
year, which included a goodwill write-down of Eut80 million.

The loss for the year amounted to Euro 14.5 miltompared to a loss of Euro 150.7 million in thevious
year, which excluding the write-down of goodwill Béiro 130 million, improved by Euro 6.2 million.

The net debt at December 31, 2012 amounted to E24db million compared to Euro 313.6 million in 201
therefore reducing by Euro 19.1 million.

Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2012 was ivegfdr Euro 52.3 million compared to a negativerdcu
37.8 million in 2011, decreasing therefore by Eidcs million.

At the date of the present report and subsequehetpreviously described conversion, the sharenslequity
amounts to Euro 100.7 million with the net debt anting to Euro 191.5 million.

For a more extensive analysis of the income statgrbalance sheet and financial position, referestoaild be
made to the specific section of this report.
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Basis of presentation

The financial statements of Italtel S.p.A. at Debem31, 2012 were prepared in accordance withrat&mal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in force atdéber 31, 2012, issued by the International Actogn
Standard Board (IASB) and adopted by European Urggalations.

IFRS refers to all international reporting standaathd all interpretations issued by the Internatidfinancial
Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC).

These standards were applied from January 1, 2008hee first annual accounts according to thesedstals
concerned fiscal 2008 with comparison to 2007, autalished in 2009.

The financial statements of Italtel S.p.A. inclubtle balance sheet — financial position, the incetatement, the
comprehensive income statement, the cash flownstait the statement of changes in shareholderstyegpd
the explanatory notes, which contains a list of glgmificant accounting principles adopted and otha@es in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS.

The financial statements of Italtel S.p.A. fulfilet requirement for a true and correct presentatiaghe balance
sheet, financial position, income statement and dsvs of the company, in compliance with the gahe
principles of going concern, the accruals concegtable presentation, correct classification, fisdglon of
offsetting and comparability of information.



Directors’ Report

Market overview and position

Market overview

The global Telecommunications market value in 2062 USD 2,154 billion, slightly increasing (+0.7%1)
2011. The principal market segments are: Serviced aquipment for Enterprise networks, Public
telecommunication network infrastructure, Operasggtems, Fixed network services, Mobile networkises
and Mobile devices.

Market performances were greatly uneven acrosgahénents, with significant contractions on 20Eers in
places - for example the European market lost @@%tal volumes of USD 403 billion while the Asiararket
saw continued growth (+7.0%) for total volumes &M 496 billion in 2012. Latin America, which togeth
with Europe represents a leading market for Italteported very slight growth compared to 2011 76@0),
following however a number of years of significgnbwth.

In the network infrastructure market, which for sotime has been the largest for Italtel, businegsrirated
significantly as all major telecommunication operathave significantly reduced network expenditumd those
which have invested focused on mobile access aaddsser extent fixed access - areas in whiclherweitaltel
nor Cisco have a significant presence. The valudisfmarket in 2012 was USD 77 billion, reducing% on
2011. In Europe the contraction was 14.5% and tmlL&merica 4.5%.

The reduction in network expenditure by telecomroation operators has been an established trendferoav
number of years. The reasons behind the reductsnamplex and difficult to resolve. The fundaméntf this
sector - which for many years presented high margiare changing. Telecommunication service ptefiels
for many years revolved around access, essentiatipgdband access and fees, on voice traffic andthio
mobile services, on SMS’s. Competition, extensizeta regulation and the replacement of the mooéitpble
services with similar mainly free internet-basedviees by the Over The Top (OTT) providers haveesely
eroded the telecommunications profitability fundamads, while significantly improving those of th&U's.

Particular attention is focused on the Italian regriwvhere ltaltel derives approx. 60% of its revesurhe total
value of this market was Euro 39 billion (approXS 50 billion), reducing 3.5% on 2011, with a seraf
significant reductions seen also in the precediegry. 3.4% 2011 vs 2010 and 3% 2010 vs 2009. In the
telecommunications markets, the fixed direct s@wvieport volumes of Euro 13.5 billion, reducin§%, with
mobile network services reporting volumes of Eu€o5lbillion, decreasing 4.7%, with systems and ieafs
reporting Euro 5.1 billion and finally network iafstructures reporting Euro 3.7 billion. From a isselewpoint,

the key issues for fixed and mobile network serwice2012 were:

1. The continued decrease of fixed access to 21.6omillnes, reducing 2% on 2011, with incumbent
operators holding a 64% market share and the sutidtaonfirmation of the 6 operators which share
the market: Telecom ltalia, Wind, Vodafone, FastwEbcali and BT.

2. Broadband access numbers are worrying at 13.6omillip only 1.1% on 2011 and with a reduction in
the incumbent market share to 51%.

3. Stagnating mobile access numbers, which as notedohaome time been a saturated market in Italy,
with 97.3 million SIM’s, 4.5 million of which belaging to Mobile Virtual Operators. In 2012, growth
evaporated from the second half of the year -ria With the general domestic economic performance.
Four operators share the mobile market: TIM, VodafdNind and H3G.

4. The significant increase in mobile broadband acedssh has reached, thanks to the runaway success
of smartphones, 31 million (one-third of total mekines) - growing 17%. Their success continues to
drive overall traffic growth which reached 251 AB:{a Bytes, i.e. millions of Giga Bytes) — increasi
30% on 2011. This figure is significant as it destoates that against the decrease in the value of
mobile services of 4.7%, network capacity increassd 30% and therefore requires increased
investment, particularly in frequency acquisitiondaan increase in radio coverage which has seen
increasing numbers of radio base stations in hagtsitly areas.
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The Information Technology and digital media maskagperate alongside the telecommunications marketse
three markets have seen increased cross-pollindéading to the creation of an integrated Digitelrket. The
overall digital market in Italy in 2012 was wortluf® 68 billion, slightly contracting on 2011 (-1.8% he IT
market continued to slow, which together with theetommunications market, has been on the slidenfory
years, reporting profits of Euro 17 billion in 20¢:2% on 2011).

A focus on the overall digital market will be cratifor the positioning of Italtel in the coming ysaThis
market is today driven by mobility, and in part&ulby smartphones and tablets, applications, coraed
digital advertising on the internet. In fact, thenlamentals of the emerging Digital Economy areaipid
growth throughout the world. The following numb@revide some indicators of this development in 2Q1L2
billion social network users, increasing 19% on204.5 billion mobile phone SIM’s, with 3.2 billiomsers, up
9% on 2011, 0.7 billion smartphones sold in 20h2réasing 42%, 1.5 billion mobile broadband usgps41%,
2.5 hillion internet users, increasing 11% andIf§n@ billion network connected devices, expectedrultiply
to 15 billion in 2015, with Machine To Machines ahe Internet of things having become a reality.

Domestic market (Telecommunications Operators)

The telecommunications ICT and Information Techgglmarket, as outlined above, in Italy in 2012 \again
impacted by the international crisis which begar?@08. The ongoing challenging economic environment
developing market dynamics and the cross-over lmtwie telecommunications and internet marketdtessu
in a further contraction in investments by operatand an increasing focus on a reduction of the TGaal
Cost Ownership) of infrastructure, with a significdmpact on unitary prices and margins.

In 2012, revenues amounted to Euro 89.6 milliotha Telecom Italia Domestic Operations segmentEumd
58.8 million in the OLO (Other Licensed Operatassyment, contracting respectively therefore by 20fb by
18% on 2011. This trend is due both to the incréasenpetition and investment focused on mobile comepts
which impacted the traditional segments in whicttdéd operates and the significantly reduced dejivapacity
which affected Italtel throughout 2012 due to thstricted liquidity available to support our Systktegration
activities.

The commercial development activities however affsis reduction in revenues through the acquisibbnew
Clients, the launching of new projects in innovatareas, particularly in the Cloud Computing segirend the
sale of new products for IP interconnection betwaeerator networks.

In addition to the consolidation of the traditiomakas (IP networks, VolP networks, IT system irgégn), in
2012 the following innovative projects were implartes:

= |P-IP interconnection for the Telecom ltalia netlwander the AGCOM recommendations: delivery
based on new proprietary productde{Match for inter-functionality between the various VolP
domains present

= Quality of Service for the operator networks: defiwbased on new proprietary products (Routing &
Policy Servers) to guarantee operators the sartriinents for on-going control of service quality

= Next Generation Data Center (NGDC): deliveagdd on the provision of high quality Cloud sersice
(laas, SaaS, PaaS)

= development of IT projects both in the system irdéign approach and in the development of further
functionality on the proprietary products (i-NEMeiIMan)

= professional services to support the IP netwonksfiarmation processes:



Directors’ Report

Tools supporting network operations
Solution Design, Integration & Testing and Netwadransformation
Technical Support, Consultancy & Trend Analysis

Networks and services for HD video: developmentisting of network solutions with inter-
operability between multi technology domains

O O O O

Enterprise and Public Sector Market

As outlined in 2012, with the continuation of thar&pean economic crisis, the Eurozone has seew-apeed
performance:

= [taly, with Spain, Portugal, Belgium, Greece andldnd slid backwards
= The other countries progressed, although at a slpage than previously

In Italy, overall IT expenditure in 2012 therefahmpped 4%, with a mix which favoured IT servicenpmnents
rather than the traditional hardware and softwarapgonents.

The bank sector was confirmed the largest in teofsxpenditure, although contracting 1.9%. The Rubl
Administrations were impacted further by the worsgreconomy and the spending reviews of the setaifd
of 2012: Central Administration IT expenditure redd by 10.8% with local public administration spieqgd
contracting 8.0%.

Therefore revenues amounted to Euro 45.0 milli@1.0% on 2011): this result was impacted greatgshé
decrease in Industry, Finance & Retail sector simgndvhich dropped by Euro 11.7 million. In thisseathe
liquidity crisis experienced throughout 2012 — fbe duration of the refinancing phase - had a #efimpact
on the delivery capacity, tender participation ama credibility required for appropriate market itioging. In
certain cases clients and partners aware of tlading difficulties within Italtel looked to alteaitive providers
for their projects.

However, on reaching the refinancing agreementiengroper and timely announcement to the market, t
situation with clients and the number of opportiesitreturned to pre-existing levels, providing dindte
indication for a recovery in the present year.

EMEA Market

Despite the continuation of the economic crisis #r@reduction in investments by the major opestialtel
achieved at consolidated level on the EMEA mankeétd12 revenues of Euro 45.0 million, an incred$%6 on
2011; this result was achieved through the salproprietary products, in addition to the networkegration
activities for IP solutions, Video, Data Centersl &imified Communication.

Italtel consolidated and improved its positioningthm the principal telecommunication groups such a
Vodafone, France Telecom Group and Telefonica:

= Vodafone: Germany — creation of the new Databagggresion of the national VolP network through the
launching of a seventh VolP node and an increaHe inter-connections with other operators.

= France Telecom Group:

0 France — completion of the network inclusion tdststhe new i-SSW release with its operating
system; launching of a seventh VolP node; incrgpie overall capacity of the VolP network
in order to offer Large Enterprise connectivity\segs;

0 Spain — Orange awarded lItaltel the SIP busineskittg solution for the connection of the IP
exchanges of large enterprises and the public astmation;
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" Telefonica: Spain — Global Solution awarded Italked contract for the engineering and implementatio
of a Unified Communication & Collaboration system three Data Centers, respectively in Europe, the
US and APAC, which manages 70,000 clients andbdio&bone IP network.

Other important objectives in 2012 included:
=  Spain — Generalita di Catalunya developed the Datster solution offered by Italtel;
= Belgium — Belgacom added to its VolP network tbevitaltel operating system;

= Poland — TK Telecom was acquired as a new ltalieht with an offer of new i-MCS products on a
virtualised platform, components of the IMS axetMatch-Msuite;

= Middle East — DU awarded lItaltel a significant erdor IP interconnection solutions with other
operators;

= North Africa — Maroc Telecom acquired a Italtel [Posolution to interconnect the Contact Centers
with IP technology.

Finally, we highlight that in 2012 Italtel Spaircedved the GOLD partner certification from Cisco.

LATAM Market

In 2012 Italtel in the LATAM region maintained ip®sition as a key player on the ICT market andresad the
principal Global System Integrators of Cisco prddun Brazil, Argentina, Peru and Colombia. Unfortely,
the overall financial situation of ltaltel createlifficulties in the sourcing of Cisco materials asdrvices,
resulting in a significant drop in revenues in 20&2oup revenues amounted to Euro 93.0 millionucaty
18% on 2011.

In Brazil, the principal client TIM Brasil, as asut of the Italtel procurement problems suspera¢atge part
of expenditure: this impacted both revenues andjmswr

In Columbia and Peru, thanks to the access to tedlit lines the impact from the difficulties iawcing Cisco
materials and services was mitigated however.

Development and positioning of the Italtel offer

Despite the market, financial and operating diffies outlined, 2012 for Italtel was a very impartgear for
the development and focusing of the offer in linhwthe evolution of the telecommunications market.

Amid growing competition with the OTT’s (Over Thef), telecommunication operators have re-launchred o
fixed and mobile broadband and high-speed broadbaatlled services and have sought all avenueshposi
monetise the quality of their network service, joattrly suited for video services (streaming,
videoconferences) and for transactional servicesyr(ent, identity management). Service quality, when
guaranteed by network interconnection, justifies t8ending Party Network Pays” principle i.e. paymnéor

the sending of traffic, a significant change frdme tet neutrality best effort concept which to dae governed
the operation of the internet and replaced th&rale” concept in this environment.

An in-depth understanding of these shifts sincel2fds driven Italtel to completely refresh its proidportfolio
with four highly innovative new product families:

= The IMCS systemlfaltel Multimedia Communication Sujtevhich includes all functions of the IMS
3GPP release 9 standard, with release 10 currentfievelopment. In addition to these functions,
iIMCS updates and innovates all NGN functions (far transit and interconnection networks), which
have for some time been a feature of$loét Switches which Italtel is a European market leader.

= The Netmatchsystem, acting as a Session Border Controlleririterconnection between the IP
networks and managing the distribution of the Sighal (Netmatch § as Border Gateway for
interconnection between IP networks with centrdlisentrol of the SIP signaNgetmatch B Media
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Gateway for interconnection between IP networks @aditional TDM (Time Division Multiplexing
networks) and finally as the Diameter Routing Sefae the operation of the Diameter signal utilised
by new generation 4G/LTENgtmatch ) mobile networks.

= The WeGatesystem which is a new generation Access Gatewaydém) for the fixed high speed
broadband networks with copper/fiber hybrid acogdber To The Curb) in VDSL technology and
with fiber access (Fiber To The Home) in GPON textbgy.

= The iQAC system (ltaltel Quality Access Controllerhich operates on the agent software principle
enables a simulation of client behaviour on completworks and precisely measures the perceived
end to end quality and is coupled with the findifgem traditional records based on parameters
directly readable within the network elements.

The IMS system (IP Multimedia System) is the brafnthe new generation networks. The system enables
analysis of the connection requests, the messagksha transactions originating from terminals Epdlones,
Smartphones, Video Communication Terminals, PCabldts, POS’s, Sensors etc.), authorising them and
directing them within the network towards the resfad terminals or applications. The IMS platforis stated,

is of significant strategic importance for telecoomitation operators as on the one hand it enalbles t
transformation of the traditional networks into nganeration “ALL IP” networks and on the other emtes the
value of the networks, facilitating the provisiofirnany innovative services. The transformation tef fixed
access network into a NGAN (Next Generation Acdéssvork) will take place with the development otass
technologies which begins with FTTC (Fiber To Thebfand evolves towards FTTH (Fiber To The Home). |
both phases the traditional voice services, th@lsupentary services and the emerging services trigitzanks

to the IMS platform, to the IP protocol (that oétinternet). The transformation of the mobile netwowards

the LTE (Long Term Evolution) architecture will ®lplace quickly. Also in this architecture the ttiathal
voice and messaging (SMS) services will migrattheolP protocol and therefore the IMS platform widlve an
essential role in the migration and transformatbrthe mobile network. The Operators which utilisgth the
fixed network and the mobile network will certainghift naturally, even if not immediately, towards
convergent system, or rather one capable of magasgnvices on two types of networks (which therefill
curtail the role of the access networks).

The IMS global market in 2012 exceeded USD 1,00ianiand will grow at a rate of at least 10% ovee
coming years. This amount does not include thetioad! telephone to VolP and VOLTE telephone migna
services featuring, as previously stated, New Gaimer fixed and mobile networks and therefore thpeeted
return is even greater.

With the Broadband Networks, and to a greater éxtéth the new generation networks and High Speed
Broadband Networks, in addition to the natural texdbgy replacement process, based on like-fordigerices
offered, many new services may be provided:

= VolP and VoLTE (voice on the IP protocol on fixendamobile networks)

= Messaging and Instant Messaging

= HD Videocommunication and Videoconferencing acaogdb the emerging HDVC standard
= Downloading and Streaming of Multimedia content @ity Video, Books, News)

= Transactions (Payments, Authorization, Identity sigement, ...)

= In the future Monitoring and Setting (importanttive “Internet of things”)

As highlighted, today the totality of these sergica number of which still in the embryonic stages offered
thanks to intelligence (Web & Aps) external to tieéeecommunication networks or above them (OTT). The
central feature of the OTT offer is the lack ofirperability between platforms which, on the othand, is the
principal feature of the telecommunication netwsekvices.

The intelligent networks’ focus, of which IMS is aentral pillar, is to maintain the majority of thalue
internally, creating a large part of the aboveestadervices internally and offering to the OTT &ifaces and
“service basics” which enable a simpler and moregréul development of further important applicasoand
the delivery of multimedia content.
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The position of Italtel within the IMS technology &n integral part of the new Industrial Plan anevhich we
will dedicate an important part of our Research Bedelopment. It is expected that with over 30€eezchers
with extensive technical knowledge, particularlysiftware, state of the art development can baechout of
the IMS systems and the network interconnectioriesys. We are involved in an on-going fashion in the
development of international standards of the fpaicinternational certification groups and coopiera with
these bodies will increase in the coming months.

The architecture of our system is comprised offtlewing elements:

= -MCS (ITALTEL Multimedia Communication Su)teprincipally comprising the Control Layer —
Interrogating / Serving / Emergency Call Sessiomt@ Function (I/S/E-CSCF) which ensures the
addressing of the Application Server, in line wttile services subscribed and described as triggers o
the user profile and creating, in addition, sigadhptation functionality for terminals; the Service
Layer can provide the following services: a) Multidia Telephony (MMTEL): services defined by
the VolIP profile for any user type; -b) Conferemgimultimedia conference services to the VolP
user; -c) Lawful Interception: support serviceghe intercepting and tracing under applicable legal
interception regulations, in line also with the nestwork and additional services, such as for
example the interception of HD Voice; and finallprh the Border Layer for the signal management
functions of the border elements for the intercatioa of the IP networks with the other Breakout
Gateway Control Function (BGCF) networks, with thimer traditional Media Gateway Control
Function and Signalling Gateway Function (MGCF &@MWF) networks and with the H.248 access
networks (IM-SSF and AGCF/PES).

= |-RPS (ITALTEL Routing & Policy Server), such as tHe Resource Broker and DNS/ENUM
servers. For this latter functionality i-RPS actsaadataless network which utilises the DB i-TD%ias
repository.

= |-TDS for the Data Layer with HSS: the DataBas&estdhe control and service profile. It is invoked
by the CSCF for authentication and call setup anthb Application Server for downloading of the
service profile. It is available in a compact smotand distributed on the Unified Data Convergence
(UDC) model within the SDM architecture.

= i-NEM, as the Neutral Element Manager of the Solutior as a FCAPS operating and mediation
element towards superior systems (OSS).

The second pillar of the development strategy alftdt products is th&letmatchsystem, in its S, B and M
versions, which is the basis of the new telecomgatiin network interconnection strategy in the dgwament
towards “All IP” networks. This product, which ir022 had fully matured it functions, was launchedtlos
operator networks and can operate under a singtevaae and software platform:

= to ensure the orderly and profitable transformafiom traditional networks in TDM protocol to the
IP networks and from the mobile 2G/3G networksh® LTE networks (and also “All IP” networks),

= to ensure interoperability between VolP and VoLEE/ges and high definition video communication
services between the various IP networks,

= to implement the Session Border Controllercfions on the NNI interphase between operator
networks ensuring QoS, trans-codification functjolfs (NAT) addressing transformation functions,
Session Data Recogeneration functions for the necessary taxatimetions of the sending of traffic
and security and network decoupling functions,

=  to guarantee quality of service to the intarmxction between OTT’s and telecommunication opesat
offering packet inspection and charging (monetisgtfunctions of the high quality traffic sent dret
broadband and high speed broadband networks afptbeators and finally to provide a programming
interface to ensure that the interconnection agchite is managed in an optimised manner in the
various application contexts (Software Defined Netsg: SDN),

= to be used in the corporate networks to manlhgdP PBX signal, to carry out Media Termination
Functions to decouple the conduct and servicedadlai between corporate networks from those
necessary for the SIP trunking functions of therafwe networks which connect the corporate network,

= to allow, thanks to an effective implementataf the operational interface, the insertion ia gystem
in the network in the simplest, quickest and mastitive manner also by operators not particularly
expert in the field,
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= to scale between a low number of contempomaheeactive sessions to a maximum of 50,000
sessions typical of the large operator networké wie possibility, in addition, to implement smalle
size solutions in “lite” virtualised versions, hedtas a software version in Client Data Centers.

A further unique aspect of Italtel solutions comsethe “centralised control” approach of the irdennection
networks which allows a differentiation between thest effort” interconnections which therefore lvgibntinue

to transfer the majority of Internet data from thgaranteed quality interconnections. This architectnsures
the option to utilise on simple Border Gatewaietfnatch B the IP interconnection and Media Gateways
(Netmatch M for the TDM inter-connection with centralised ¢ah functions implemented in the iIMCS system
(BGCF: Border Gateway Control Functions, MGCF: MedGateway Control Functions and IBCF:
Interconnection Border Control Function) in ordercentrally coordinate and control the addressihtgaific
flows according to the required QoS and the loadingditions of the network or the possibility tontml
networks with true Session Border Controllers comdeal through the Diameter protocol of the Routing a
Policy functions implemented in the iRPS system.

This centralised approach to the control of conmiggtfunctions is increasingly successful and ayihg the
future basis for the Software Defined Networks.

The value of the global SBC systems market in 284&eded USD 300 million and will grow at a rateab
least 20% over the coming years. Very recentlyniaeket leader, Acme Packet, with which Italtel fmsmany
years acted as a Value Added Reseller, was acqiarddSD 1.3 billion by the US Software Company €ea
indicating the significant development potentiattié segment.

Italtel, finally, significantly renewed in 2012 itatalogue also in relation to IT technologies;aducing a new
style for the provision of services based on-den@idud Computing) supply. In fact the proposedigoh can
be implemented also in a Cloud/XaaS environmentNaxt Generation Data Center infrastructure. The
virtualisation technology for real time communicatiservices provides Telecommunication Operatoth wi
further operating cost containment advantages atabkshes a development path compatible with therging
service provision models to our Clients. Anothegngficant innovation feature of Italtel's Researahd
Development concerns the adoption of “agile” opetamethodologies, in particular SCRUM, which can b
applied to the full spectrum of products. The tiams in fact began in June 2011 and was extendedaf
minimum of one year to all personnel involved ie tthesign, development, integration and validatibow
Products. Thanks to this significant alteratiorttef work model, which involves the entire Compdisitel can
respond extremely effectively to the changing neddbe market, based on the complexity of projeitis level
of innovation which this requires and any accelegabr slowing factors, according to the businesgqgmance
of Clients.

The significant development of the offer portfolim 2012 described above concerns the range ofelltalt
proprietary products.

A further incisive development took place and caungis to evolve within the offer of professionaléegs, by
which services are provided by specialised CompetdDenters within Italtel, providing highly spedad
know-how (demonstrated by a number of importanttiGeations), Test Plant where it is possible tettand
consolidate the configurations for a speedy inolusdf the solutions in the client networks and oft®are
Tools which enhance and complete the standard nsykéems integrated by ltaltel.

As described in detail in the comments concernirggtelecommunications market, a significant prapaorof
operator investment has focused on the developuofetite new generation mobile networks. In this regrk
Italtel, in addition to the development of the IM8d the VOLTE functionalities described in detdibae, will
position itself as a full player in the integratiamd transformation of mobile networks within anll“/”
environment. The highly developed know-how involwedbecoming a pioneer in the transformation offtked
networks according to the “All IP” paradigm drives today to establish this position also on the itaob
networks.

In addition, according to that laid down in 201hke¢ tcapacity of Italtel in the OSS fields was enlegindor
telecommunication operators, of the high definitidcleoconference networks which improve the funiand
architecture of the Unified Communication & Collagtion networks and finally in the Data Centerdiivhere
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in 2012 at least two solutions of great significameere implemented, i.e. the Italy Cloud Data Ceatel the
implementation of the Data Center for the Italiamm.

Therefore, in addition to the traditional and wedtablished IP Networking Competence Centers, éblers
have been added or enhanced, specifically:

The “Mobile Network Competence Center” where, tlgloua multivendor approach, Italtel has
integrated important modules of the core networtk ahthe packet network of the mobile broadband
networks. The principal systems we integrate alee EPC (Evolved Packet Core) the PCRF (Policy
Control and Routing Function) the IMS/VOLTE (Voi¢gver LTE), the HSS data repository, the
charging system and the related OSS’s, the Wi-gliesys for the telecommunication operators and in
the future the “Small Cells” which will form the &ia of the new coverage strategy in the 4G era, the
management of the Diameter protocol which will ifutin the LTE mobile networks the same role
which the SS7 signal carried out for many yearshenTDM networks and finally the functions and
applications for Deep Packet Inspection (DPI).

The “OSS Competence Center” has been, together thigHP Networking Center, a long-standing
Competence Center for Italtel. In 2012 it was egierly renewed and refocused, bringing to the
market capacity in all areas of the eTOM model Wwhii the reference point for telecommunication
operators. Tools development and the integratiomafket standard components are managed by
Italtel within the Assurance, Provisioning, InvemntoMediation and Security areas and, more recently
within the Business Intelligence and Data Warehaysinvironments.

The “Data Center Competence Center” where, withmudtivendor approach, Italtel integrates and
demonstrates its Test Plant, the capacity to imptenall of the Data Center infrastructures, the
Computing, Storage (EMC and NETAPP) and Networkistguctures and the Virtualisation

environments with particular reference to VMware &rchestration, such as for example CORDYS.

The “Collaboration & Video Competence Center” wheaaiso through a multivendor approach, Italtel
integrates and demonstrates its Test Plant, IP R&¥orks in various technologies, with a particular
emphasis on CISCO technologies, both traditional @foud oriented, such as the new and most
recently sold HCS suite, together with CISCO, tdelanica Global Solutions. In addition to the
integration function of the IP PBX networks, the @D certification was recently awarded by
MICROSOFT for the integration of the Lync productd, the family of products for messaging
(EXCHANGE), of the products for the developmenttad Social Enterprises (SHAREPOINT), which
is added to the significant know-how already essabd for the CISCO suite WEBEX SOCIAL.
Finally the most advanced centre of expertise faitdl within the “Collaboration & Video
Competence Center” is within the Video HD segmenmhere the capacity to integrate the
TELEPRESENCE CISCO solutions of the various rangég, POLYCOM solutions and the
availability of integration and transcoding functioestablished within the Italtel IMCS aNétmatch
products (which was officially certified with LYN@Gf MICROSOFT) have established Italtel as the
best system integrator on the Italian market.

In summary, 2012 was a crucial year in which Itattede a sure and determined step forward in eskain its
market positioning, innovating and enriching itstfaio of proprietary products with:

The iIMCS (taltel Multimedia Communication Sujtsystem,

The Netmatch system,

The WeGate system with the new generation Accesev@y (modem),
The iQAC (taltel Quality Access Controll@isystem,

and innovating, in a multivendor approach, the fpba of professional services with the creation of
Competence Centers:
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= The traditional IP networking Competence Center
= The ‘Mobile Network Competence Ceriter

= The 'OSS Competence Ceriter

= The ‘Data Center Competence Ceriter

= The ‘Collaboration & Video Competence Ceriter

These important advances in quality allow us tkltothe future with optimism, confident in the @nds from
the correct execution of the Industrial Plan.

Development and Innovation

European projects

In 2012 Italtel carried out industrial research aleyelopment activity within collaborative Europeaiojects
under the Seventh Framework Programme of the Earopgnion in the areas of ICT (Information &
Communication Technologies) and Security.

The IP (Integrating Project) activities ANIKETOSrtmued in the year together with 16 internatiopattners,

for the drawing up and creating on a prototypellefan ICT platform for the composition of service

The IP (Integrating Project) MobileCloud projectigities began, together with 17 international pars, for the
architectural development of the mobile networkotlgh the virtualisation of core network functiotiak
according to Cloud Computing paradigms.

In November 2012 Italtel presented a proposal basethe SEC 2013 Programme of the Seventh Framework
Programme within the Security area called SAFFCc8ty Against Forest Fire over Regional areas)tfa
creation of an integrated system to manage largt swrisis situations, which can facilitate the hexege of
communications, coordination, control and informatibetween the various parties involved in handtimg
event.

Subsidised loans and grants for Development and lmvation

In 2012 Italtel S.p.A. income in this regard tothlepprox. Euro 873 thousand, of which Euro 746 $hod
concerning Research projects capitalised in previ@ars. Grants amounted to Euro 1,965 thousarits #tiro
6,234 thousand of subsidised loans were receivid. dbove stated incentives were based on the fiolipw
domestic and international regulations:

= Rotating Funds - Ministry of University and Resdarmssistance Fund, established by Law
297/99 and previous.

= Rotating Fund - Ministry for Economic Developmergchnological Innovation Fund, established
by Law 46/82 (Article 14).

= Enacting Regulation of the Fund for CompetitivitydaDevelopment, which financed three major
areas of Industrial Innovation Technology: Enerdficiency, Sustainable Mobility and Made in
Italy, Ministry for Economic Development decreesMidrch and April 2008.

= Enacting Regulation of the European CommissiorherSeventh Framework Programme.

In relation to national projects begun and carmed in previous years, in 2012 the second levelisténal
inspection for the PNGN project was carried outwveitsuccessful outcome.

In June 2012 the SURE project activities conclu@gtira Wideband Detection for Risk Management in e-
health), a project financed by the Lombardy Regiod developed in collaboration with universitiesl asther
Lombardy businesses.
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The PA-IMS (Access Platform — IP Multimedia Subsys} project, whose activities concluded in 2009,
attained in the meeting of June 1, 2012 the fipgraval of the MISE Technical Committee for teclugital
innovation.

In 2012 the preliminary activities continued, unidiken by INVITALIA, on the Telecom ltalia & Italtel
Programme Contract, previously suspended by theiskiynof Economic Development due to a lack of
financing in a non-eligible area (North) and remtetewith a SOUTHERN focus.

Finally, the CAMP project (Context Aware Mobilitya@@form), part of the “Sustainable Mobility” initiizes of
the 2015 Industry programme, developed over theetiear period 2009-2011 and with ltaltel as dealér of
13 industrial partners and universities, saw thectission of the experimental development activifieslune
2012.

In 2012 Italtel S.p.A. was particularly active imetpresentation of projects in response to natiandlregional
tenders.

Within the PON 2007-2013, two projects presentedithitel S.p.A. were awarded grants within the Micr
District and Nano System environment (ENERGETICchr®logies for energy and energy efficiency and
HIPPOCRATES: Development of Micro and Nano-techg@e and Advanced Systems for the Protection of
Health) under the tender for the creation and/oreftment of “Technological Districts and PubliavRte
Laboratories — SOUTH".

In response to the tender, the pre-selection phase passed and the executive project is currerglggb
prepared subsequent to the feasibility study pregder the new Public-Private partnerships (SI-L8brvice
Innovation Network Laboratory).

Also in the PON 2007-2013, responding to the “Sn@Gities and Communities” notice, Italtel presentedr
project ideas: OVERGRID (in the Smart Grid envir@mnt), SmartFSE - Electronic Health Form (in the Bma
Health environment, through the Micro and Nano &yst District), ITINERIS (in the Smart Mobility
environment) and HERMES (in the Smart Mobility eoviment).

The OVERGRID and Smart-FSE project ideas passegriselection phase; on the request of the Minfsir
Universities and Research the ideas were combini¢ld ethers presented within the same environments,
resulting in the creation of two executive projecespectively called i-NEXT (in the Smart Mobiliand Smart
Grid environments) and Cluster OSDH SmartFSE-Stiymethe Smart Health environment). In Octobed 20
both executive projects were awarded grants.

In the PON 2007-2013 — “National Technology Clustemvironment Italtel was included in the propiasitfor
the National Energy Cluster called ENERCLUSTER Jatmirating in the creation of one of the four potge
called “Smart Secondary Substation” and coordindte&NEL- Distribution. The project focused on tBmart
Grid theme and concerns the ICT development ofraeny stations.

Finally, also within the PON 2007-2013 environmeéntresponse to the “Smart Cities” national tendidtel
was involved in the drawing up of eight projectadeconcerning various themes: within the Regiorau8ty
environment (Secure-GEOssLIFE-SmartS), in the Heaitvironment (Prevention Citadel), in the Transpod
mobility environment (SUSTAIN and Marconi), in tf&mart Grids environment (Lampedusa Smile), in the
Sustainable Architecture environment (SIGMA), ire tAging of society environment (Aging and Cognitive
Deterioration) and in the Cloud Computing enviromt@ecision Theatre). Italtel was the leading partthree

of the above stated initiatives.

In the regional environment, Italtel participatedthe Lombardy Region and Ministry for Universitiaad
Research tender for combined presentations withlgleascope projects (ICT environment), Energhepolis
(Energy environments renewable and sustainableuress) the ICT District in Health (ICT environment
health sector) and Milano Digitale (ICT environnjefithese combinations were approved in July 201Pran
aggregated in the “ENERGY” Energhepolis Cluster anthe “SMART COMMUNITIES” Cluster (Igeascope,
Milano Digitale and the Health ICT District). Théave-stated clusters will receive future finan@apport
following the issue of specific Tenders.

Within the Regional Contract Programme - Sicily Reg Italtel presented the “Carini Project: Futiméernet
Innovation Lab” which establishes for the creatmitwo Competence Centres “WSN Competence Centre”
"(Wireless Sensor Networks Competence Centre, W8Cand the “NGN Competence Centre” "(Next
Generation Networks Competence Centre, NGN-CdC).

[18]
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In 2012, public funds were again insufficient t@gart the tax break mechanism on costs incurredef®earch
and development.

The financial situation of Italtel S.p.A. and itensequent credit rating rendered the company ibéigor
disbursement by the credit institutions supporsabsidised financing and the relative grants.

The Directors consider that with the capitalisatimeviously outlined and the outlook of the Compathe
credit system may reassess the company and grardrédit rating necessary to attain the loans aadtg
resoundingly approved by the respective Ministries.

Corporate governance and social responsibility

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Italtel S.p.A., in officatil the approval of the financial statementettember 31,
2012, is comprised of nine Directors.

In accordance with the Restructuring Agreement,Bkaordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Italtel .B.pof
March 15, 2013 adopted a new version of the By-lavkéch establishes, among other issues, a humber of
amendments to the composition and the functioninthe@ Board of Directors. However, under the trangi
clause of the new By-laws, the functioning of theaBl of Directors will continue to be consideredi@nthe
corresponding provisions of the pre-existing Bydamtil the conclusion of mandate of the currerdu8lo

During the year, the Directors of Italtel S.p.A. tnfieequently and in compliance with the legal ang-&w
obligations to examine the matters submitted feirtattention.

Four independent directors, both executive (culyetiie Chief Executive Officer) and non-executivéth a
wide range of skills and experience, sit on therBs®f Directors of Italtel S.p.A..

Remuneration of Directors and Statutory Auditors of ltaltel S.p.A.

The remuneration devolving to Directors and to @&taty Auditors of Italtel S.p.A. for the dischargéoffice is
as follows:

(thousands of Euro)

2012 2011
Directors® 1,012 1,061
Statutory Auditors 77 76

(1) For the two Independent Directors (other than thaihan and the Chief Executive Officer), for theite as members of the Internal
consultative committees, set up by the parent comphe respective Shareholders’ Meetings appreveatal amount of Euro 50,000
(which will be paid by Italtel S.p.A.) for eachds year and for the duration of the mandate. Remation of Euro 8,000 was approved
for the external member (in addition to the Chaimjnaf the Supervisory Board as per Legislative Bec231/01 for each year of the
mandate. The 2012 amount includes also the remiimerfar the offices of Chairman and Chief Execati®fficer, as established by
the relevant contracts and including all emolumelet#olving to these parties for the above-statéidesf and/or Directorships in Group
companies, including the Parent Company.

Management and Control organisational model

In 2012 the Model adopted by the Company for thev@ntion of offences under Legislative Decree 23012
was updated. The sixth edition of the Model amended updated was submitted for the approval of the
Supervisory Board meeting of February 14, 2013witicbe approved by the Board of Directors of I&hiS.p.A.

in the initial months of 2013.

The updates concerned:

= Adjustment to the new categories of offences eistabdl by Legislative Decree No. 231/01 in
2011, regarding environmental offences;

[19]
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= Introduction of a new Special Part concerning emvinental offences;
= Company organisational adjustments.

The disclosure activities concerning Legislativeci2e No. 231/2001, the Ethics Code and the Manageamnel
Control Organisational model continued targetingspenel with roles of responsibility, in addition the
communication actions in particular focused on tipdathe content on the company intranet site dedit to
the Compliance Office activities.

The Compliance Office also conducted audits varifythe correct application of the Management andt©b
Organisational model as per Legislative Decree RR1/2001. In particular, the audit activity conceithe
correct application of the measures drawn up fer grevention of industrial and intellectual progenights
offences. The corporate departments impacted were:

= Marketing and Communications;
= Integration and development of IT systems.

The Audits highlighted general compliance of thatoal elements established in the various enaginogpcols
and the corrective actions, where identified, weagly completed in 2012 and in part scheduledfuit3.

The Compliance Officer of Italtel S.p.A. providedgming updates to the Supervisory Board (comprising
members of the Board of Directors, the Internal ilbhnager, the Compliance Office and the Manadehe
Italtel offices at Palermo-Carini) and to Seniorridgement concerning activities carried out foritheduction
and supervision of the Model.

The Supervisory Board also:

= approved, following consultation with the Board Bfrectors of Italtel S.p.A., the PR0O231-S025
“Prevention of environmental offences” protocol;

= verified of the results of the information receadvgeriodically in accordance with Protocol 231,
= approved the Compliance Office activities for 2@1@i the relative budget.

Conflict of Interest Regulation

In 2012 the monitoring of cases of conflict of mst of Italtel S.p.A. personnel with legal repreative powers
and specific roles continued.

Privacy and the Data Protection Document

Article 45, Paragraph 1, Letter D of Legislativedbee of February 9, 2012 No. 5 (Published in Suppl& No.
27 of The Official Gazette of February 9, 2012 88), repealed Articles 19 to 19.8 and 26 of AttaehtB of
Legislative Decree No. 196 of 2003, consequent®y dbligation to prepare and update the data piotect
document was removed.
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Human resources, the environment and quality assurece

Human resources

The employees of Italtel S.p.A. at December 31 .2280mbered 1,550, of which 15 overseas (at DeceBiber
2011 numbering 1,640, of which 14 overseas). Thw Imiees in the year numbered 11, (of which 1 ovasye
with 101 departures, of which 66 voluntary depasuaind 35 under leaving incentives. Of the towdicated, no
Senior Managers were hired while 4 internal proomiwere made. There were 23 departures in the gear
31/12/2012 Senior Managers in the workforce nunthéi@. Personnel are broken down into the following
departments: Development and Innovation (37%), iSer{29%), Commercial (26%) and Administration and
Staff (8%). Slightly less than half possessed Degrehile approx. 47% held Diplomas.

Personnel by Personnel by Personnel
category - 31/12/2012 department - 31/12/2012 by qualification - 31/12/2012
senior
managers g&a other
4% 8% 4%

managers d&i

N AN ™
IR |/ - r

26%

degree/_l diploma
employees \‘/

74% service
29%

Employees includes 3 blue-collar
workers.

Organisation

During the year the Company organisational moded developed both in the sales and in the operaticees,
also as a result of the drawing up of the new ItvéisPlan which was a significant event in 2012e&er
product differentiation, improvement in the netwodnd systems integration market approach, thelamwent
of expanding existing markets, improved cost coitigity and overall efficiency of the organisatiais a whole
were at the heart of the organisational redesigricels, establishing, on the one hand, a single &tadait
dedicated to Service Providers in the EMEA marked an the other the joining into a single ProducitU
(called Network & System Integration) of the praxdotwo respectively dedicated to the integrationthef
CISCO networks (Cisco & ICT Solutions) and the depment of the Professional and Integration Sewvice
(System Integration and Advances Professional 8esyi Global Account Managers assigned to the ipahc
clients worldwide were introduced within a busineevelopment model which will increasingly mirrdret
management processes of the Global Key Customers.

Industrial relations

With regard to Industrial Relations, no significawvents were reported in the first half of 2012Apnil, in fact,

the first year of the Extraordinary Temporary Ld&§-8cheme for reorganisation concluded for a maxmuf

170 workers, with rotations of 3 months for 45 eoyeles. The Scheme therefore continued for its skgear
(April 12, 2012 — April 11, 2013) — according toetlagreement signed on December 14, 2011 for the sam
number of employees. The Solidarity Contract was aised for 1,078 employees, with a reduction eragye
hours of 25%, also concluding on April 11, 2013orArJune the deterioration in the economic, prosgiacind
financial position in the initial months of 2012réed the company to report to the trade union dsgdions the
need to declare 500 surplus employees, citing ezl rior recourse also to instruments to structuratiuce
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departures at the end of the second year of theadxlinary Temporary Lay-off Scheme for reorgamisat
(April 2013), in accordance with the new Industidan 2012-2016. On November 22, 2012 a memorandum
was signed at the Ministry of Economic Developmeantvhich Italtel and the trade union organisatiagseed
upon, following an extensive review of the finahciaconomic and market situation of the Companyg, th
content of the Industrial Plan which provides fosignificant industrial cost restructuring in order ensure
delivery of the necessary company rescue objectipadticularly in relation to personnel costs, caiting
themselves however to identify socially sustainaakitions. To fully implement that agreed, on 12013 in
Assolombarda an operative agreement was signetjdition to a Solidarity Contract for 961 individsiawith

an average reduction in hours of 26%, also thrabghextension for a further year (until April 1012) of the
Extraordinary Temporary Lay-off Scheme for reorgation, which will involve a maximum of 270 workers
with rotations of 4 months for 60 individuals. Iddition to these two instruments, the opening oh@bility
procedure to structurally reduce redundancies \&spovided for. The ratification of the agreensewill take
place in March 2013 at the Ministry of Labour aratial Policy.

Training

In 2012 more than 15,000 hours of training werevigled with approximately 1,000 participations arsD 1
training events of various types. The training \atti focused on technological aspects concerninth ibe
maintenance and further addition of Cisco certifm@s and the development of skills required fomwne
partnerships (Microsoft, Juniper, AMDOCS). Virtisation (VMware) skills were also the subject oftirag, in
addition to updating on the new SAP functionalitis relation to innovative processes, the traintogirse
concerning the introduction of the AGILI-SCRUM metiologies was particularly significant, with the
objective to assist the new department in the ol of Software.

In relation to management, the training initiatiesthe PGMP (Program Management Professionaljlatdn

the experimentation of an individual coaching ses\and the participation of a number of qualifiedridgers at
training events of the ELIS Consortium (IT stragsgand support of Business) and of the Studio Asditio
(specialised workshops and the introduction of Reemanent Updating Service) are highlighted. A nemds
meetings were also held between the CEO and yousgalyers to promote the increased engagement of such
managers.

Also in 2012 Training Financing was widely availefdwhich covered the entirety of Manager trainihgotigh
the Fondirigenti and contributed approximately 6@#%he training of white-collar staff and Managénsough
the Fondimpresa.

Stock options plans
No significant events are highlighted.

Environment and Health

In line with Italtel Policy, the environmental aspe of company offices were verified and compliamdgth
existing regulations and the application of besiremmental practices were confirmed.

In particular the Carini Office passed in March 8Q inspection concerning the ISO 14001 Certificat
attained in 2001.

From 2011 ltaltel stepped up its focus on the mwbissues concerning Energy Management, in paeruhe
activity introduced on the Energy Management sohgimarket in the “Smart City” environment and fa t
same time introduced significant energy savingoasti investment, monitoring of consumption andrtiative
corrective actions, automation of operating systeemhication of personnel and restructuring of theas
utilised enabled the consolidation of the excell@sults of 2011 and the achievement, at compavgl, lef
further energy reductions of 14%, of methane ga¥fand of LPG of 24%.

The evaluation of health and security risks, cdrréait in collaboration with the workers’ represéives,
confirmed that no new risk factors were introdué@tbwing the alteration of the organisational sture and
confirmed also the efficiency of the control systefhe improvement opportunities identified were gady
introduced and monitored. Particular attention veasised on the activities carried out at clientoef§ with the
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implementation of all of the coordination initiadi, including a close vetting of suppliers, neagsda
guarantee security “in the field”.

In relation to health issues, the company healthice provided to employees approximately 4,500 icadd
visits under the legal obligations, for general dingt aid activity, for preventative measures,linting the flu
vaccination campaign offered to all employees.

Quality

Italtel - as always - places particular attentiongmality concerning products, solutions and sewidut also in
relation to the performance of processes, fulfillin addition environmental, health and securityuieements.

Italtel confirmed also for 2012 compliance with tQeiality Management System for the ISO 9001 stahdar
renewing the certification which has been held sii®92. Ongoing re-examination of corporate pra®ss
addition, is one of the instruments used to eveluatd select internal initiatives to improve compan
performance.

In relation to the products developed, the relatiafigurations are certified according to the #lmmagnetic
safety compatibility standards and created in atanoce with environmental impact minimisation craeffor
example: the RoHS - Restrictions of Hazardous @wgsts Directives); in relation to this, the Company
enrolled in the Manufactures of Electrical and Eiewic equipment Register - guarantees that estsdddi by the
European Union (WEEE - Waste Electrical and Eledtr&quipment) in relation to the disposal of produat
the end of their life cycle.

Great attention in fact has been focused on custameeds, also through the carrying out of Customer
Satisfaction Campaigns, considered as indispensiidguments to ensure the improvement of company
performance. In fact Customer Satisfaction is asotidated practice for some time within Italtel asdone of

the principal sources used to select projects aitidtives to improve performance. These practiogslve the
periodic contacting of clients through intervievesyrried out through web-based techniques which rcthe
entire ambit of the client-supplier relationship.
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Other events in the year

Potential significant liabilities

Tecnosistemi TLC Engineering & Services S.p.A. in Extraordinary Administration (in short " TCS").

In October 2012, the judgement was filed concernimggcase taken by one of the ex-TCS Directorgradr
CEO of Italtel. The case made against Italtel proposing civil ligbivas entirely rejected.

Tax inspection in Brazl

On December 19, 2007, the Tax Agency of the Statean Paulo in Brazil issued an Infraction Noticel &
penalty to the Group Company Italtel Brasil Ltda ifmportation operations carried out between 2062 2005.
Under this notice the Tax Agency alleged a violattoncerning the payment of ICMS taxes and a vaiaior
the use of tax credits on the tax to reduce thengay of the amount owing, in addition to applyirepplties and
interest on the disputed amounts. The overall atmurthe alleged violations and relative penalaesl interest
totals approx. Euro 18 million. Italtel did not ed¢e a favourable outcome at the first level ofgonént, nor at
the second level in 2009 and an appeal has beea atate third level. This last appeal is currestigpended
as the States of Sao Paulo and Espirito Santo signed an agreement concerning ICMS tax on comaierci
transactions carried out before March 2009. Thig@gent was enacted through Decree No. 56.045/26d40
will regularise the tax situation, cancelling adllds relating to ICMS tax. Italtel Brasil has pregzthand sent a
request to ensure recognition of the cancellatfadh®payables demanded by the Infraction Notice.

In December 2011, the Tax Agency of San Paolo cetagla tax inspection and informed the companydhat
legal requirements to avail of the above-mentioAgdeement between the states of San Paolo anditBspir
Santo had been complied with. In October 2012 thal fdocument was issued, therefore closing the cas
without the incursion of any liability. At the santiene, a similar document was issued concerning #ie
second infraction deed relating to the subsequembg (year 2006).

Tax disputein Italy

Currently Italtel has a number of pending tax dispuat the Milan Provincial and Regional Tax Consiois
which concern inspections by the Tax Agency - Lardly Region - Office of Large contributions, inagbn to
the tax periods 2004, 2005 and 2006. In summangeuthese tax inspections the Agency principallgtested
in relation to IRES (i) the non-recharging CRDR dstment Il S.a.r.l. (48.77% shareholder of ItalBbup
SpA) of interest charges and costs related to Igaasted in relation to the Leveraged Buy-Out ofi@naunder
which in 2002 Italtel Group S.p.A. (previously t&ll Holding S.p.A.) acquired the company ltaltep.8.
(through Italtel Acquisition S.p.A.) for an amouritapprox Euro 19.5 million for 2004, Euro 18.9 lioih for
2005, Euro 17.5 million for 2006 and Euro 16 miflitor 2007; in addition (ii) the non-deductibilibf costs for
services in favour of Italtel S.p.A. by group comjass not resident for tax purposes in Italy asfalfifling the
relevance requirement or lacking appropriate supmprdocumentation for an amount of approx. Eurdb 5.
million for 2004, Euro 2.9 million for 2005, EuroS3million for 2006 and Euro 1.2 million for 2007.

In relation to the years 2004-2006, the higher ineoamposed for IRES purposes did not result in @emnalties
or interest, in that fully offset through the uddax losses carried forward.

On November 6, 2012 the hearing before the MilanviAcial Tax Commission Section 22 took place,
concerning the assessment notices for 2004. Orugsb20, 2013 the Commission filed the relativegjments,
both entirely in favour of Italtel, with expenseslged against the Agency.

On February 11, 2013 the hearing before the MilaaviAcial Tax Commission Section 16 took place,
concerning the assessment notices for 2006. Oruaeb25, 2013 the judgements were filed, partiallfavour

of Italtel. In particular, the Commission judged wsounded the tax recovery for IRES purposes efrtbn-
recharging to CRDR Investment Il S.a.r.l. of imsr expenses, while confirming the other issues bot
concerning IRES and IRAP.
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The Company will appeal for the partial reform loé judgement before the Milan Regional Tax Comroisé
accordance with law.

For the tax period 2007 the Tax Agency — LombaragiBn - Office of Large Contributions in relatiom the
above-stated issues requested payment of highe® IRkes of Euro 5.7 million, penalties of Euro Billion

and interest of Euro 0.9 million (calculated adlavember 30, 2012).

The IRES tax requests, increased by the relatimalpes and interest, are due to the fact thafldee Agency
passively accepted the position of the Supremet@f€ivil Cassation with judgment No. 16333 of Sapber

26, 2012 according to which, on assessment, pdssels may not be automatically deducted from higher
declared profits. In particular, according to thgf®me Court, the Tax Agency may not automaticddigiuct
available tax losses in that this deduction mayy dmlke place following the express declaration loé t
contributor. In addition, the Tax Agency considetled costs at point (ii) non-deductible for IRAPrposes and
recovered the VAT deducted in accordance with Aati® of Presidential Decree No. 633/1972.

The amount of the higher tax (VAT and IRAP) and pemalties imposed based on the above-mentioned tax
inspections, amount overall to approx Euro 5.3iaml(plus interest).

In relation to the tax declarations concerning 2G8€ Company proposed an agreed settlement indamoe
with Article 6, paragraph 2 of Legislative Decree.I218 of June 19, 1997.

It must be considered that the charges made iriaelao IRES, VAT and IRAP in the tax declarations
concerning the tax periods from 2004 to 2007 mayitasvn up also in relation to the subsequent yaars,
years which may be similarly affected by chargeaceoning the loans sourced in relation to the above
mentioned Leveraged Buy Out operation, in additiorcosts for the provision of inter-company sersickn
January 2013 the Tax Agency — Lombardy Region 4c@®fbf Large Contributions undertook a tax inspacti
for the years 2008, 2009 and 2010 concerning IRES, and IRAP and withholding tax obligations.

Currently Italtel, supported by one of its tax caltents opinions, considers that these potentabilities

represent only a possible risk and therefore didnmake any provision. Given the complexity of thepdited

issues and the significant amounts concerned, & k@avever considered appropriate to provide thegmte
disclosure.
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Comment and analysis on the Income Statement, thealince Sheet and the
Financial Situation

The present section reviews the income statemafinbe sheet and financial position of the Comgany012
and 2011.

Income Statement
The reclassified income statement for 2012 and 29tdported below.

(thousands of Euro)

2012 % 2011 %
(a) (@)
Revenues from sales and services 257,676 100 322,411 100
Other income 58,755 22.8 51,530 16.0
Purchase of materials and services (196,249) (76.2) (245,924) (76.3)
Personnel costs (90,230) (35.0) (104,412) (32.4)
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs (31,543) (12.2) (170,748) (52.9)
Other operating costs (16,083) (6.2) (6,205) (2.0)
Change in inventories (8,580) 3.3) (5,554) a.7)
Increase in internal work capitalised 20,025 7.7 23,919 7.4
EBITDA (6,229) (2.4) (134,983) (41.9)
Net Financial charges (14,770) (5.7) (16,687) (5.1)
Net income/(charges) from investments (674) (0.3) 2,608 0.8
EBIT (21,673) (8.4) (149,062) (46.2)
Income taxes 7,134 2.8 (1,604) (0.5)
Net loss for the year (14,539) (5.6) (150,666) (46.7)
(a) Percentage of revenues from goods and services
Revenues from sales and services
By client
2012 % 2011 % Change %
@ (@) (D)
Telecom Italid® 89,571 34.8 112,580 34.9 (20.4)
Other Italian TLC operators 58,796 22.8 71,353 221 (17.6)
Large enterprises and Public Administratic 45,019 17.5 65,007 20.2 (30.7)
Foreign operatord 64,290 24.9 73,471 22.8 (12.5)
Total 257,676 100 322,411 100 (20.1)

(a) Percentage of total

(b) Percentage change on previous year

(c) Exclusively includes Telecom ltalia S.p.A., Telecttalia Sparkle S.p.A. and the companies partigigain the PEB
project.

(d) The foreign companies of the Telecom lItalia Grauwlved in the PEB project are excluded

Revenues from sales and services in 2012 amouatétuto 257,676 thousand, decreasing overall by Euro
64,735 thousand (-20.1%) on 2011 (revenues of BRPp411 thousand).

In particular, revenues from ltalian Operators €Ceim Italia S.p.A. and other operators) decrease8uro
35,566 thousand. Revenues from Telecom ltalia ateduto Euro 89,571 thousand, compared to Euro 802,5
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thousand in 2011, a reduction of Euro 23,009 thodiga20.4%). Revenues from the Other Local Opesator
(OLO) amounted to Euro 58,796 thousand, compardtlto 71,353 thousand in 2011, decreasing Eurdb¥2,5
thousand (-17.6%).

Revenues from Public Administration and Large Hwises amounted to Euro 45,019 thousand, compared t
Euro 65,007 thousand in 2011, reducing Euro 19®88sand (-30.7%). Revenues in this sector were als
impacted by the poor economy, in particular inlti@ustry, Finance & Retail sector.

Revenues from Foreign Operators totaled Euro 64{f2@@sand compared to Euro 73,471 thousand in 2011.
In the EMEA area, ltaltel - despite the investmeutbacks by operators - consolidated its positlwoth in
relation to proprietary products and also Systetadration activities. The reduction in revenuesghia Latam
area from Euro 50,876 thousand in 2011 to Euro4%/ffiousand in 2012 was significantly impacted toy t
financial crisis within the Company which createwlgems in the sourcing of Cisco materials (thengigal
business area), with a consequent further impacteenues.

Other income

The account Other income increased from Euro 51{B80sand in 2011 to Euro 58,755 thousand in 28h2,
improvement of Euro 7,225 thousand. The compositibthis account was quite varied and in 2012 ideth
non-recurring items concerning the derecognitiorthef rental contract of the Castelletto — Settimitaivese
area for Euro 32,817 thousand and income item ®aieltalia under the Restructuring Agreement sigaed
December 11, 2012 for Euro 10,000 thousand. In 20tHer income included prior year income and glotsamm
of provisions for Euro 32,590 thousand (Euro 5,68&sand in 2012).

In 2012 operating grants from public bodies agaiestarch projects reduced on the previous yedEurg
3,459 thousand.

Personnel costs

Personnel costs in 2012 amounted to Euro 90,230stral compared to Euro 104,412 thousand in 2011,
decreasing by Euro 14,182 thousand (-13.6%). Thircten is principally due to the reduced average
workforce in the year and the effects of the agre@sisigned with the Trade Unions in January 2012.

Restructuring charges, concerning employee redwydamsts, amounted to Euro 6,983 thousand, compgared
Euro 8,082 thousand in 2011.

Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs

In 2012 this account amounted to Euro 31,542 thwdig&uro 170,749 thousand in 2011). The accoutiién
previous year included the write-down of goodwalt Euro 130,000 thousand.

Other operating costs

Other operating costs increased in 2012 by Eur@d®tBousand due to the loss of the deposit underehtal
contract of the building at Castelletto — Settimdaklese dissolved on December 31, 2012 and replboged
new rental contract undertaken on the same date.

EBIT

The EBIT reports a loss of Euro 6,229 thousand(Gb2? an improvement on a loss in 2011 of Euro 1831,9
thousand. In 2011 the EBIT included in the accodmibrtisation, depreciation and write-downs Euro ,080
thousand concerning the write-down of goodwill (zar 2012).
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EBITDA

For Italtel S.p.A. EBITDA is comprised of:

2012 2011
Operating loss (6,229) (134,983)
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs 31,543 170,748
EBITDA 25,314 35,765

EBITDA reports a profit of Euro 25,314 thousand3@®. of revenues). This compares with an EBITDA ofdzu
35,765 thousand in 2011 (11.1% of revenues), aedserof Euro 10,451 thousand.

Net Financial charges

Net financial charges decreased from Euro 16,684dstéind in 2011 to Euro 14,770 thousand in 2012ufe E
1,917 thousand).

Net currency differences improved from a loss ofdE2,323 thousand in 2011 to a gain of Euro 1,6ibéisand
in 2012, improving therefore by Euro 3,937 thousand

Net interest charges increased by Euro 2,073 timousa

The increase in net interest charges is principdillg to the recognition of default interest on #hert and
medium/long-term bank payable unpaid on maturitg amtil the effective date of the approval of the
restructuring agreement, net of the contributi@mfimproved reference interest rates in 2012 coetptr 2011.

Other financial income and charges report a netase of Euro 53 thousand, due to the reductialividends
from investments in subsidiaries for Euro 7,812u8and, a reduction in other financial income of &4r306
thousand, entirely offset by the decrease in dihancial charges of Euro 12,171 thousand.

In 2011 Other financial income included prior ygarome of Euro 3,061 thousand recognised in tis¢ fialf of
2011 following the settlement of liabilities of amlar amount relating to the residual valuationasf IRPEG
credit granted in 2005 and paid by the Tax Agemewddition in 2011 a positive effect was recogdisé Euro
1,795 thousand from the mark- to-market valuatibfrarward operations in US Dollars. These amourgsew
offset by the increase of Euro 739 thousand folimathe cancellation in 2012 of bank commissionsomger
due following the debt restructuring agreementaesigon December 11, 2012.

The change in Other financial charges of Euro 1R thdusand in 2012 principally relates to the radtgn in
2011 of the write-down of the financial receivablem the parent company lItaltel Group S.p.A. fordw3,137
thousand. This decrease was offset by the impaEuod 2,063 thousand from the mark-to-market vaduadf
Forward operations in US Dollars recorded in tharyehich decreased from a gain of Euro 1,617 thudisd
December 31, 2012 to a loss of Euro 446 thousabée¢mber 31, 2012.

Equity investment income and charges

The net income and charges from investments repattsarge of Euro 673 thousand in 2012 due toidihdity
recognised by the company concerning the negatiegebolders’ equity of the subsidiary company éfalt
Arabia Ltd. In 2011 income was reported of Euro08,8housand due to the revaluation of the lItaltel B
investment, following the future share capital @ase payment.
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I ncome taxes

The estimated current income taxes for the yearuainto Euro 480 thousand and concern IRAP charges f
Euro 456 thousand (Euro 1,098 thousand in 2011)f@mrdgn taxes of Euro 24 thousand (Euro 2,591 ¢had

in 2011).

Deferred tax income amounted to Euro 7,614 thouga@812 (Euro 2,085 thousand in 2011).

Net result

A loss of Euro 14,539 thousand is reported in & yompared to a loss of Euro 150,666 thousag61d.

Balance Sheet
The balance sheet at December 31, 2012 and at Dec&h, 2011 is reported below.

(thousands of Euro)

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 Changes

A) Fixed capital 317,273 371,347 (54,074)
B) Working capital (40,118) (28,451) (11,667)
C) Employee benefit provisions (25,515) (28,299) 2,784
D) Other non-current liabilities and other provisso (9,399) (38,791) 29,392
Total net capital employed 242,241 275,80t (33,565)
E) Net debt 294,548 313,57: (19,026)
F) Shareholders” equity (52,307) (37,768 (14,539)
Share capital 116,858 116,85¢ -
Other reserves including the net result (169,165) (154,626 (14,539)
Total Debt and Net Equity 242,241 275,80t (33,565)

| nvestments

Investments in the year totaled Euro 23,260 thalisahwhich Euro 21,856 thousand in intangible tss@md
Euro 1,404 thousand in property, plant and equigmen

Specifically, Euro 19,702 thousand was invested@velopment and Innovation activities and Euro 2,15
thousand in software applications acquired undémited use licenses and software development pteje

Property, plant and equipment increased by Euro tBhGsand, concerning industrial equipment, priaityp
relating to equipment utilised for the developmehsoftware solutions and for the test plant fovdarcts to be
launched.

The reduction of fixed capital at December 31, 2@bthpared to the previous year is principally doghe
conclusion of the rental contract of the Castalletbmplex with the consequent derecognition oflthigding,
originally recognised under fixed assets as per 1&Sor a gross value of Euro 49,000 thousand, etéated at
December 31, 2012 for Euro 6,533 thousand andabe ¢f the deposit concerning this contract foroEL®
million.
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Net debt

The net debt was as follows:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Short-term loans 255,461 235,118
Medium/long-term loans (bank and subsidised) 36,455 83,898
Other financial payables 21,631 13,356
Accrued expenses and deferred income 7,211 1,313
GROSS DEBT 320,758 333,685
Cash and cash equivalents on hand - -
On demand bank current accounts (23,441) (15,875)
Short-term financial receivables (2,769) (4,236)
Prepayments and accrued income - -
NET DEBT 294,548 313,574

The net debt at December 31, 2012 of Italtel S.pofaled Euro 294,548 thousand and reduced by E®)@26
thousand compared to Euro 313,574 thousand at Dweredit, 2011, due to the reduction in the gross fdelturo
12,927 thousand, the increase in liquidity and cawth cash equivalents for Euro 7,566 thousandetolfg the
reduction in short-term financial receivables ford 1,467 thousand.

The gross debt reduced by Euro 12,927 thousanwijpaily due to the derecognition of the financesk operation
for Euro 48,239 thousand, offset by the increasibsidised loans, net of the repayments for Ejird&2thousand
and the increase in accrued financial expensdsum 5,898 thousand due to the non-payment of hgrikierest
in expectation of the approval of the Debt Restniay Agreement. Short-term financial payableséaased by
Euro 18,000 thousand, relating to two bridge loaesed for Euro 13,500 thousand by Unicredit S.pAd for
Euro 4,500 thousand by Telecom lItalia Finance, @néhcrease of Euro 8,516 thousand in financiabpkegs to
Group companies.

Short-term financial receivables reduced by EuA® 7 thousand, principally due to the reductionhef tark-to-
market value of currency hedging operations, winktluced from a gain of Euro 1,617 thousand at Dbeei31,
2011 to a loss of Euro 446 thousand at Decembet(BD.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by Euro 7t&8&dnd, due to the cash flow generated from fingnc
activities for Euro 35,320 thousand, net of thehcisw absorbed from operating activities for Eu6A98
thousand and from investment activities for Eurcb8& thousand.

Financial risk management
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk occurs when the Company does notdhmi encounters difficulties in sourcing the neaeg$unds
to meet future financial commitments. The Compasly concerns resources generated or absorbed batimge
and investing activities and the potential diffites in attaining financing to support the opemtactivities in a
timely manner.

The cash flows, financing requirements and theiditys of the Company are monitored and managedrakyt
under the control of the Treasury, with the objextof guaranteeing efficient management of the nitne
resources.

The Company avails of short-term credit lines whiehncipally concern the revolving loan grantedltaitel
S.p.A. within the Debt Restructuring Agreement sidjion December 11, 2012.
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Italtel S.p.A. undertook in 2012 a long debt restnting process due to a lack of capital and chsigehe
economic outlook upon which the previous Industiin was based, declaring in accordance with l&r6@,
paragraph 3 letter d) of the Bankruptcy Law on 8eqiiter 16, 2010 a serious liquidity crisis.

The restructuring drawn up by the Company is basethe industrial plan approved on November 28,2201
which establishes for, in addition to the trade findncial operations contained in the proposalftand briefly
summarised below, a significant reorganisation oimBany personnel, forming the basis of an important
memorandum signed on November 22, 2012 by the Mynisf Economic Development and by all of the
principal trade unions.

Following negotiations with all interested partidse Debt Restructuring Agreement provided forftiilwing
capital, financial and industrial rescue measuoestéltel S.p.A.:

a.

the recapitalisation of the Company for Euro 158,232, achieved through the issue of equity financi
instruments as per Article 2346, sixth paragraphthef Civil Code, through: (a) conferment by the
Lending Banks of their receivables deriving frome timedium-long term loan contract for Euro
89,342,969, (b) conferment by UniCredit of its igable from the interest rate swap contracts (with
maturity extension previously agreed in 2010) ford=9,192,303; (c) conferment by Cisco of its trade
receivables concerning the supply of Cisco prodiecttaltel, for Euro 50,000,000 and (d) confermient
Telecom ltalia Finance of the bridge loan of Eurb0®,000 which will be issued to Italtel immediatel
following the filing of the court petition; in adibn to the measures outlined above, the Restrimctur
Agreement establishes for a further automatic caee of bank receivables for a maximum Euro
29,516,100 into equity financial instruments, ie ttase in which, on the maturity on the RCF criauiis

in June 2017, the Company has utilised, in fullropart, the Support Lines described in the subsequ
letter b;

the new financing for a total of Euro 51,000,00Db§ two of the Lending Banks (UniCredit and BPM)
for Euro 36,500,000, through the signing of a neanl contract; (ii) by Telecom lItalia Finance, far&
4,500,000 and (iii) by Cisco for Euro 10,000,009 thie form of the granting of new trade receivables
against new supplies for Euro 5,000,000 and thenebetd repayment of a part of the pre-existing trade
receivables of a similar amount. The issue of agprately half of the new financial resources predd
by the banks (in this latter case limited to tharehmade available by Unicredit) and by Cisco dditon

to all of the TI bridge loan for a total of Euro &8llion; in addition to the fresh resources indezhabove,
the Restructuring Agreement establishes for thencibment of the Banks, Cisco and Telecom ltalia
Finance to make available two further precautior@myditioned lines (defined as Supporting Finamce i
the Restructuring Agreement), for a total amounEofo 39,783,451, of which (A) Euro 15,800,000 to
guarantee the payments of outside creditors, apd&@Bo 23,983,451 to cover the non-issue of loants a
contributions established by the Plan;

the signing of a new medium-long term loan contfact total Euro 63,124,174 to refinance the nesid
exposure from the loan contract signed on May 2822(the “Original Term Loan Contract”), already
expired at the date of the present petition — whastablishes for inter alia: (a) the reschedulihghe
capital line amounts in three solutions of Decenigr 2017, 2018 and 2019, with the exception of a
lower share held by ABC Bank of approx. Euro 2.8iam, which will be repaid in a single solution on
December 31, 2019 and (b) the suspension of intpegsnents;

a renegotiation of the terms and conditions of ileolving loan contract signed with a number of
Lending Banks on November 29, 2010 for a total ofd203.5 million, currently utilised for approx.
Euro 91.5 million, of which Euro approx. 77.9 nuli for cash (divided into various usage forms) and
approx. Euro 13.6 million in bank guarantees, whigh involve inter alia: (a) a number of amendmrent
to the amounts and usage forms of the existingitctiegés in accordance with this contract, with a
reduction in the overall maximum amount of the IdanEuro 135,183,451, of which approx. Euro
109,000,000 in cash form and Euro 26,183,451 irffah@a of bank guarantees; (b) the partial suspensio
of interest payments; (c) the granting of a parth& sums currently utilised for advance lines dor
amount of Euro 3,950,000 with rescheduling of te&ative repayment until June 30, 2013; (d) the
granting of a further share of the sums currentilysed for an advance line on invoices for an antaf
Euro 4,000,000 with rescheduling of this amountJtme 30, 2017, (d) the rescheduling of the final
repayment date of all the further amounts due aoatance with this contract until June 30, 2017;
amendments to both loan contracts, including: @l}ig suspension of interest payments (other than
those on the new loan which must be repaid on sdégdntil the end of 2014 and, subsequently, the
payments of only the variable portion (Euribor)tloé above-stated interest, on the condition thdtian
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the required amount to ensure that sufficient atéél cash is available to cover the short termidity
needs of Italtel,

f.  the rescheduling of repayments to three installmanthe years 2017, 2018 and 2019 and the sugpensi
until the end of 2017 of the payment of interestlumloan which Unicredit currently holds with tellin
accordance with theledging Amounts Assignment and Rescheduling Agreerh&eptember 16, 2010,
under which, inter alia, a number of amounts duétdlyel were extended following the resolutiontioé
interest rates swap contracts in place at that date

g. the granting by Cisco to Italtel, in departure frtime contractual agreements in place concerningipay
conditions for the supply of Cisco products, whiokolves the possibility to accumulate payables to
Cisco up to a maximum of Euro 55,000,000 and pagivables against Cisco supplies within 90 days in
Europe and within 60 days in Latin America and deseof other improved commercial and credit
conditions than those currently in place;

h.  the commitment of Telecom lItalia to purchase goaus services from lItaltel for an invoicing amouft o
at least Euro 120,000,000 per year, for the 2011%1period, as outlined in greater detail in the
Restructuring Agreement;

i. the payment by Telecom lItalia to Italtel of an amoof Euro 10,000,000, with prior signing of a
settlement agreement concerning a serious of indgmequests sent by Italtel to Telecom ltalia in
accordance with Article 7 of tH&ubscription and Share Price Agreementdted September 30, 2000;

j-  the previously stated significant corporate reoizgtion in accordance with the previously outlined
agreement with the Ministry of Economic Developmand the principal trade unions.

Through credit contributions from the Banks, Cisew Tl and the simultaneous issue of EFI's, ItaBgd.A.
covered the losses, re-establishing its equitypprax. Euro 100.7 million. With the recovery of thapital
position, the debt structure of the Company alsprawes, both through the injection of new finanoe as a
result of the amendments made to the loan cortmawtitions in place.

Italtel may also count on, from an industrial vieant, the improved support of its strategic parsrend indirect
shareholders Telecom Italia and Cicso, which, a&n,sbave undertaken significant commitments als@ of
commercial nature.

The significant nature of the actions and the appateness of the Restructuring Agreement, in @algr in
ensuring the payment of outside creditors to theement, provided the basis for its approval by Ntkan
Court.

The Directors believe therefore that the funds eradlit lines described above, in addition to thgeeerated
from operating and financial activities, will petnthe Company to fully repay outside creditors ameket the
requirements deriving from investment activitiesprking capital management and repayment of debt in
accordance with their maturities over the duratidrihe Industrial Plan. In addition, the liquidiby the first
months of the year is in line with that indicataedhe associated liquidity plan.

Credit risk

The credit risk is the risk that a client or a coenoial or financial partner creates a charge byfualfitling a
payment obligation.

The Company is exposed to credit risk both in retato commercial transactions and inter-compangileg
activities.

The maximum theoretical exposure to credit riskatember 31, 2012 concerns the book value of Gtbssts,
Trade receivables, Short-term financial assets@agh and cash equivalents at banks, financiatutistis and
post offices for a total of Euro 155,647 thousaadr¢ 141,914 thousand at December 31, 2011).

Financial assets are recorded in the financia¢stanhts net of the write-downs calculated on théshaghe risk
of non-fulfilment by the counterparty, determinezhsidering the information available on the cliestésency
and considering historical data.

The treasury management of Italtel S.p.A. monitor& monthly basis the risk of non-payment of nealglies,
overdue receivables and credit lines granted tdettgest clients.
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The credit risk concerning commercial transactiaith overseas business partners (excluding reckiggdbom
the Telecom Italia Group and a small number of o#merprises) is insured by S.A.C.E. for a minimein80%
and maximum of 90%.

The largest exposure concerns trade receivableDesember 31, 2012 trade receivables for Euro @&9,27
thousand (Euro 74,884 thousand at December 31,)20&fe recorded, net of write-downs of Euro 9,093
thousand (Euro 8,584 thousand at December 31, 2011)

At December 31, 2012 overdue trade receivables ataduo Euro 10.2 million (Euro 7.9 million at Dedleer
31, 2011).

Company cash and cash equivalents are depositeadatg financial counterparties.

In relation to the Company objectives and poligieacerning the management of other financial reshd the
hedging policy, reference should be made to NaiEtbe Notes to the financial statements.

Transactions with related parties
In relation to activities with related parties Iretyear, reference should be made to the sectitwirvthe Notes.
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Significant events

Under the Debt Restructuring Agreement signed ocebBer 11, 2012 between ltaltel, Italtel Group atier
Group companies, the lending banks, Telecom Italid Cisco Systems reached an important agreemetitefo
amendment of the rental contract conditions in @ladgth the company Nabucco R.E. S.r.l. concernimg t
offices at Settimo Milanese in the Castelletto libga

The contract signed on June 9, 2011, with conafuagreed for December 31, 2025, for a total of é&ry and
an annual rental payment of Euro 8.1 million, wssalved.

On January 10, 2013 a new property rental contrast signed with effect from December 31, 2012, thic
establishes:

* areduction in the contractual duration from 1&rgeo 6 years, automatically renewable for a &nth
years, with cancellation permitted through 18 menthtice;

* the payment of a rental charge for the first twarg of Euro 8.1 million and, for the subsequentye
following the reduction in the spaces occupiedaanual rental of Euro 4.0 million;

» the non-application of ISTAT revaluations on réitaarges until December 31, 2018;

+ the maintenance of the bank guarantee previousintgd to the Lessor in accordance with the
Contract signed on June 9, 2011 for a maximum geea amount of Euro 12 million until December
30, 2017 and subsequently the issue of a new suredyform and for an amount which the parties
shall agree;

« the loss of the deposit of Euro 10 million provddey Italtel S.p.A. as guarantee of the obligations
under the rental contract signed on June 9, 2011;

« the allocation of ordinary maintenance expensad; borne by the Lessee in relation to the rented
spaces and the extraordinary maintenance dividedeka the Lessor and the Lessee.

Under IAS 17, based on the contractual condititins,new rental contract may be classified as amabpg
lease and consequently the rental charges musicbgmised as a cost to the income statement il aquaunts
for the duration of the lease.

Following the signing of the new contract, on Debem31, 2012 the original sale and lease-back tiparavas
derecognised which resulted in an overall gain,lughing the tax effect, of Euro 22.8 million, due tioe
cancellation of the original financial payable ofire 48.2 million and the deferred income concerning
suspended gain of Euro 27.0 million, net of thevadtie of assets recognised to the balance sheBufo 42.4
million and the value of the deposit of Euro 10limil.

Deferred tax assets of Euro 8.5 million, calculatedrevious years on the value of the suspendedajduro
27 million, were recognised as costs to the 20tarme statement.
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Subsequent events after year-end

Following the 2012 year-end, all legal acts werenpleted to implement the measures established &y th
Restructuring Agreement, including the signing eivrioan contracts, the settlement with Teleconialtahd the
deferment of the Cisco receivables (in this regafdrence should be made to that outlined in datgiage 30).

Particularly in relation to the recapitalisation thie Company, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Ngetf
March 27, 2013 approved the full coverage of thes lof Euro 169,165,031, according to the balaneetsht
December 31, 2012 prepared by the Company in aanoedwith Articles 2446, paragraph 1 and 2447 ef th
Civil Code:

i. for Euro 114,858,248 through the reduction of thars capital from Euro 116,858,248 to Euro
2,000,000;

ii. for Euro 54,306,783 through the use of the shadssl equity reserve of a similar amount, created
following the subscription of the Equity Financiaktruments in accordance with Article 2346, sixth
paragraph of the Civil Code, for a total of Eur@3J85,272, of a par value of Euro 1, convertible
into shares of the Company on the occurrence oftevestablished under the relative clause,
subscribed through the conferment of receivabledtaifel S.p.A. for a similar amount, in the
proportions illustrated below.

The subscribed and paid-in share capital at MarcH2813 amounted therefore to Euro 2,000,000, cisingr
2,000,000 shares of a par value of Euro 1, follgwime implementation of the reverse stock splitrapgd by
the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of March 2613 (under which each share was allocated aglae
of Euro 1), all held by the sole shareholder ItaBeoup S.p.A..

On March 27, 2013 with the confirmation and extensileed of the lien established on November 290201
Italtel Group S.p.A. confirmed the existing lien haltel S.p.A. shares and extended it in guaranfebe new
loan contracts in favour of all secured creditarsdentified under the Debt Restructuring Agreement

In addition to the above-stated equity financiatioments subscribed through conversion of paydbleBuro
153,035,272, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Megetaf March 15, 2013, also in accordance with the
provisions of the Restructuring Agreement, approthesl issue of additional equity financial instrunsefor
Euro 29,516,100. These additional instruments tal subscribed through a further conversion of plagab
exclusively on the verification of a humber of cdmhs established by Article 3.2.8 of the Restuuirtg
Agreement, concerning the non-repayment of the getplines” by maturity. Therefore this conversisronly

a possibility. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Megttherefore approved the share capital incredstneo
company up to a maximum Euro 182,551,372 (equtd@écsum of the instruments already subscribed laosit
that may be subscribed), exclusively to service &rtyre conversion of equity financial instrumeritgo
company shares.

The Equity Financial Instruments are convertibke iordinary shares in the ratio of 1 new shareefgh Equity
Financial Instrument.

The Instruments were subscribed in compliance thighfollowing table and will be convertible intossks on
occurrence of the pre-established events.
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Creditor Number of Equity Financial Instruments
subscribed

Unicredit 52,642,905
BPM 14,482,770
GE Capital 27,015,421
Banco Popolare 1,464,728
Centrobanca 1,464,728
Banco di Brescia 1,464,728
Cisco 50,000,000
Telecom ltalia Finance 4,500,000
Total 153,035,272

Under the lien signed on March 27, 2013 the Edfibancial Instruments subscribed by Telecom It&lis@nce
SA and CISCO Systems (Italy) S.r.l. were undertakem lien in favour of secured creditors as estadd by
the Debt Restructuring Agreement.

On March 27, 2013 the shareholders’ equity of teen@any, due to the operations described abovegased
from a negative Euro 52,306,783 to a positive E{0,728,489.

Outlook

The development of the process initiated in thst firalf of 2012, concluding with the capitalisatiohltaltel
S.p.A. and the financial rescue and the establishroé the credit lines necessary for the delivefyttee
industrial plan currently requires the full commint of management to its execution, according ® th
timeframe and manner previously indicated. Themfdine initial months of the year were dedicatedh®
preparation of the internal reporting system tougrecompanies and also externally in order to ensffeztive
monitoring reports and in line with the reachingleé monthly goals.

Based on the initial indications, having reviewe tesults for the first two months of 2013 andssgjuent
months, it is considered that, despite the diffieslpresented by an unfavourable economic antigadiclimate,
the Italtel Group is proceeding according to thauktrial Plan.

Settimo Milanese, March 27, 2013

For the Board of Directors

The Chief Executive Officer



Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Euro)
Note 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment () 17,534,625 66,291,977
Goodwill (8) 169,564,565 169,564,565
Other intangible assets 9) 34,262,405 36,370,065
Investments (10) 12,133,253 12,179,498
Medium/long term financial assets (11) 111,896 111,896
Other assets (12) 6,422,050 17,198,490
Deferred tax assets (13) 77,245,000 69,630,904
Total non-current assets 317,273,794 371,347,395
Current assets
Inventories (14) 16,606,218 24,743,733
Trade receivables (15) 99,096,498 102,805,086
Tax receivables (16) 692,177 1,148,259
Other receivables and assets ( 30,339,933 18,997,106
Short-term financial assets @1 2,769,436 4,236,178
Cash and cash equivalents ( 23,441,161 15,875,241
Total current assets 172,945,423 167,805,603
Total Assets 490,219,217 539,152,998
Net equity and Liabilities
Net Equity
Share capital (20) 116,858,248 116,858,248
Reserves (20) - -
Other reserves including the net result ( (169,165,031 (154,626,015)
Total Net Equity (52,306,783) (37,767,767)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefit provisions (2 25,515,226 28,298,610
Provisions for risks and charges ( 9,287,125 11,454,080
Medium/long term financial liabilities (2t 36,454,777 83,898,190
Other liabilities (26) 112,200 27,337,199
Total non-current liabilities 71,369,328 150,988,079
Current liabilities
Trade payables 27) 139,633,563 135,599,268
Current income tax payables (2 - -
Other payables and liabilities (2 47,219,300 40,546,487
Current financial liabilities (25 284,303,809 249,786,931
Total current liabilities 471,156,672 425,932,686
Total Liabilities 542,526,000 576,920,765
Total net equity and liabilities 490,219,217 539,152,998
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2012 and 2011 Income Statement

(Euro)

Note 2012 2011

Revenues from sales and services (30) 257,675,638 322,410,720
Other income (31) 58,755,445 51,529,981
Purchase of materials and services (32) (196,248,515) (245,923,562)
Personnel costs (33) (90,230,241) (104,412,260)
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs (34) (31,542,460) (170,748,562)
Other operating costs (35) (16,083,256) (6,205,013)
Change in inventories (36) (8,580,179) (5,553,925)
Increase in internal work capitalised (37) 20,024,643 23,919,298
EBIT (6.228.925) (134.983.323)
Financial income (38) 13,463,632 24,337,139
Financial charges (38) (28,234,047) (41,022,939)
Investment gains/(losses) (39) (673,945) 2,607,896
Income taxes (40) 7,134,269 (1,604,474)

Net loss for the year

(14,539,016)

(150,665,701)




Financial Statements

2012 and 2011 Comprehensive Income Statement

(thousands of Euro)
2012 2011

Loss for the year (14,539) (150,666)

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve recognised to the inconerstat - -

Total other profits/(losses) directly recorded to neequity -

Total comprehensive loss (14,539) (150,666)
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Cash flow statement for the years ended December 31012 and 2011

(Euro)
2012 2011
A - Opening cash and cash equivalents (net shortsta debt) 15,875,241 55,726,929
B — Cash flow from operating activity
Loss for the year (14,539,016) (150,665,701)
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs 31,542,460 170,748,562
Net Income/(Charges) from investments 673,945 1,658,396
Losses on disposed asséts (24,914,213) (3,129,505)
Reversal of financial assets - 13,137,478
Reversal of financial liabilities (739,391) (3,061,051)
Increase in deferred tax asset (7,614,096) (2,085,217)
Increase/(Decrease) of employee benefits provisions (2,783,384) (1,611,674)
Changes in other provisions (2,166,955) (9,898,763)
Cash flow from activities before changes in workingapital (20,540,650) 15,092,525
Change in working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in receivables 3,908,588 23,918,425
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 8,137,515 (4,575,388)
(Increase) / Decrease of other assets (10,110,306) (919,918)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 12,406,335 (63,726,690)
Total changes in working capital 14,342,132 (45,303,571)
Total (B) (6,198,518) (30,211,046)
C — Cash flow from investing activities
(Investments) and divestments in holdings and sgesir 104,300 245,279
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets 1,466,741 1,478,035
Divestment of fixed assets 133,642 117,498
Investments in property, plant and equipment (1,370,673) (3,186,850)
Investments in intangible assets (21,889,725) (24,542,790)
Total (C) (21,555,715) (25,888,828)
D — Cash flow from financing activitie$?
Granting and repayments of short-term loans 19,598,995 23,705,757
New loans (subsidised) 6,233,536 367,102
Repayment of loans to third parties (4,107,996) (7,051,756)
Share capital increase - -
Granting of finance leases - 449,000
Repayment of finance leases (586,272) (438,379)
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 14,181,890 (783,538)
Total (D) 35,320,153 16,248,186
E — Cash flow for the year (B+C+D) 7,565,920 (39,851,688)
F — Closing cash and cash equivalents 23,441,161 15,875,241

(1) This includes Euro 32,816,554 concerning the gedtised with the derecognition of the industrialding at Castelletto, net
of Euro 10,000,000 for the loss of the deposit eoninig the rental contract.
(2) The interest income received in the year amourttétlito 67,049 and interest expenses paid totaleo €W021,382.
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Statement of changes in Shareholders™ Equity for #hyears ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(thousands of Euro)
Other reserves

Treasury including the Total Net

Share capital Reserves shares result Equity
Balance at January 1, 2011 196,83( 70,000 - (149,972) 116,858
Comprehensive Loss - - - (150,666) (150,666)
Reclassification of Castelletto land
from operating lease to finance
lease - - (3,960) (3,960)
Transactions with shareholders
- Coverage of losses carried forward (79,972 (70,000) ) 149,972 -
Balance at December 31, 2011 116,858 - - (154,626) (37,768)
Comprehensive Loss - - - (14,539) (14,539)
Transactions with shareholders
- Coverage of losses carried forward - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2012 BB5¢ - - (169,165) (52,307)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Introduction

Introduction

Italtel S.p.A. is a corporation company with regisd office in Castelletto, Settimo Milanese (Mtdas
wholly-owned by Italtel Group S.p.A. (parent comppan

The Company provides solutions, products and sesviczincipally for telecommunication operators and
also for Large Enterprises and the Public Admiatgdn. These solutions, products and services are
principally proposed as projects for voice/data fixeld/mobile convergence.

The present financial statements, relating to thar yended December 31, 2012, are presented in Euro
and consist of the Balance Sheet, Income Staten@zgh Flow Statement, Statement of changes in
Shareholders’ Equity, Comprehensive Income Statérmed the Notes to the financial statements. All
the amounts reported in the financial statemergseapressed in thousands of Euro, unless otherwise
indicated.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Company for the 2012 financial statements pezbghe financial statements in compliance with
IFRS issued by the IASB and approved by the Eunoggammission. IFRS also include all the revised
international accounting standards (“IAS”) and afllthe interpretations of the International Finahci
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”), inding those previously issued by the Standing
Interpretations Committee (“SIC”).

The principal changes to International Accountitngn8ards are outlined below.

Changes to accounting standards, interpretatiohsaendments applied after January 1, 2012:

¢ IFRS 7 - (Additional Disclosure - Transfers of &mtial Assets): under Regulation
N0.1205/2011 issued by the European Commission @mreidber 22, 2011 the amendments to
IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments : additional disclesu Transfers of Financial Assets" were
approved, which supplement the disclosure on fimdnostruments with reference to the
transfer of financial instruments to describe tisks to which the Company remains exposed in
relation to the assets transferred. The new prnssirequire, among others, additional
disclosure in the case in which the company cawigssignificant transfers of financial assets
close to the year-end.

The standard did not have any effect on the P&@entpany financial statements.

& The amendment to IAS 12 — Income taxes requirgiesnto value deferred taxes deriving from
an asset based on the method by which the carmahge of this asset will be recovered
(through continuous use or through sale). Follovitmrgse amendments SIC 21 — “Income taxes
— Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assetsinsealled.

The standard did not have any effect on the P&enipany financial statements.
Changes to accounting standards, interpretatiohsaamendments applied after January 1, 2013:

e Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure in the financiétements of other components in the
comprehensive income statement: on June 6, 201al&Re (EC) 475/2012 was published in
the Official Gazette of the Commission of June ®l12 which adopted the Amendments to IAS
1 — Disclosure in the financial statements of otb@mponents in the comprehensive income
statement. The objective of the amendments to IAB 1o clarify the presentation of the
increasing number of components of other comprehenacome and to assist the users of
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financial statements to distinguish between thastef other comprehensive income which may
or may not be reclassified subsequently to prafitoss. The amendments to IAS 1 are applied
from financial statements for periods beginning/Jyl2012.

On June 6, 2012 Regulation (EC) 475/2012 of then@ission of June 5, 2012 which adopts the
amendments to IAS 19 — Employee benefits was phddiS he amendments to IAS 19 focused
on the accounting processes of defined benefitsplaf other long-term benefits and of

termination benefits. The principal amendments eomc

o defined benefit plans: actuarial profit/losses &med remeasurements) must be
immediately and fully recognised to the comprehamshcome statement. The option
which permitted the non-recognition of actuariabffifiosses if classified within a certain
“corridor” and to defer them if outside this “catar” (so-called corridor approach) was
eliminated;

o other long-term benefits (for example seniority bees): the actuarial profit/losses renamed
remeasurements must be recognised to net equtheicomprehensive income statement.
Immediate recognition to the income statement mallonger be permitted;

o elimination of the “expected return on plan semriassets” and of the “interest cost”
which will be replaced by a new total called “neteirest”, calculated applying to the net
liability (therefore the gross liability net of plaservicing assets) the discount rate currently
utilisable only for the gross liability;

o request of further additional information to belirted in the explanatory notes to improve
the highlighting of risks relating to defined beibefans;

o termination benefits: according to the new standbedfactor on which recognition to the
financial statements is based concerns whetheobthe benefit is revocable. For these
purposes, termination benefits may essentiallyrbkdm down into two types:

a) benefits related to a wider restructuring planwimich the entity may not revoke
the offer and the employee has no alternative te@ance: in this case the offer is
considered irrevocable on the communication of lhyeoff plan to the affected
parties;

b) individual benefits which the company may in theoeyoke at their discretion
until acceptance by the employee: in this caseotfeg becomes irrevocable when
the employee accepts.

On December 29, 2012 Regulations 1254, 1255 arfb Ilébncerning the updating of
International Accounting Standards were publishrethe European Official Gazette (No. 360).
In greater detail:

Regulation 1254/2012 approved the following staddar

= |FRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, whaigective is to establish a single
consolidated financial statement model which eshbt control as a basis for the
consolidation of all types of companies. In achigvihis objective, the principles included
in IAS 27 (Consolidated and separate statementsg wlgerefore incorporated, which
consequently was republished amended, and thepigtation concerning SIC 12
(Consolidation — specific purpose entities). Thewnstandard provides also further
indications for the determination of control in easn which it is difficult to ascertain.

= |FRS 11 - Joint arrangements, whose objective isstablish the accounting standards
which must be utilised by companies involved innfoegreements. In reaching this
objective the following were therefore cancelledtAS 31 (investments in joint ventures)
i) SIC 13 interpretation (jointly controlled enés — non-monetary contributions by
venturers). While the existing principles are baeeadthe legal form of the agreement to
establish the accounting methodology to be utiliSE®RS 11 focuses on the nature of the
rights and obligations deriving from the agreemémparticular, the new standard removes
the possibility to recognise joint ventures accogdito the proportional consolidation
method; consequently they must be recognised exelysaccording to the net equity
method.
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IFRS 12 — Disclosure of interest in other entitiebose objective is to strengthen and in
part replace the disclosure obligations for sulsidcompanies, for joint arrangements and
for associated companies and other non-consolidaiegbany structures. In achieving this
objective it was necessary to republish (also aimgRndIAS 27 (Separate Financial
Statements) and IAS 28 (Investments in associaig$oint ventures).

The same regulation also states that in relatiothéonon-adoption of IFRS 9 (financial
instruments) by the Union, all references to théndard must concern the current IAS 39
(financial instruments: recognition and measurejnent

For these standards the IASB indicated January013 Z2as the effective date; however the
European Commission in approval through Regulati®d®4 of December 11, 2012 postponed by
one year the application date which was therefatablished as for periods beginning from
January 1, 2014 (or subsequent for new entitiegitbrdifferent reporting dates).

Regulation 1255/2012 amends/includes the follovgtagndards:

The inclusion of the new IFRS 13 — Fair value measent, which defines a single

framework for the fair value measurement and prewid complete guide on the fair value
measurement of financial and non-financial assadsliabilities. The new standard does not
introduce significant changes in relation to the akthe fair value, but rather indicates how
to measure the fair value when its applicatiorecuired or permitted.

The amendments of IFRS 1 — First-time adoptionF&kS, in particular for the paragraphs
(D26/30) concerning the “serious hyperinflation’inmiple. In particular the amendment
states that if an entity decides on transitionRBS$ to measure assets and liabilities at fair
value and to utilise this fair value as a replacetmef cost in the opening balance
sheet/financial position in compliance with IFR$the cases of serious hyperinflation the
first financial statements that the entity prepanesompliance with IFRS must explain how
and why the entity had a functional currency whjptesented both of the following
characteristics and why it subsequently ceaseddegss them:

(@) for all entities with operations and accoumtshis currency a general index
of reliable prices is not available;

(b)  the possibility of exchange between the curyeand a relatively stable
foreign currency is not available.

The entry into force is established for periodsitweigg January 1, 2013.

Regulation 1256/2012 amends the following standards

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: adddl disclosure adjusting an error
concerning the non-elimination of paragraph 13 daating elimination) with updating of
Regulation 1205 (Official Gazette No. 305 23.11.IMNhe present amendment eliminates
paragraph 13 and includes paragraphs 13A-13F.

Following the amendments introduced to IFRS 7, RS was simultaneously amended
(Financial instruments: presentation).

The entry into force of the regulations takes plateccordance with the elimination of
paragraph 13 (applicability from January 1, 2018) af the other amendments (from January
1, 2014).
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e On March 5, 2013 Regulation (EC) 183/2013 of them@ission of March 4, 2013 was
published in the Official Gazette L 61 which adogtite amendments to IFRS 1 First time
adoption of International Reporting Standards —&pn&ment loans. The amendments to IFRS 1
concern government loans at interest rate lowar tharket rates and the objective is to exempt
new users of the IFRS from full retrospective aggdion of the relative provisions on passage to
IFRS. Therefore the amendments to IFRS 1 introduettw exception to the retrospective
application of the IFRS, requiring new users to pbnwith the provisions established by IAS
39 - Financial instruments: Recognition and measerg and of IAS 20 — Accounting for
government grants and disclosure on governmengtassie prospectively to government loans
in place on passage to IFRS.

Companies must apply the amendments to IFRS Jedatast from the initial date of their first
financial year from January 1, 2013.

The accounting principles described below were iadpin a uniform manner for all the periods
presented.

Note 2 - Accounting Principles Adopted

Summary of the main accounting principles and policies

The Financial Statements of Italtel S.p.A. wereppred in accordance with the general cost criteria,
except in cases specifically described in the failhg notes where the “fair value” was applied.

All figures are in thousands of Euro, unless othsevetated.

The principal measurement criteria utilised arecdbed below.

A Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at aseclor production cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and any loss in value. The cost ireduall charges directly incurred for bringing tlsset to
their condition for use, as well as dismantling aechoval charges which will be incurred consequént
contractual obligations, which require the assdte@eturned to its original condition.

The expenses incurred for the maintenance andrsephian ordinary and/or cyclical nature are disect
charged to the income statement in the year in twthey are incurred. The capitalisation of the gost
relating to the expansion, modernisation or impmoeat of owned tangible assets or of those held in
leasing, is made only when they satisfy the requéngs to be separately classified as an assetiofan
asset in accordance with the component approachilaBly, the replacement costs of components
relating to complex assets are allocated as aasdtslepreciated over their residual useful lifelevkiie
residual value of the component subject to replacerns recorded in the income statement.

The initial value of property, plant and equipméntadjusted for depreciation on a systematic basis,
calculated on a straight-line basis when the assatailable and ready for use, based on the ef&ima
useful life, net of the recoverable value.

The estimated useful life for Italtel S.p.A of th@rious categories of assets is as follows:

= Industrial buildings 33 years
= Plant and machinery 5-10 years
= Commercial and industrial equipment 4 years
= Other assets 4-10 years

The useful life of property, plant and equipment aheir residual value are reviewed annually and
updated, where necessary, at the end of each year.
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Land is not depreciated.

When the asset to be depreciated is composed afaefy identifiable elements whose useful lifdats
significantly from the other parts of the asseg ttepreciation is made separately for each patef
asset, with the application of the “component apphd principle.

B Leased assets

The assets held through finance lease contracesenthe majority of the risks and rewards relatethe
ownership of an asset have been transferred tell&lp.A., are recognised as assets of ItaltelAS gt
their fair value or, if lower, at the current valoé the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability due to the lessor is recorded in the finel statements under financial payables. Thetaisse
depreciated applying the same criteria and rategiquisly indicated for the other tangible assetsept
where the duration of the lease contract is lolantthe useful life and there is not a reasonadi@inty

of the transfer of ownership of the asset at themab expiry date of the contract; in this case, the
depreciation is over the duration of the leasereght Any gains realised on the sale of leasedtasse
recorded under deferred income and recorded innt@me statement over the duration of the lease
contract.

The payments are broken down into principal andré@dt amounts. The interest amounts are calculated
S0 as to produce a constant interest rate on #igduad payable.

The leased assets where the lessor bears the tpaybthe risks and rewards related to an asset are
recorded as operating leases. Costs related tatiqgeteases are recognised on a straight-lines toasr
the duration of the lease.

C Intangible fixed assets

An intangible asset is a non-monetary asset, ffiailie and without physical substance, controllabid
capable of generating future economic benefitssérassets are recorded at purchase and/or praductio
cost, including the costs of bringing the assets@urrent use, net of accumulated amortisatiad, any
loss in value. Interest charges matured duringfandhe development of intangible assets are cliarge
directly to the income statement. Amortisation bsgiwhen the asset is available for use and is
recognised on a systematic basis in relation taek&lual possibility of use and thus over thenested
useful life of the asset, net of the residual recable value.

0] Goodwill

The goodwill is represented by the excess of thehase cost incurred compared to the net fair yaltie
the acquisition date, of assets and liabilitiessT not subject to systematic amortisation bpegodic
impairment test is made on the carrying value eabcounts. The impairment test on goodwill isiedrr
out at least annually. This test is made with esfee to the “cash generating unit” to which thedyait

is attributed. A reduction in the value of the gailis recorded when the recoverable value of the
goodwill is lower than the carrying value. The reemble value is the higher between the fair valude
cash generating unit, net of selling costs, andréfegtive value in use (see the subsequent poifdarD
further details concerning the determination of ttedue in use). Goodwill may not be restated in
subsequent years.

When the reduction in value deriving from the tisshigher than the value of the goodwill allocated
the cash generating unit the residual amount égated to the assets included in the cash gengnatih
in proportion to their carrying value. This alloicat has as its minimum limit, the highest valuenssn:

= the fair value of the asset less costs to sell;
= the value in use, as defined above.
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(i)  Research and development costs

Research and development costs are recorded imdbene statement in the year incurred, with the
exception of development costs recorded under giltden assets when they satisfy the following
conditions:

= the project is clearly identified and the relatedts are reliably identifiable and measurable;
= the technical feasibility of the project is demoatdd,;

= the intention and the capacity to complete thegmtoind sell the intangible assets generated from
the project is demonstrated;

= a potential market exists or, in the case of irdkuse, the use of the intangible asset is denatesir
for the production of the intangible assets geeeray the project;

= the technical and financial resources necessarhécompletion of the project are available.

The amount of the development costs are recordddruntangible assets from the date in which the
result generated from the project is commercialigedortisation is on a straight line basis overeaiqd
of 3 years, which represents the duration of thienase of the useful life of the expenses capitalis

(i) Industrial patents and intellectual propertights
Charges concerning the acquisition of industrid¢pts and licenses over the long-term are captalis

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basierder to allocate the costs incurred for thguagition
of the right over the shorter between the expeat#idation and the duration of the relative righftom
the moment in which the rights acquired are exabtes

D Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the tangible and ilienfixed assets with definite life are analysed t
identify the existence of any indicators, eitheteinally or externally to Italtel S.p.A., of impaient.
Where these indications exist, an estimate oféleverable value of the above-mentioned assetadem
recording any write-down in the income statemerite Tecoverable value of an asset is the higher
between the fair value less costs to sell andatsevin use, where this latter is the fair valuetted
estimated future cash flows from the use of thetaasd those from its disposal at the end of tledulis
life. In defining the value in use, the expectedufa cash flows are discounted utilising a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current marketsssaent of the time value of money, and the spetsics

of the asset. For an asset that does not genesffident independent cash flows, the realisableieas
determined in relation to the cash-generating tonithich the asset belongs.

A reduction in value is recognised in the inconaesnent when the carrying value of the asset, tineof
cash-generating unit to which it is allocated,ighlr than the recoverable amount. Where the reason
the write-down no longer exist, the book valuelaf asset is restated through the income statenng i,

the value at which the asset would be recordeda ifvrite-down had taken place and amortisation had
been recorded.

In the case in which the value in use is lower ttenbook value of the cash generating unit, thyatiee
difference is firstly recognised to goodwill, if ggent, until the full write-down of the CGU. Funthe
reductions in value are recognised proportionallthe other assets of the cash generating unitb®bk
value of the assets is not reduced below the highlele between the recoverable value and zero.
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E Financial instruments

Financial assets
The financial assets are classified, on initiabgggtion, in one of the following categories andasered
as follows:

= Loans and receivableshey are financial instruments, principally rélgtto trade receivables, non-
derivative, not listed on an active market, fromichhfixed or determinable payments are expected.
They are stated as current assets except for amdustbeyond 12 months from the balance sheet
date, which are classified as non-current. Onahitecognition these assets are measured at fair
value and subsequently at amortised cost, on this b&the effective interest rate. When therenis a
indication of a reduction in value, the asset duced to the value of the discounted future cash
flows obtainable. The losses in value are recognisehe income statement. When, in subsequent
periods, the reasons for the write-down no longéstethe value of the assets is restated up to the
value deriving from the application of the amontis®st where no write-down had been applied.

Available-for-sale investmentshey are non-derivative financial instruments tlaaé explicitly
designated in this category or are not classifie@ny of the previous categories. These financial
assets are valued on initial recognition at falugaand the valuation gains or losses are allocated
an equity reserve. They are recognised in the iecstatement only when the financial asset is sold,
or, in the case of negative cumulative changes,nwihés considered that the reduction in value
already recorded under equity cannot be recovém@ddebt securities only, if in a subsequent period
the fair value increases and the increase may tlggcbe related to an event which occurs after th
impairment was recognised to the income statem#msmpairment is eliminated, with the amount
reversed recognised to the income statement. liti@ador debt securities the recognition of the
relative returns based on the amortised cost mathedecognised to the income statement, together
with the effects relating to the changes in excleargtes, while the changes in exchange rates
concerning AFS capital instruments are recognisedthe specific net equity reserve. The
classification as a current or non-current asspédés on the strategic choices concerning thehengt
of time the asset is held for and from the tragingperties of the asset; they are recognised teicur
assets when realisation is expected within 12 nsofidm the balance sheet date.

Investments in other companiae classified on acquisition under “availabledale” financial assets
within non-current assets; they are measured iatvidue or at cost in the case of non-listed
investments or investments for which the fair vakiaot reliable or may not be established, adfuste
for any impairments according to IAS 39 (Finandmstruments: recognition and measurement). The
changes in the value of investments classifiedvadable for sale, if valued at cost, are recoghise
directly to the income statement, while if measua¢dair value are recognised to a shareholders’
equity reserve which will be reversed to the incatagement on sale or if an impairment occurs.

= Investments in subsidiaries and associated comparliee companies in which lItaltel S.p.A.
independently has the power to determine the gfiathoices of the company in order to receive
the relative benefits are considered subsidiarypzonies. Generally, control is presumed to exist
when, directly or indirectly, more than half of irg rights exercisable at the Shareholders’ AGM
are held, considering also the so-called potenti&ds i.e. votes related to convertible instruments
The companies in which Italtel S.p.A. exercisegyaificant influence in the strategic choices o th
company are considered associated companies, ghheithout control, considering also the so-
called potential votes i.e. votes related to cotilvier instruments; significant influence is presuime
when lItaltel S.p.A. holds, directly or indirectlynore than 20% of votes exercisable at the
Shareholders’AGM.

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at acquiisitiost including direct charges. Where there is
objective evidence of an impairment, its recovaryerified comparing the carrying value with the
relative recoverable value, represented by thednigktween the fair value, net of selling costs, an
the value in use. In the absence of a binding sadesement, the fair value is estimated on thesbhasi
of the values in an active market, from recentdaations or on the basis of the best information
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available to reflect the amount which the entityldoobtain from the sale of the assets and, if
significant and reasonably determinable, net ofdisposal charges. The cash flow is determined on
the basis of reasonable and documented assumptmmesented by the best estimates of the
expected economic conditions, giving greater sigaifce to the indications obtained from outside
sources. Discounting is carried out at a rate whidlects the current measurement of the time value
of money and the specific risks of the activitiest reflected in the cash flow estimates. The risk
deriving from any losses exceeding the net egsitycorded in a specific account up to the amount
the parent company is committed to comply with legaimplicit obligations in relation to the
investee or in any case to cover the losses.

If the reasons for the recognition of the impairinieiss no longer exist, the investments valued at
cost are re-measured with recognition of any ralens the income statement to the account
“Income (charges) from investments”.

Financial assets are derecognised from the balsimeet when the right to receive the cash flows from
the instrument ceases and ltaltel S.p.A. has tearesf all the risks and rewards relating to thérimsent
and the relative control.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities relate to loans, trade paysbhnd other commitments to be paid, and are lipitia
valued at fair value and subsequently at amortteesd, using the effective interest rate. When thee
change in the expected cash flows and it is passibestimate them reliably, the value of the loaires
recalculated to reflect this change based on theagrent value of the expected cash flows anchef t
internal yield initially determined. The financigdbilities are classified under current liabilgieexcept
when Italtel S.p.A. has an unconditional right ®fed their payment for at least 12 months after the
balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities are derecognised on settletmére. when the contractual obligation is satidfie
cancelled or matures.

Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are assets and liabilitesognised at fair value. The derivatives are diassas
hedging instruments when the relation between thdévative and the hedged item is formally
documented and the effectiveness of the hedgepdiesily verified, is high. When the hedged
derivatives cover the risk of change of the failueaof the instruments hedged (fair value hedgg, e.
hedge in the variability of the fair value of agliatilities at fixed rate), these are recordedadt value
through the income statement; therefore, the hedigistruments are adjusted to reflect the changes i
fair value associated to the risk covered.

When the derivatives hedge the risk of changesiéncash flows of the hedge instrument (cash flow
hedge; e.g. coverage of changes in cash flow @ft/iabilities due to changes in the interest ratde
changes in the fair value of the derivatives aitgaily recognised under equity and subsequentigugh
the income statement in line with the economica#@roduced from the operation hedged.

The satisfaction of the requirements establishedAsy 39 for the purposes of hedge accounting is
periodically verified.

The changes in the fair value of the derivativesictv do not satisfy the conditions for hedge actiogn
are recorded through the income statement.
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Measurement of the fair value of financial instrumse

For the determination of the fair value of finandi@struments listed on active markets (bid pridag
relative market quotation is used at the balan@etstlate. In the absence of an active market,dine f
value is determined utilising valuation models whare principally based on financial variablesya

as taking into account, where possible, the prieesgnised in recent transactions and the quosatdn
similar financial instruments.

F Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of purchasgreduction cost and realisable value represebyed
the amount that the Company expects to obtain thweir sale in the normal course of operations. The
cost of raw material, consumables, finished proglaod goods is calculated applying the FIFO method.

G Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents principally include casink deposits on demand and other highly liquid
short-term investments (transformed into liquiditythin ninety days). The elements included in net
liquidity, if in Euro, are recognised at the nonimalue corresponding to the fair value and if irother
currency at the current exchange rate at the balgheet date. In order to calculate the net ligpidne
current accounts included in the account "ShortitBnancial liabilities" are deducted from the casid
cash equivalents.

H Shareholders’ Equity

0] Share capital
Share capital consists of fully paid-up and sulbscticapital.

(i)  Reserves

They consist of specific capital reserves. In pattr, they include the legal reserve through miovis
recognised in accordance with Article 2430 of theilode, which are increased by 1/26f the net
profits of the Company until the reserve reach&d bf the share capital of the Company. Oncé" 16
the share capital is reached the reserve - if sulesely reduced for any reason - is integrated with
annual provisions as indicated above.

(i)  Treasury shares

In the case in which the Company acquires treashayes the value of the shares acquired is deducted
from net equity until the shares are cancelled ald.sThe value of treasury shares comprises the
acquisition costs under the FIFO method. The ecaneffifiects deriving from any subsequent sale are
recorded to net equity.

(iv)  Other reserves including the net result

These include the net results of the current amVipus periods which was neither distributed nor
allocated to reserves (in the case of profits)emapitalised (in the case of losses) and the pesitr
negative effects of transactions directly recoghi®enet equity, net of any tax effects.

I Employee benefits

0] Employee benefit provisions

The Company recognises different forms of defineddfit plans and defined contribution plans, irelin
with the local conditions and practices in the ddes in which it carries out its activities. Theemiums
paid for defined contribution plans are recordethmincome statement for the part matured in da.y

The defined benefit plans, which include employesving indemnities in accordance with article 2120
of the Civil Code, are based on the period of emplent service and on the remuneration received by
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each employee over a pre-determined period of gmmat. In particular, the liability relating to
employment leaving indemnity is recognised in timaricial statements based on the current actuarial
value, as qualifying as a benefit due to employeesd on a defined benefit plan. The recogniticinén
financial statements of a defined benefit plan meguan estimate of the value of the services radtoy
employees for their employment service in curremt previous years through actuarial techniques and
the discounting of these services in order to ddtes the current value of commitments.

The annual discount rate adopted was the valukeoiBoxx Corporates A with duration between 7 and
10 years at the valuation date.

The actuarial profits and losses, related to amemdsto the actuarial parameters utilised previguske
recognised based on the "corridor" approach -ithanly when exceeding 10% of the current value of
the commitments of Italtel S.p.A. at the end of pinevious period. In this case, the amount excegedin
10% is recognised to the income statement.

With the introduction of Legislative Decree No. 123l the possibility is established to allocate dipo

of employee leaving indemnity for the financingtbé complementary pension. The 2007 Finance Law,
which postponed to January 1, 2007 the introductbrthe new complementary pension regulation
established by Law No. 296/2006, establishes ferabnferment to the complimentary pension of the
employee leaving indemnity maturing, explicitlyiomplicitly, by June 30, 2007.

Following the publication of the enacting decree tbé 2007 Finance Act in relation to the
Complementary Pension Reform concerning the Empldy@aving Indemnity, the accounts prepared
after the publication of these decrees must apipdy Maluation criteria in accordance with the new
regulations.

Account was taken of the effects deriving from tiev provisions, measuring for IFRS purposes only
the liability relating to the Employee Leaving Imdieity matured that remained in the company, as the
portion maturing is paid to a separate entity (clemgntary pension or INPS fund) without these
payments resulting in further obligations on thenpany related to the employment service in theréutu
and are therefore considered defined contributenmsjpn plans and recognised as such.

Also for the employees that, explicitly, decided nmintain the Employee Leaving Indemnity in the
company, and therefore in accordance with the pteviegulations, the Employee Leaving Indemnity
matured from January 1, 2007 was paid to the TrgaBund managed by INPS and was therefore
considered a defined contribution plan.

(i)  Share-based payments
A number of directors, employees, managers andc&atributors are beneficiaries of a stock opticanpl

In accordance with IFRS 2 — Share-based paymdrs;urrent value of rights allocated is established
for the stock options, at the vesting date andgeised in the income statement under personne$ cost
throughout the period between the vesting datdefright and its maturation and directly to an Bgui
reserve.

These plans provide that, in the case of the qootaf the Parent Company, the option exerciseopleri
are brought forward. The Company has taken intsidenation these contractual conditions in the fair
value of the options.

In the case of instruments subject to vesting ¢ not at market value, the cumulative costexd
the expectations on the number of instruments wiitltvest.
At the moment of the exercise of the stock options:

= in the case in which new shares are issued, the\adlthe allocation of the exercised stock options
net of the direct costs attributable to the tratisagfor the part equal to the nominal value of th
shares issued, is allocated to the share capitdl tiee remaining part recognised as a changeen th
"Reserve” account;
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= in the case in which shares held in portfolio atidéised, the book value of the shares utilised
represents a decrease of the "Treasury SharesUratcand the difference between this value and
the value of allocation of the exercised stockamirepresents a change in the "Reserve” account.

J Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges relate to costs expenses of a defined nature and of certain or
probable existence whose amount or date of ocaerés uncertain as of the balance sheet date.
Provisions are recorded when: (i) the existenca alurrent obligation is probable, legal or implied,
deriving from a past event; (ii) it is probable ttitampliance with the obligation will result in &arge;

(i) the amount of the obligation can be reasopadtimated. Provisions are recorded at the value
representing the best estimate of the amount H&tCompany would rationally pay to discharge the
obligation or to transfer it to a third party aethalance sheet date. When the financial effetietime

is significant and the payment dates of the obibget can be reliably estimated, the provision shall
discounted at the average cost of debt to the comhe increase of the provision due to the pagssin
time is recorded in the income statement in the@ac“Net financial income/(charges)”.

The costs which the company must incur to implemesiructuring programmes are recorded in the year
in which the programme is formalised and it is extpd that the restructuring will take place.

The provisions are periodically updated to refldet changes in the estimate of the costs, of the ti
period and of the discounting rate; the revisiorestimates are recorded in the same income statemen
accounts in which the provision was recorded.

The notes illustrate the potential liabilities repented by: (i) possible obligations (but not pliép
deriving from past events, whose existence wiltbefirmed only on the occurrence or otherwise @& on
or more uncertain future events not fully under ¢batrol of the entity; (ii) current obligationsriléng
from past events whose amount cannot be relialiijnated or whose fulfilment will likely not incur a
charge.

K Recognition of sales and services revenues
Revenues from sale are recognised on the effectimsfer of risks and rewards typically connectaith w
ownership.

The revenues concerning the provision of serviaes racognised based on the effective state of
completion of the service.

Revenues are recorded net of returns, discountpr@mdiums, as well as related direct taxes.

L Public grants

Public grants are recognised when there is a redsemcertainty that the conditions establishedHhsy t
Government Bodies for their concession will be isegl and are recognised in direct correlation ® th
costs incurred.

The public grants relating to property, plant ampiipment are recorded as deferred revenue in the
account “Other liabilities” under non-current liitiés and “Other payables and liabilities” of ok
liabilities, respectively for the long and shortnteportions. The deferred revenue is recorded @ th
income statement as income on a straight-line basaéccordance with the useful life of the asset to
which the grant was received.

Operating grants are recorded in the income stateime¢he account “Other income”.

M Recognition of costs
Costs are recorded when relating to goods andcssrgold or consumed in the year or when there is n
future utility.

N Income taxes
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Current income taxes are calculated based on theags of the assessable income for the year, agply
the current tax rates at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are calculatedr@ntemporary differences between the assessaldeolhas
the assets and the liabilities and the relativekbemlues in the financial statements. The defeteed
assets are recognised only for those amounts fachwih is probable there will be future assessable
income to recover the amounts.

They are compensated when there is a legal righbwipensation. Deferred tax assets and liabilgies
determined with the tax rates that are expectdzbtapplied in the years when the temporary diffegen
will be settled.

Current and deferred income taxes are recordechéniicome statement, except those relating to
accounts directly credited or debited to equitywimich case the fiscal effect is recognised diyetdl
equity. Taxes are compensated when the incomestapplied by the same fiscal authority, there is a
legal right of compensation and the payment ofibiebalance is expected.

Other taxes not related to income, such as taxgsaperty, are included under “Operating expenses”.

O Translation of accounts in currencies other tharthe Euro
Foreign currency transactions are converted into Eging the exchange rate at the transaction date.

The foreign exchange gains and losses resultinm fioe settlement of transactions and from the
translation at the balance sheet date of monets®ts and liabilities denominated in foreign cuies
are recognised in the income statement.

P Dividends
They are recorded when the right of the sharehsltierreceive the payment arises, which normally
occurs at the shareholders' meeting for the digidh of dividends.

Note 3 - Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements reqthieeDirectors to apply accounting principles and
methods that, in some circumstances, are basediffioutties and subjective valuations and
estimates based on the historical experience amdingstions which are from time to time
considered reasonable and realistic based on fla¢ive circumstances. The application of these
estimates and assumptions impact upon the amoeptsted in the financial statements, such as the
balance sheet, the income statement and the aastsfhtement, and on the disclosures in the notes t
the accounts. The final outcome of the accountshe financial statements which use the above-
mentioned estimates and assumptions may differ fttoee reported in the financial statements due to
the uncertainty which characterises the assumptmus the conditions upon which the estimates are
based.

Note 4 - Significant accounting principles

The accounting principles which require greaterjestivity by the Directors in the preparation okth
estimates and for which a change in the underlgmgditions or the assumptions may have a significan
impact on the restated financial statements asdlyidescribed below.

= Impairmentsin accordance with the accounting principles &gbby the Company, the tangible and
intangible assets with definite life are verifiedascertain if there has been a loss in value wikich
recorded by means of a write-down, when it is abers@d there will be difficulties in the recovery of
the relative net book value through use. The \a@&ifon of the existence of the above-mentioned
difficulties requires the Directors to make valoas based on the information available within the
Company and from the market, as well as from hisabrexperience. In addition, when it is
determined that there may be a potential redudtiovalue, the company determines this through
using the most appropriate technical valuation wdthavailable. The same valuation techniques are
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applied for the determination of the recoverabitifygoodwill; these verifications are carried otit a
least annually. The correct identification of theicators of the existence of a potential reduction
value as well as the estimates for their deterntnalepends on factors which may vary over time
impacting upon the valuations and estimates madaéirectors.

= Depreciation of tangible fixed assef3epreciation represents a significant cost fa @ompany.

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depted on a straight-line basis on the estimated
useful life of the asset. The useful life of theefil assets is determined by the Directors when the
fixed assets are purchased. This is based on s¢haribal experiences for similar fixed assets, reark
conditions and considerations relating to futurergs which could have an impact on the useful life,
such as changes in technology. Therefore, the teféeaiseful life may be different from the
estimated useful life. The Company periodically leates technological and sector changes to
update the residual useful life. This periodic updeould result in a change in the depreciation
period and therefore in the depreciation chardeture years.

= Deferred tax assetthe accounting of the deferred tax assets is madbe basis of the expectations
of future assessable income. The valuation of ¥peeed assessable income in order to record the
deferred tax asset depends upon factors which imaryge over time and result in significant effects
on the valuation of the deferred tax assets.

= Provisions for legal and tax riskprovisions are recorded against the legal andalffisisks
representative of the risks. The value of the miovis recorded in the financial statements relating
these risks represents the best estimate at ttmhtle by Management. This estimate results in the
adoption of assumptions concerning factors whicly ofenge over time and which may, therefore,
have significant effects compared to the presdithages made by the Directors for the preparation
of the company separate financial statements.

=  Guarantee Provisionslongside the plant supplied, the Company guaesntechnical assistance for
a determined period subsequent to sale. The costeming the value of the assistance which must
be provided, in fulfilment of the guarantee givas,estimated by management. The value of the
provisions recorded in the financial statementatigd) to these costs represents the best estirhate a
that date made by Management. This estimate resultise adoption of assumptions concerning
factors which may change over time and which magrefore, have significant effects compared to
the present estimates made by the Directors fopitearation of the company financial statements.

Note 5 Disclosure on financial risks

Credit risk

In relation to the company objectives and poligescerning the credit risk, reference should beeartad
the paragraph in the Directors’ Report.

Liquidity risk

In relation to the company objectives and policiescerning the liquidity risk, reference shouldrbade
to the paragraph in the Directors’ Report.

Interest rate risk

The Company utilises external debt sources andstavshort term liquidity in deposit accounts. In
addition, the Company factors receivables derifingn their commercial activities on an ongoing bkasi
Changes in the market interest rates impact onctst and return of the various forms of loans,
commitments and factoring of receivables with daafon the net financial charges.

Currency risk

The Company is subject to market risk deriving frituatuations in the exchange rates in currenceeis a
operates on an international basis.
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Italtel S.p.A. carries out purchase operations @and lesser extent sales operations in U.S. Dolksss
the Euro is the functional currency of the finahatatements, any changes in the Euro/ U.S. Dollar
exchange rate have the following effects:

= Anincrease in the value of the Euro has positifeecés on operating profits and negative effects on
revenues from sales and services;

= A decrease in the value of the Euro has negatieetsfon operating income and positive effects on
revenues from sales and services.

Operations expressed in currencies other than tine &e insignificant within the overall activitie$
Italtel S.p.A.; therefore, the effects of changmesthe exchange rates between the Euro and foreign
currencies other than the U.S. Dollar impact then@any result to a marginal degree.

Italtel S.p.A., in order to reduce the effects dfaeges in the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate, has
undertaken derivative contracts to hedge the exgghaate risk on purchases in U.S. Dollars. In the
financial statements prepared in accordance wiRSIFapproved by the European Commission the
derivative contracts must be valued at their redafair value at the balance sheet date. The raltioh
these derivatives contracts is detailed as follows:

Forward(*) Other forms(*) Total
December 31, 2012 8,413 - 8,413
December 31, 2011 26,965 - 26,965

(*) At exchange rate of December 31

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 the fair value ofddwévative contracts was as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Interest Rate Swaps - -
Exchange risk hedges (446) 1,617

Italtel S.p.A. monitors the principal exposure t@kange risk; however at the balance sheet date the
are no hedges considered necessary against sucsuegs.

Note 6 - Criteria utilised for the transition from Italian GAAP to IFRS approved

by the European Commission

Format for the presentation of the financial statements

For the Balance Sheet the “non-current/currentéda was adopted, while for the Income Statemeat t
classification of costs according to their naturasvadopted. For the cash flow statement the irtdirec
method was adopted.

Description of the significant effects of the transition either with regard to the classification of the
accounts in the financial statements or in relation to their measurement and, therefore, to the
consequent effects on the balance sheet and income statement

The effects of the transition to IFRS approved hg tEuropean Commission, both in terms of
reclassifications and of adjustments to the balastueet at January 1, 2007 (transition date) and at
December 31, 2007, in addition to the net equityaatuary 1, 2007 and at December 31, 2007 and the
2007 income statement, are highlighted in the niméise financial statements at December 31, 2008.

In the notes to the Financial Statements at Decer8ihe 2008, the nature and the amounts of the
adjustments which were implemented on the tramsttid FRS are also described.
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Note 7 - Property, plant and equipment

The accounts property, plant and machinery andefaéive movements were as follows:

2011 Land Industrial Plant and Industrial Other Fixed Total
buildings machinery equipment assets assets in
progress

Historic cost
Balance at January 1,

2011 327 71,344 30,115 49,515 87,334 154 238,789
Increases 13,053 35,987 230 1,313 1,209 395 52,187
Write-downs/write-backs 9,681 9,681
Disposals (9,681) (47,300) (4,243) (1,403) (62,627)
Reclassifications - - - 56 36 (100) (8)
Balance at December 31,

2011 13,380 60,031 26,102 50,884 87,176 449 238,022

Accumulated
depreciation
Balance at January 1,

2011 - (34,998) (23,717) (44,327) (85,652) - (188,694)
Depreciation (870) (3,107) (594) (2,969) (920) - (8,460)
Write-downs/write-backs (4,518) - - - - - (4,518)
Disposals 4518 22,072 2,052 - 1,300 - 29,942
Reclassifications - - - - - 0
Balance at December 31,
2011 (870) (16,033) (22,259) (47,296) (85,272) - (171,730)
Net book value
Balance at January 1,
2011 327 36,346 6,398 5,188 1,682 154 50,095
Balance at December 31,
2011 12,510 43,998 3,843 3,588 1,904 449 66,292
2012 Land Industrial Plant and Industrial Other Fixed Total

buildings machinery equipment assets assets in

progress

Historic cost
Balance at January 1,
2012 13,380 60,031 26,102 50,884 87,176 449 238,022
Increases - 55 193 816 231 109 1,404
Write-downs/write-backs - - - - - (20) (20)
Disposals (13,053) (35,947) (21) (215) (7,581) - (56,817)
Reclassifications - 50 82 189 39 (394) (34)
Balance at December 31,
2012 327 24,189 26,356 51,674 79,865 144 182,555
Accumulated
depreciation
Balance at January 1,
2012 (870) (16,033) (22,259) (47,296) (85,272) - (171,730)
Depreciation (870) (3,106) (592) (2,244) (775) - (7,587)
Write-downs/write-backs - - - - - - 0
Disposals 1,740 4,793 12 196 7,556 - 14,297
Reclassifications - - - - - 0
Balance at December 31,
2012 0 (14,346) (22,839) (49,344) (78,491) - (165,020)

Net book value

Balance at January 1,

2012 12,510 43,998 3,843 3,588 1,904 449 66,292
Balance at December 31,

2012 327 9,843 3,517 2,330 1,374 144 17,535




Financial Statements

Property plant and equipment increased overallirp B,404 thousand.

During the year, investments were made in industgaipment, principally regarding that used foe th
development of software solutions and for the péatt of products launched on the market, for al tot
Euro 816 thousand.

Disposals, amounting to Euro 56,817 thousand, del&Euro 49,000 thousand, depreciated for Euro
6,533 thousand, concerning the cancellation ofdagad buildings under finance leases following the
dissolution of the rental contact of the Castallaiffices (Settimo Milanese), in accordance with th
Restructuring Agreement. The new rental contragnes on January 10, 2013 and with effect from
December 31, 2012, establishes for the reductidgheotontractual duration and of the annual redtian
classifiable as an operating lease according triational Accounting Standards.

For further details on the operation, referencaukhbe made to page 33 of the Directors’ Report.

During the year Other assets were also disposefdroEuro 7,581 thousand, of which Euro 7,089
thousand concerning obsolete or damaged EDP fallyatiated.

At December 31, 2012 the land, industrial buildingents and machinery, industrial equipment and
other assets, included assets subject to first leeetgages, commitments and special privilegespseh

gross value amounted to Euro 193,528 thousandnggeguarantees in favour of UniCredit S.p.A. in
relation to the loans received by Italtel S.p.Ad @escribed in Note 25.

Note 8 Goodwill

The account goodwill and the relative movementsevesr follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Value at January 1 169,564 299,564
Decreases - -
Write-downs - (130,000)
Value at December 31 169,564 169,564

The Goodwill originated following the assumptionfafli control of the ex-ltaltel S.p.A by the prevs
parent company ltaltel Acquisition S.p.A, calledlt¢l S.p.A., after the merger be incorporation and
represents the difference between the acquisitist and the consolidated net equity at December 31,
2000, net of the accumulated amortisation at Deeerith, 2003 and the write-down of December 31,
2009 and December 31, 2011.

In relation to the intangible assets with inde@niiseful life, including Goodwill, IAS 36 requirdise
measurement of the recoverable value at least dyprarad when indications exist of a possible lass i
value. The Recoverable Value of an asset is thieehigetween the Fair Value Net of Sales Costsand i
Value in Use. In the case in which the Recoverafarie of the asset is lower than the book value, th
book value must be reduced to the Recoverable \@idethis reduction constitutes a loss to be resbrd
to the income statement.

IAS 36 defines the criteria and the rules to b&fekd to carry out impairment tests, indicatingt tese
criteria are applied both to individual assets amdyroup of assets called Cash-Generating Units or
CGU’s.

The Value in Use is defined by IAS 36 as the presatue of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from an asset. The calculation of the Vafuese of an asset involves an estimate of therdut
cash inflows and outflows which will derive frometltontinuous use of the asset and its final didposa
and the application of an appropriate discount rHbe estimate of future cash flows is based omtbst
recent budget and forecasts approved by manageftanicash flows refer to an asset in the conditions
of its current use, without including expected etfefrom restructuring not committed to or from
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improvements in the conditions of use expectedhi future. The discount rate reflects the current
market valuations and the risks specifically coneeédo the businesses assets.

According to IAS 36 the best indication of the Pd@lue of an asset is the price defined withinradbig
sales agreement between independent counterpaatipssted by costs directly associated to the
operation. The standard indicates that, in the gasehich the sales agreement does not exist, ahe f
value is estimated based on the best availablenration in order to reflect the value attainabtenirthe
sale of the asset.

For the estimation of the Fair Value reference &hde made to the value indicators from transastion
for similar assets carried out within the same stdal sector, on regulated markets or in a private
context. The value indicators are generally exgess multipliers relating to the income indicators

However, the sale price of an asset is often déteanin market practice based on the future expecte
cash flows from the asset. The Fair Value therefoag also be estimated utilising models based en th
future expected cash flows. In this case, and wiiifefrom the Value in Use, the estimates of thehca
flows may include the effects related to the aciand the restructuring necessary to bring thet &sse
conditions of most efficient use as long as thetmas and restructurings are reasonably implenbémta
by the potential purchaser and within the futurekagoutlook.

In the case of Italtel the process used for thesm@ag of the Recoverable Value of goodwill may be
summarised as follows.

In relation to the consolidation scope, given titeridependence between the cash flows generatia by
parent company and those of the foreign subsidiatie group of assets of the CGU for the contfol o
Goodwill were identified as corresponding to theality of the operational assets of the consolidate
financial statements, with the only exclusion &f &issets in relation to the account ‘Deferred spetd

In relation to the methodologies, the estimatethefRecoverable Value were carried out in relatmn
the Fair Value approach, as described in detaiV@bbased on the Discounted Cash Flows (the DCF
method) and a number of market multipliers. Theedast financial data for application of the
methodologies are prepared on a consolidated badislenominated in Euro and derive from the 2012-
2016 Plan of the Italtel Group approved by the BazrDirectors on November 28, 2012.

In relation to the financial structure of the l&lGroup and the financial sustainability of tharpfor
which reference should be made to the relevantgpapas of the Director's Report), the Recoverable
Value of the assets for the control of the Goodwills estimated in relation to the commitments and
based on financial data gross of leverage. Thenasts refer to operating assets considered wiltén t
going concern of the business, from a market ppatit’'s view point and based on a theoretically
financially efficient structure.

In relation to the methods applied, for the DCF hodta model was adopted with an explicit period of
future cash flows of four years and a residual @alalculated with an algorithm of the perpetuabme.
The discount rate of the cash flows and the resigdalue is the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC), calculated according to market practiced based on the prevailing financial structure far t
companies in the sector. The discount rate is thighted average of the rates relating to the pradci
countries of activity of the group, calculated wéimilar methods and consistency.

The parameters relating to the average ratesadilis the preparation of the impairment test appaddyy

the Board of Directors on December 3, 2012 forDi@F estimate of the Recoverable Value of the assets
of the CGU on a consolidated basis are as follavith indication in brakets of the correspondingesat
updated at December 31, 2012:

= income from assets without risk based on an tlaeteyield, at a recent date, of government
benchmark securities at 10 years of 5.0% (4.5%eaebber 31, 2012);

= cost of risk capital (KE) estimated with a CAPM aeband equal to 9.5% (8.8% at December
31, 2012);

= weighted average cost of capital correspondintp¢oKE rate based on the financial structure
entirely comprising own capital and therefore eqa&.5% (8.8% at December 31, 2012);



Financial Statements

= nominal growth rate of perpetual cash flows (GeRat line with the inflation rate of the Euro
and equal to 2.0% (2.0% at December 31, 2012).

For the multipliers reference was made to the iics of the value of capital employed by a nundfer
companies listed in the sector. The multiplierscan the forecast results for 2014. In greaterieta
FV/EBITDA multiplier equal to 4.4 and an FV/EBIT #tiplier of 5.9 were utilised. The multipliers were
applied to EBITDA and EBIT forecasts of the Ital@oup for 2014, net of the amortisation of reskarc
and development charges and forecast restructooisis.

Based on the methods and the parameters desciilmee,athe impairment test of December 3, 2012
established the Recoverable Value of the assetseo€EGU in the consolidated financial statements of
Euro 260 million.

In relation to the sensitivity of the results steimgnfrom the DCF method it is stated that, on a-fiér-
like basis, an increase (decrease) of 50 basistpoihthe WACC rate would result in a decrease
(increase) of the recoverable value of the assktSuoo 20 million. Again on a like-for-like basis
(including the WACC rate), an increase (decreaseéjOobasis points of the G-Rate would result in a
decrease (increase) of the recoverable value efsaks Euro 12 million.

The Directors, within the preparation of the finmhstatements at December 31, 2012, highlighted th
following considerations:

= The Business Plan prepared by the Board of Dirsata November 28, 2012, based on the
consolidated data at December 31, 2012 and theoatosfinancial performance of the Italtel
Group in the first months of 2013, was substantietinfirmed.

=  The parameters concerning the average ratesedtifie the DCF estimate of the Recoverable
Value of the assets of the CGU on a consolidatsishapdated at December 31, 2012, do not
highlight significant changes compared to thosésetl for the impairment test approved by
the Board of Directors on December 3, 2012, caroetlby a leading consultancy company
and issued on the same date.

Therefore the Directors consider the value of gdbbdwider the impairment test approved by the Board
of Directors on December 3, 2012 as confirmed.
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Note 9 - Other intangible assets

The account Other intangible assets and the relatovements were as follows:

Industrial patents, Development Fixed assets Other Total
intellectual property Costs in progress
rights, licenses and
similar rights
Historic cost
Sgllalnce at January 1 4,387 39,708 19 ; 44,114
Increases 374 23,689 480 - 24,543
Write-downs - - - - 0
Disposals - - - - 0
Amortisation (3,688) (28,600) - - (32,288)
Reclassifications 7 - (6) - 1
Dajance at December 3. 1,080 34,797 493 . 36,370
Increases 1,890 19,702 264 - 21,856
Write-downs (5) - (37) - (42)
Disposals - - - - 0
Amortisation (1,493) (22,463) - - (23,956)
Reclassifications 475 - (441) - 34
Balance at December 3: 1,047 32,036 279 i 34,262

2012

The investments in intangible assets amounted tw 24,856 thousand. In particular Euro 19,702
thousand was invested in research and innovatitvitaees and Euro 2,154 thousand in industrial ptte
and intellectual property rights, which principatlgncerned software applications acquired unden$ie
for unlimited time periods and software developnpofects.

In 2012 and 2011, the Research and Developmenitadicarried out by Italtel S.p.A. were as folw

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Research & Development 33,627 45,764
of which:
- capitalized 19,702 23,689
- recognised to the Income statement 13,925 22,075
Amortisation in the year of development costs 22,463 28,600

The net value of intangible assets generated iallgramounted to Euro 32,036 thousand and Euro
34,797 thousand respectively at December 31, 20d2811.

Note 10 Equity Investments

Equity investments report the following movements:
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Equity investments in Equity investments in Total

subsidiary companies  associated companies
Balance at January 1, 2011 13,239 198 13,437
Acquisitions / movements in the year 817 - 817
Reclassifications - - -
Disposals / liquidations (1,062) - (1,062)
Write-down / revaluations (1,013) - (1,013)
Balance at December 31, 2011 11,981 198 12,179
Acquisitions / movements in the year 102 - 102
Reclassifications - - -
Disposals / liquidations (206) - (206)
Write-down / revaluations 58 58
Balance at December 31, 2012 11,935 198 12,133

Acquisitions in the year concern the future shagital increase payments into the investee ItRitdand
S.P. Zo.o (Euro 102 thousand).

The decrease in investments due to Disposals/kdgjoils concerns the liquidation of the subsidiary
Italtel NGA S.p.A.. On April 17, 2012 the Sharehmigl Meeting of Italtel NGA S.p.A. approved the
advanced winding-up of the company and its subomissito liquidation with effect from the filing dat

of the deed at the Company Registration Officeunfel8, 2012. On October 29, 2012 the company was
removed from the Palermo Company Register.

On May 31, 2012 the liquidation of the investee panmy OOO ltaltel Russia in liquidation concluded.

The values of the individual investments, the clegnig the year and the relative figures are regdarte
Attachment 1.

At December 31, 2012 none of the associated corapdmaid securities listed on regulated markets.

Note 11 - Medium/long term financial assets

The account Medium/long-term financial assets araprised as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Equity investments in other companies 112 112
Total 112 112

The values of the individual investments, the clegnig the year and the relative figures are refddrte
Attachment 1.

The book value of the Medium/long-term financisdets approximates their fair value.

Note 12 — Other assets

This account Other assets is comprised of;

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Guarantee deposits 272 10,346
Tax receivables 381 381
Tax reimbursements requested 6,132 6,844
Others 10 -
Other non-current receivables doubtful debt prowvisi (373) (373)

Total 6,422 17,198
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The reduction in guarantee deposits on the preweas of Euro 10,075 thousand is due to the loskeof
deposit of Euro 10,000 thousand following the digson of the finance lease contract for the indakt
area of Castelletto.

On tax reimbursements requested for repaymenteisitenatures at an annual rate of 2% (Euro 113
thousand in 2012). During the year Euro 825 thodisanoncerning capital, was received from the Tax
Agency concerning the IRPEG 2003 tax credit recpee&ir repayment and utilised to offset the payment
of tax assessments concerning the collection ofuatsadue, on a provisional basis, for the pendasgs

at the First grade Tax Commission for VAT and IRddtlarations 2004/2005.

The tax receivables of various types, overdue dmbobtful recovery were fully written-down.

The book value of the other assets, net of prowgsiapproximates their fair value.

Note 13 - Deferred tax assets

This account Deferred tax assets is comprised of:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Deferred tax assets 80,960 73,416
Deferred tax liabilities (3,715) (3,785)
Total 77,245 69,631

Italtel compensated the deferred tax assets abilitlies as the legal right to compensation exists.

The breakdown of deferred taxes by type was asvistl

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/201231/12/2011

Temporary differences originate from:

- Capital grants and operating grants = - 2,146 2,760
- Accelerated depreciation - - 134 134

- Doubtful debts provision 2,696 2,602 - -

- Inventory obsolescence provision 15,269 14,764 - -

- Amortisation and depreciation 157 157 - -

- Other provisions for risks and charges 3,441 4,298 - -

- Surplus interest charges carried forward 13,046 13,046 - -

- Other - 1,039 588 -

- Deferred tax asset relating to tax losses inrp@ars 29,576 28,365 = -

- Deferred tax asset relating to tax losses cuyeat 16,775 -

Changes on first-time adoption of IFRS

- Discounting employee leaving indemnity provisior = - 832 873

- Restatement of land under finance lease at Cattbe = 1,230 - -

- Gain on sale and finance leases = 7,915 - -

- Adjustment in measurement of amortisation and

depreciation of fixed assets ) ) s 14

- Discounting of the payable for personnel mobility = - 1 4

Total 80,960 73,416 3,715 3,785

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 ltaltel S.p.A. reptak losses carried forward, respectively, of Euro
168,548 thousand and Euro 103,144 thousand. Agdirsabove-stated losses deferred tax assets for
Euro 46,351 thousand and for Euro 28,365 thousasplectively at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
recorded as it was considered that Italtel S.poblda benefit from the use of these losses from 2845
established by the Industrial Plan 2012-2016, ins@teration of the fact that the relevant tax ratiah
establishes the possibility for their use to offaey taxes due, without time limit and no longelyan

the five subsequent years to recognition. This iclemation was established also in the IndustriahPI
approved on February 26, 2013 which records fopthéod 2012-2017 deferred tax assets for an amount
of between Euro 75 and Euro 90 million.
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The principal change in the year concerns the effethe derecognition of the finance lease comtriac
which the balance of deferred tax assets relatinthé gain from the Sale and Lease Back operation
suspended to deferred income was recorded to ttemi@ statement and the restatement of finance
leasing land recorded directly to the Shareholdeggiity account for Euro 8,492 thousand.

At December 31, 2012 deferred tax assets of Euf@463thousand were recognised on excess interest
charges carried forward from the years between 208 2010. As established by Article 96 of the
Income Tax Law, modified by Law 244 of December 2dQ7 (Finance Law 2008), interest charges and
net accessory charges are deductible in the camespy tax period up to a limit of 30% of the gross
ordinary operating result. The excess may be dedufrom assessable income in subsequent years,
without time limits. This new regulation generatda: recognition of deferred taxes concerning the
financial charges to be carried forward as deduostio coming years for Euro 47,439 thousand.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 deferred tax assetsiaferred tax liabilities referring directly thet
account of net equity “Tax losses carried forwafat’ the first-time adoption of IAS/IFRS are broken
down as follows:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

- Resatement of land under finance leas
Castelletto - 1,230 - -

Total - 1,230 - -

Note 14 - Inventories

The account inventories and the related movemeeis as follows:

2011 Raw material, Products in Finished Advances Total

ancillary and work-in-  products and

consumables progress and goods for

semi-finished resale

Opening inventories
Balance at January 1 6,288 16,232 41,329 281 64,130
Changes in the year (86) 1,015 8,571 27 9,527
Dajance at December 3L, 6,202 17,247 49,900 308 73,657
Inventory obsolescence
provision
Balance at January 1 (6,284) (8,493) (19,082) - (33,859)
(Provision)/utilisation 82 90 (15,226) - (15,054)
Dajance at December 3L, (6,202) (8,403) (34,308) . (48,913)
Closing inventories
Balance at December 31, 0 8,844 15,592 308 24,744

2011
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2012 Raw material, Products in Finished Advances Total

ancillary and work-in-  products and

consumables progress and goods for

semi-finished resale

Opening inventories
Balance at January 1 6,202 17,247 49,900 308 73,657
Changes in the year (120) 2,931 (9,555) 442 (6,302)
Sgllaznce at December 31, 6,082 20,178 40,345 750 67,355
Inventory obsolescence
provision
Balance at January 1 (6,202) (8,403) (34,308) - (48,913)
(Provision) utilisation 120 (2,009) 53 - (1,836)
Dajance at December 3L, (6,082) (10,412) (34,255) . (50,749)
Closing inventories
Balance at December 31, 9,766 6,090 750 16,606
2012 0

Inventories include materials held at third parties Euro 47,378 thousand before obsolescence
provisions. These materials are stored in the abmtarehouse or in other smaller storage areasior o
client’s premises.

Advances comprise contractual advances paid foplggnot yet received of goods to be recognised

under inventories.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 Inventories act asaguees for loans in place at that date.

Note 15 - Trade receivables

The account trade receivables is composed as fellow

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Receivables from customers 69,278 74,884
Receivables from subsidiaries 36,484 32,003
Receivables from associated companies 2,427 4,502
Cumulative write-down of receivables (9,093) (8,584)
Total net receivables 99,096 102,805

Below the trade receivables in currencies othamn tha Euro are listed at December 31, 2012:

(thousands)
Foreign currency Euro
US Dollar 45,975 34,898
Colombian Peso 1,599,36% 686
UK Sterling 234 287
Phillipine Peso 1,193 20
The movements of the cumulative write-downs of nedd@es are broken down as follows:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Balance at January 1 8,584 8,598
Changes in the year:
- Increases 538 70
- Utilisations (29) (84)
Balance at December 31 9,093 8,584

The increases in the cumulative write-downs of iked#les were recognised to the income statement in

the account Other operating costs for Euro 538ghod.
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The utilisations concern the release of the prearysurplus provision for Euro 30 thousand.

Receivables from ltaltel Group companies, Telecdalid and Cisco are outlined in Note 41 —
Transactions with related parties.

The book value of the trade receivables approxigiteir fair value.

Note 16 - Income tax receivables

The account income tax receivables representsxtess of the taxes paid for IRAP regional taxes.

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
IRES - -
Regional taxes 692 1,148
Total 692 1,148
Note 17 - Other receivables and assets
This account Other receivables and assets is ceatpdf:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Employee receivables 2,883 2,941
Social security institution receivables 1,592 679
Prepayments and accrued income 393 372
Short-term tax receivable 5,851 4,499
Receivables from the state for subventions and grant 7,595 9,434
Other various receivables 13,762 2,645
Cumulative write-down of receivables (1,736) (1,573)
Total 30,340 18,997

The employee receivables referred principally toaades provided for work transport (Euro 1,619
thousand) and the portion of salaries paid by trapany to employees in December for the days in
which the Solidarity Contract was applied and ideld in the payslip of the subsequent month (Euf 96
thousand).

Social security institution receivables include tmmount of receivables from the INPS for advance
salary payments to personnel in the Extraordinamgorary Lay-off Scheme for the April — December
2012 period.

The Ministry of Labour approved the second yeathefreorganisation plan with Decree of December 24,
2012 and subsequently INPS authorised the Commasgttie the amounts advanced to employees under
the Extraordinary Temporary Lay-off Scheme fromuay 2013.

Prepayments and accrued income concern costseatihg to the subsequent year.

Tax receivables principally comprise withholdingda paid overseas and the tax receivable for the
amounts provisionally paid for pending cases atfit®¢ grade Tax Commission for VAT and IRAP
declarations 2004/2005.

The receivables from the State for subventions grahts refer to capital grants for research and
development projects, for which a reasonable cuggtagxists of their recognition under paragraphf7 o
IAS 20.

Other receivables of Euro 13,762 thousand includarmount of Euro 10,000 thousand recognised by
Telecom lItalia S.p.A. under the Restructuring Agneat, approved by the Milan Court on February 26,
2013, as indemnity for requests made by third eati Italtel S.p.A. within the acquisition agreemef
Italtel signed on June 30, 2000.



Financial Statements

The book value of the other assets approximatasfiievalue.

Note 18 - Short-term financial assets

The account short-term financial assets and ttaivelmovements were as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Financial receivables from subsidiaries 570 557
Financial receivables from associates 413 519
Financial receivables from holding companies 756 -
Other financial receivables 1,021 1,543
Assets for hedging contracts - 1,617
Short-term financial prepayments and accrued income 9 -
Total 2,769 4,236

Financial receivables from subsidiaries and assexiaoncern the current account balances and loans
issued, based on market conditions.

Financial receivables from Italtel Group companieslecom ltalia and Cisco are outlined in Note 41 —
Transactions with related parties.

Other financial receivables principally concerneaigables for interest matured with factoring comipan
with whom tax receivable cession contracts weraesign previous years.

Assets for hedging contracts decreased from aip®sitlue of Euro 1,617 thousand at December 31,
2011 to a negative value of Euro 446 thousand ate@eer 31, 2012, reclassified under short-term
financial payables.

The book value of the other financial assets apprates their fair value.

Note 19 - Cash and cash equivalents

The account cash and cash equivalents is broken deviollows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Cash at banks, financial institutions and post effic 23,441 15,875
Cheques - -
Cash - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 23,441 15,875

The amounts shown can be readily converted intb aag does not have a significant risk of change in
value.

Note 20 Share capital and Reserves

At December 31, 2012 the share capital of the Caryypamounting to Euro 116,858 thousand (Euro
116,858 thousand at December 31, 2011), compridéc’ 27,400 ordinary shares of a value of Euro 0.52
each.

At December 31, 2012 all shares issued had beestisibd and paid-in; preference shares had not been
issued.

At December 31, 2012 the Company did not hold trashares.
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Note 21 — Other reserves including the Loss for thgear

The account other reserves including the losshferyear was broken down as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Allocation of stock options 674 674
Other provisions (4,634) (4,634)
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) (150,666) -
Loss for the year (14,539) (150,666)
Total (169,165) (154,626)

The composition and movement of the account Otksgrves including the Loss for the year is outlined
in the following table:

Loss for theLosses from Merger First-  Cash Stock Total
year  previousdifferenc time  Flow option
years e adoption Hedge reserve
IFRS reserve
reserve

Balance at January 1, 2011 (26,330) (123,642) - (674) - 674 (149,972)
Coverage of losses carried
forward 26,330 123,642 - - - - 149,972
IFRS adjustment to Castelletto
land - (3,960) - - - - (3,960)
Change 2011 (150,666) - - - - - (150,666)
Balance at December 31, 2011  (150,666) (3,960) - (674) - 674 (154,626)
Previous year loss 150,666 (150,666) - - - - -
Change 2012 (14,539) - - - - - (14,539)
Balance at December 31, 2012 (14,539) (154,626) - (674) - 674 (169,165)

Following the dissolution of the rental contracttie Castelletto area, replaced by a new contrébt w
effect from January 1, 2011 and signed with theeséassor, although a year later than that estaglish
by IAS 17, the classification was revised of thed@omponent based on the existing informatiomat t
beginning of the original contract. The retrospeztiapplication of this standard resulted in the
recognition of assets and the relative liabilitgldhe reversal of the gain realised through the sathe
relative land to the lessor in 2003. The effectt application of this principle, generated frome t
leasing from December 31, 2010, was recognised ruladses carried forward and amounts to Euro
3,960 thousand, net of the tax effect of Euro 1,@@@isand.
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The availability and distributability of sharehotdeequity is outlined in the following table:

Nature and description Amount Possibility Non- Summary of utilisations
of distribut Distributa  made in the three previous
utilisation able ble years
To cover Other
losses
Share capital 116,858 (79,972)
Share premium reserve - - - - - -
Capital payments on account - - - - (70,000) -
Legal reserve - b) - - (20,217) -

Other reserves:

- Cash flow hedge reserve - - - - -
- Assignment of stock options 674 - 674 - - -
- Reserve as per Legislat

Decree 38/2005part.7 ’ i b) i i (163,904) 29,300
- Reserve as per Legislat
Decree 38/2005 art.7
Losses carried forwa
including the result for tt
year (165,205) - - - -
Total (52,307) 674 - (334,093) -
Non-distributable quota -

Residual distributable quota -

a) For share capital increase

b) to cover losses
c) for distribution to shareholders

(4,634) - - - (29,300)

Note 22 — Stock option plans and ordinary share pta

The Board of Directors of Italtel Group S.p.A. (adtel Holding S.p.A.), the parent company, apgav
on December 11, 2000 (a) a stock plan for all dtaB.p.A. employees, (b) a stock option plan for
Managers, Senior Managers employed under long-teomsacts and Directors of Group companies and
(c) a paid-in share purchase plan with relatedksbmtions, reserved to Senior Managers and Direaibr
Group companies.

On February 27, 2006, the Extraordinary Sharehslddeeting of Italtel Group S.p.A. approved the
adjustments of the maximum limits of the share tahpncrease in service also of the ordinary share,
stock option and paid-in treasury share purchasie ilated stock options plans to the number ofesha
and options effectively placed and/or allocatethatsame date.

Ordinary Share plan

The shares allocated under the ordinary share (Bm A) attribute the voting right only for matter
considered by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Migetif Italtel Group S.p.A. until any public offeno
the company shares. The holders of the shares nspps# of the shares in any of the following
situations:

the shares may be freely transferred in the cagemiblic offer of Italtel Group S.p.A. shares.this
case, the shares may not, however, be sold ingtiedobetween 20 days prior and 180 days subsequent
to the beginning of the public offer;

the shares may be transferred on the conclusioengfloyment only in the cases established by the
regulation.

Stock Option Plan for Managers & Key Contributors.

The “Stock option plan for Managers & Key Contribegt” (Plan B) is reserved to Managers, Senior
Managers under long term contracts and Directotatiel S.p.A., chosen at the discretion of theaib
of Directors of the Italtel Group or by executivembers of the Board of Directors and establishes th
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free allocation of non-transferable options, exoigdunder wills, for the purchase of ordinary slsané
the company. The assigned options mature on the bbthe following:

25% of the options allocated mature after two yéanms the allocation date;
a further 25% of the allocated options mature dfteze years from the allocation date;
the remaining 50% of the allocated options matfber four years from the allocation date.

In the case of the conclusion of employment orgression of a Director, the options may be exercised
subject to a number of conditions. Particular psins govern the right of exercise of options assig
in the case of a public offer or extraordinary @i@ns which involve Italtel S.p.A..

In December 2008, as established under regulatibas;ights options assigned in December 2000 were
automatically cancelled, following the passing qfesiod of eight years. Similarly in November 2046,
established under regulations, the rights optiossigaed in November 2002 were automatically
cancelled, following the passing of a period ofteigears. Finally, in June 2012, as establishedeund
regulations, all residual rights options concerniihg final allocation of June 2004 were automalycal
cancelled, following the passing of a period oh¢igears.

Stock Option Plan and Purchase of Sharesfor the Key Managers

The stock option plan and purchase of shares reddor Senior Managers and Directors of the group
company establishes the free allocation to Senianaders and Directors of the Company of non-
transferable options (excluding under wills), oe ttondition of the prior subscription to a minimum

number of ordinary shares of the company accortbnthe ratio of three options (of which a service

options and two performance options) for each skabscribed.

At December 31, 2010, the allocated and maturetmptare automatically cancelled following the
passing of a period of eight years from the allocatlate.

Note 23 - Employee benefit provisions

The employee benefits provisions are broken dowlbsvs:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Post-employment benefits 23,606 24,832
Indemnity for the advanced settlement of contract 1,909 3,467
Total 25,515 28,299

The actuarial differences not recognised total argd of Euro 2,621 thousand in 2012 (Euro 304
thousand in 2011).

The charges for "Interest cost" amounted to Euf®3 thousand in 2012 and Euro 1,237 thousand in
2011.

The reviewed version of IAS 19 — Employee benefitpproved by the European Union on June 5, 2012,
whose application is obligatory from January 1,20fhtroduces significant changes and clarificagion

the recognition of employee benefits. In particuthie possibility to defer recognition of a parttbé
actuarial profits and losses (so-called “corridoetinod”) is removed. These “remeasurements” must
immediately and fully be recognised in the comprsine income statement. In relation to the expected
impacts for the Company, the elimination of therictor approach will involve the recognition at Janu

1, 2013 of a negative adjustment to the comprekieriscome statement of Euro 2,621 thousand. The
other impacts are currently being analysed.

With the entry into force in 2007 of the provisioastablished by the pension reform the balancet shee
prepared after the reform must apply valuatioredatin line with a new regulation, illustratedNiote 2

- | - Employee Benefits, valuing for IAS purposesyothe liability concerning post-employment betefi
matured under the pre-existing regulation. Thatuneat after the pension reform represents a defined
contribution plan in that these payments do noblve further obligations for the company related to
future employment service.
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In accordance with IAS 19, for the valuation of pemsployment benefits, the “Projected Unit Credit
Cost” method was used as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS
Increase in the cost of living 2.00% annual 2.00% annual
Discount rate 2.50% annual 4.00% annual
Salary increases - -
Annual increase in postmploymer
benefit 3.00% annual 3.00% annual

DEMOGRAPHIC
ASSUMPTIONS
Probability of death

Probability of invalidity

Probability of dismissal

Probability of retirement

Probability of advances

Data of the Italian population Italian population data recorded by
recognised by the General Accountant ISTAT in 2002
of the State denominated RG48
Projections for 2010 from the INPS Projections for 2010 from the INPS
tables by age and gender. This tables by age and gender. This
probability was created from the ageprobability was created from the age
and gender of the pensions at Januaawgd gender of the pensions at January
1, 1987, commencing from 1984, 19851987, commencing from 1984, 1985
and 1986 relating to the personnel o&ind 1986 relating to the personnel of

the credit division the credit division
The annual frequencies capable of Annual frequencies of 7.5% were
resulting in a company plan which considered

involves the exit from the Company of
450 employees by 2014 were
considered; turnover frequency
parameter of 5% for 2013, 30% for
2014 and 7.5% for all subsequent
years

The reaching of the first of the It was assumed that the first

pensionable requirements necessarypensionable requisites valid for the

for General Compulsory Insurance inGeneral Compulsory Insurance were

light of the regulatory amendments reached
from January 1, 2012 under the Monti
provisions was included

Annual value of 3% was considered Annual value of 3% was considered

Changes in the post-employment benefit were asvisti

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Balance at January 1 24,832 27,053
Increase in the year including the reduction fer pension reforn 1,005 1,237
Utilisations in the year (2,231) (3,458)
Balance at December 31 23,606 24,832

The movements for the indemnity for the advanceseitlement of employment contracts were as

follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Balance at January 1 3,467 2,857
Provisions in the year 1,500 2,695
Utilisations in the year (3,058) (2,085)
Balance at December 31 1,909 3,467

The provision in the year concerns the estimateharges to be recognised to personnel placed in
mobility schemes in the period December 2008 — Al and impacted by the regulatory changes in
relation to the pensionable date.
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Note 24 - Provision for risks and charges

The account provisions for risks and charges aeddlated movements were as follows:

Contractual Other risks Total
guarantees

Balances at January 1, 2011 14,537 16,919 31,456
Changes in the year:
- Increases - 1,423 1,423
- Utilisations (14,103) (7,322) (21,425)
Balances at December 31, 2011 434 11,020 11,454
Changes in the year:
- Increases 634 634
- Utilisations (434) (2,367) (2,801)
Balances at December 31, 2012 0 9,287 9,287

The other risks provision of Euro 9,287 thousanddaetember 31, 2012 (Euro 11,020 thousand at
December 31, 2011) concerns the risks related dputks in progress for Euro 4,583 thousand, future
losses on work in progress for Euro 113 thousaodtractual risks for Euro 2,218 thousand and tak an
contribution risks, also relating to foreign comiaen relating to a non-defined tax period for ER066
thousand. The account include in addition Euro 3B@usand concerning risks of various types
concerning previous years and the clients’ suppieang indemnity provision for Euro 5 thousand.

Note 25 — Medium/long term and short term financialiabilities

The accounts Medium/long term and short term firariebilities were broken down as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Medium/lo Medium/lo
Short-term ng term Total Short-term ng term Total

Secured loans 152,467 18,589 171,056 152,467 18,222 170,689
Unsecured loans at
standard rates - 401 401 - 401 401
Unsecured loans at
subsidised rates 8,667 17,433 26,100 7,092 16,881 23,973
Liabilities for finance
leases 153 32 185 616 48,394 49,010
Medium/long term loans 161,287 36,455 197,742 160,175 83,898 244,073
Bank borrowings 89,674 - 89,674 74,943 - 74,943
Loans from other
institutions 4,500 - 4,500 - - -
Total payables to
financial institutions 255,461 36,455 291,916 235,118 83,898 319,016
Financial liabilities from
group companies 20,799 - 20,799 12,283 - 12,283
Other payables 832 - 832 1,073 - 1,073
Accrued expenses and 7,211 1,313
deferred income 7,211 - 1,313 -
Total 284,303 36,455 320,758 249,787 83,898 333,685

The Debt Restructuring Agreement signed on Decenfier2012, approved by the Milan Court on

February 26, 2013 in accordance with Article 182-0f the Bankruptcy Law, between lItaltel, Italtel

Group and other Group companies, the lending Baifikdecom lItalia and Cisco Systems, can be
summarised as follows:

= conversion into Equity Financial Instruments ofatipn of the medium/long-term debt to the
Lending Banks for a total of Euro 98,535 thousadfithis amount, Euro 89,343 thousand will
reduce the two Senior 1 and Senior 2 credit limpsakto Euro 152,467 thousand at December
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31, 2012. The medium/long-term debt, for a totatafo 18,589 thousand, will reduce by Euro
9,192 thousand following the conversion into eqtiitgncial instruments.

= lengthening of maturity of the residual amount pastversion of the medium/long-term bank
debt to December 2017, 2018 and 2019;

= lengthening of the short-term credit lines to J@@47 for a total amount of Euro 135,183
thousand,;

= issue of new financing by some of the Lending Bailisco Systems and Telecom ltalia for a
total of Euro 41,767 thousand, of which Euro 13,8@@usand issued by Unicredit S.p.A. and
Euro 4,500 thousand issued by Telecom lItalia Fieame the signing of the Restructuring
Agreement to support the short-term financial rezmaents of the Company.

The secured loans concern:

= two credit lines (Senior 1 and Senior 2) for EuB2 467 thousand, fully utilised;

= a medium/long term cash credit line for a maximuempital amount of Euro 3,063 thousand,
fully utilised,;

= a long term loan for Euro 15,526 thousand includirigrest matured annually.

The unsecured loans at standard rates for Eurahtflisand represent part of a loan obtained in 2010
from Mediocredito Centrale S.p.A. and still in pafor Euro 2,938 thousand for research activitids,
which Euro 2,537 thousand at subsidised rates.

The unsecured loans at subsidised rates compases lat rates between 0.5% and 0.886%, and concern
subsidised financing issued based on researchloggwent and industrial innovation laws.

The above-stated medium/long term loans reportait@ving movements:

2011 Secured loandJnsecured loans atUnsecured loans at Liabilities for
standard rates subsidised rates finance leases
Opening balance 170,322 401 31,025 40,808
Granted 367 - - 49,449
Reimbursements - - (7,052) (41,247)
Closing balance 170,689 401 23,973 49,010
2012 Secured loandJnsecured loans atUnsecured loans at Liabilities for
standard rates subsidised rates finance leases
Opening balance 170,689 401 23,973 49,010
Granted 367 - 6,234 -
Reimbursements - - (4,107) (48,825)
Closing balance 171,056 401 26,100 185

Based on the original maturities, the above indidatnedium/long-term loans, including the current
portion, are repayable as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
- within one year 161,286 160,175
- between one and two years 6,086 7,741
- between two and three years 3,987 4,440
- between three and four years 2,165 4,399
- between four and five years 21,251 3,776
- over five years 2,967 63,542
Total 197,742 244,073

At December 31, 2012, the medium/long term loamduding the short-term portion, were as follows:
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Variable rate Fixed rate 31/12/2012
- within one year 152,467 8,819 161,286
- between one and two years 195 5,891 6,086
- between two and three years 207 3,780 3,987
- between three and four years - 2,165 2,165
- between four and five years 3,063 18,188 21,251
- over five years - 2,967 2,967
Total 155,932 41,810 197,742

Following the Debt Restructuring Agreement of Feloyu26, 2013, the Company will re-establish the
maturities and the conditions of the new loans thidll replace those in place at December 31, 2012.
The above Agreement amended the parameters anerithe and conditions which are considered in the
calculation of the financial restrictions.

The account Bank loans amounting to Euro 89,674idhiod at December 31, 2012 (Euro 74,943
thousand at December 31, 2011), includes the biolye of Euro 13,500 thousand issued by Unicredit
S.p.A. under the Restructuring Agreement.

The further tranche of Euro 4,500 thousand of thdge loan, issued by Telecom ltalia Finance, is
included in the account Loans from other entitased on the Restructuring Agreement, this payable
will be converted into new equity financial instrents.

The account Liabilities for finance leases redufedn Euro 49,010 thousand in 2011 to Euro 185
thousand in 2012 following the derecognition of a&le and Lease Back operation of the building at
Castelletto (Settimo Milanese).

In 2011, the company signed a finance lease cdrfmathe purchase of electronic equipment from the
supplier T-Systems for a total value of Euro 448udand, repayable by March 31, 2014. At December
31, 2012, the financial payable amounted to Eufth8usand.

The account accruals and deferred income refeirgdoest matured on financial payables not yetesbtt
at December 31, 2012.

Liquidity
Net liquidity at December 31, 2012 was broken dasriollows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Cash and cash equivalents - -
On demand bank current accounts 23,441 15,875
Total 23,441 15,875
Below the changes in net liquidity of the Comparg @eported:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Cash generated/(absorbed) by operating activities (6,198) (30,211)
Cash generated/(absorbed) by investing activities (21,556) (25,889)
Cash generated/(absorbed) by financing activities 35,320 16,248
Changes in the year 7,566 (39,852)

In 2012 ltaltel S.p.A. generated liquidity of Eur¢b66 thousand compared to an absorption of cash of
Euro 39,852 thousand in the previous year.

Cash generated by operating activity
The cash flow absorbed from operating activitiesrdased by Euro 24,013 thousand, from a net
absorption of Euro 30,211 thousand in 2011 to ahsbrption of Euro 6,198 thousand in 2012.
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The decrease of Euro 24,013 thousand follows are&sed contribution of cash for Euro 59,646
thousand generated by the change in working capital of the lower contribution of cash for Euro
35,633 thousand from operating cash flows befagecttange in working capital.

The change in working capital generated Euro 14{Bé@sand from operating cash flow, while in 2011
absorbing Euro 45,304 thousand, with an increaséhéntwo years of Euro 59,646 thousand. The
working capital changes consider the following mdgetors:

a reduction in the exposure to clients for Eurdd8,¢housand in 2012 against a reduction of
Euro 23,918 thousand in 2011, with a decrease of EQ,009 thousand in 2012 compared to
2011;

an increase in the exposure to suppliers for E@d0b thousand in 2012 following a decrease
of Euro 63,727 thousand in 2011 with a net incre#sEuro 76,133 thousand. The change in
the exposure to suppliers is due to the statdiqéidlity of the Company which, based on the

payment plans subsequent to approval, establigingbd total reduction of the exposure fully

in compliance with law.

Cash absorbed by investing activity
In 2012, investing activity absorbed cash of Eutgb36 thousand, against an absorption in the pusvio
year of Euro 25,889 thousand.

Cash generated by financing activity
In 2012, financing activity generated cash of EB5320 thousand against a generation of cash in the
previous year of Euro 16,248 thousand. The incred&iro 19,072 thousand is essentially due to:

an increase of Euro 14,965 thousand of Otherliligsi following the increase of Euro 8,516
thousand of loans granted by group companies aadntrease of Euro 5,898 thousand of
accrued loan interest not paid at December 31, 2082vhich will be capitalised as established
by the Restructuring Agreement;

an increase of Euro 4,703 thousand of increassmtsloompared to the previous year.

Note 26 Other liabilities

This account Other liabilities is comprised of:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Deferred income — gains on sale of property - 27,044
Medium/long-term mobility charges - 181
Deposits 112 112
Total 112 27,225

The account Deferred income - gains on sale ofgntygplecreased due to the settlement of the finance
lease contract of the industrial area of Castellgijned on June 9, 2011.

The medium/long term mobility charges reduced feitg the reclassification of the liabilities to sho
term payables.

The book value of the other liabilities approxinsatieeir fair value.

Note 27 - Trade payables

The account trade payables is composed as follows:



Financial Statements

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Supplier payables 138,991 134,845

Payables to subsidiaries 96 92

Payables to group companies 546 662

Total 139,633 135,599
The trade payables in currencies other than the BubDecember 31, 2012 are listed below:

(thousands)

Foreign currency Euro

US Dollar 114,020 86,429

UK Sterling 191 234

Argentinean Peso 158 24

Colombian Peso 1,389,773 596

Phillipine Peso 474 7

Payables to Italtel Group companies and to the emmes Telecom lItalia and Cisco are outlined in Note
41 — Transactions with related parties.

The book value of the Trade Payables approximatss fair value.

Note 28 - Current tax liabilities

The account current tax liabilities at DecemberZ11,2 amounted to zero.

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

IRES - -
IRAP - -
Total - -
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Note 29 - Other payables and liabilities

The account other payables and liabilities is bnottewn as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Employee payables 21,007 21,594
Social security institutions 757 3,258
Accrued expenses and deferred income 6,251 5,150
Short-term portion Castelletto gain deferred income - 2,080
VAT 1,538 -
Deferred VAT 167 638
Withholding taxes to be paid 2,926 2,604
Other taxes 744 -
Customer advances 9,629 1,834
Other liabilities 4,200 3,388
Total 47,219 40,546

Employee payables include Euro 2,237 thousand comzeindemnities to be recognised in 2013 to
company personnel with whom Industrial Mediatiorrdgments were individually signed as per Article
2113, paragraph IV of the Civil Code and ArticleBddand 411, paragraph lll of the Civil Procedural
Code.

The short-term portion Castelletto gain Deferredome account decreased by Euro 2,080 thousand
following the dissolution of the finance lease cant of the building at Castelletto (Settimo Milapg

Other taxes concern for Euro 317 thousand a tagsasgent recognised provisionally concerning the
2006 VAT and IRAP assessment and for Euro 427 #hmlighe payable to the Settimo Milanese
Municipality for ICI (property) tax due based orethgreement signed between the Company and the
Municipality on December 20, 2012.

Customer advances recognised against commerciaemgnts amount to Euro 9,629 thousand,
increasing Euro 7,795 thousand.

The change in Other liabilities is principally dteethe increase in tax payables of the ltaltel @Gudlia
branch office.

The book value of the other liabilities approxinsatieeir fair value.

Note 30 - Revenues from sales and services

The following tables report the revenues from saled services in 2012 and 2011, broken down by
client and region.

i) Revenues from sales and services broken down by client

2012 2011
Telecom Italid® 89,571 112,580
Other local operators 58,796 71,353
Large enterprises and Public Administration 45,019 65,007
Overseas Operators 64,290 73,471
Total 257,676 322,411

(a) Exclusively concerns Telecom ltalia S.p.A. and Teta Italia Sparkle S.p.A.
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ii) Revenues from sales and services broken down by region

2012 2011
Italy 183,520 238,007
Other European countries 30,846 30,528
Central and South America 37,745 50,876
USA 260 297
Africa 4,298 764
Asia 1,007 1,939
Total 257,676 322,411
Note 31 — Other income
This account Other income is comprised of:

2012 2011
Grants 873 4,332
Gains on disposals 34,924 3,138
Absorption of provisions and others 22,958 44,060
Total 58,755 51,530

Grants amounts to Euro 873 thousand and for Eu6otiidusand concern Research projects capitalised
in previous years.

Gains on disposals include the gain in the yeaceming the Sale and Lease Back operation of the
Castelletto building, the gain from the derecogmitof this operation (respectively amounting to deur
2,080 thousand and Euro 32,817 thousand) and the ffam the sale of property, plant and equipment
realised in the year (Euro 27 thousand).

The account absorption of provisions and otherdudtes the indemnity of Euro 10,000 thousand
recognised by Telecom lItalia S.p.A. and establishader the Restructuring Agreement signed on
December 11, 2012, the Cisco grants related to“@igco Value Incentive Program” for Euro 191
thousand (Euro 2,297 thousand in 2011), income f@mup companies invoiced according to the
Management Services contracts for Euro 3,719 thmugauro 5,849 thousand in 2011), cost recoveries
from third parties for Euro 2,247 thousand (Eur@d78, thousand in 2011), prior year income of Euro
3,757 thousand (Euro 11,244 thousand in 2011) lam@lsorption of provisions of Euro 1,929 thousand
(Euro 21,346 thousand in 2011).

Note 32 - Purchase of materials and services

The account purchase of materials and servicebwien down as follows:

2012 2011
Purchases of materials 127,110 174,104
Purchases of services 69,139 71,820
Total 196,249 245,924

The breakdown of purchases of materials and senfioen Italtel Group companies and Telecom lItalia
and Cisco is reported in Note 41 — Transactionk vatated parties, to which reference should beemad
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Note 33 - Personnel costs

The account Personnel costs is broken down asafsilo

2012 2011
Wages and salaries 59,694 66,134
Social security 18,012 23,202
Post-employment benefit 5,201 6,609
Mobility and other non-recurring charges 6,983 8,083
Others 340 384
Total 90,230 104,412

Personnel costs include non-recurring restructucimgrges for a total of Euro 6,983 thousand (in1201
Euro 8,083 thousand) concerning mobility charges iademnities for employees departing during the
year and for personnel expected to leave in theesyent year.

The workforce decreased from 1,640 at December2811 (of which 14 local employees at foreign
offices and branches) to 1,550 at December 31, 2052local employees at foreign offices and
branches).

The average number of employees in the year wa@8 1ioken down as follows:

2012 2011
Executives 75 89
Managers 376 378
White collar 1,134 1,213
Blue-collar 3 3
Total 1,588 1,683

Note 34 - Amortisation, depreciation and write-dows

The account amortisation, depreciation on writesd®was broken down as follows:

2012 2011
Development Costs 22,463 28,600
Other intangible assets 1,493 3,688
Land under finance lease contract 870 870
Industrial buildings 3,106 3,107
Plant and machinery 592 594
Commercial and industrial equipment 2,244 2,969
Other assets 774 920
Goodwill write-down - 130,000
Total 31,542 170,748

The amortisation of Other intangible assets corgeoftware applications.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipmeritased on the economic-technical criterion aneh fro
the application of prevailing rates.
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Prevailing rates (%)

A 2011 adopted in 2012
Land held under finance leases 870 870 6.67
Land held under finance leases A) 870 870
Buildings owned by the company 709 710 3.00
Buildings held under finance leases 2,397 2,397 6.67
Total Buildings B) 3,106 3,107
Plant and machinery:
General plant 586 570 10.0
Ecological plant 1 1 15.0
Specialised and automated plant 5 23 155
Industrial vehicles - - 20.0
Totl plant and machinery C) 592 594
CommerC|aI and industrial D) 2244 2.969 250
equipment
Other assets:
Miscillaneous equipment 14 8 25.0
Furniture and office equipment 148 154 12.0
Design and office automation
systems 601 729 20.0
Mobile phones and radio-telephones 1 1 20.0
Motor vehicles 10 28 25.0
Total other assets E) 774 920
Total A+B+C+D+E 7,586 8,460
Note 35 - Other operating costs
This account Other operating costs is comprised of:
2012 2011
Other operating charges 14,566 4,557
Provisions for risks 634 1,423
Write-down of receivables 883 225
Total 16,083 6,205
Other operating charges amount to Euro 14,566 #mliand comprise:
2012 2011
Indirect taxes and duties for the year 1,467 1,123
Costs and reversal of revenues of previous years 2,622 2,494
Write-down of receivables - -
Membership fees 257 325
Intern grants 5 10
Contract penalties 42 556
Settlements and court judgement costs 10,151 -
Other operating expenses 12 41
Losses on asset disposal and demolition 10 8
Total 14,566 4,557

The settlements and court judgement costs inclug® BEO0,000 thousand concerning the loss of the
deposit paid as a guarantee of the building remtatract of Castelletto. This contract, signed oneJ9,
2011, was dissolved and replaced by a new rentdfadt with effect from December 31, 2012.



Financial Statements

Note 36 - Change in inventories

The following table highlights the principal comgonts of the account.

2012 2011
Raw material, ancillary and consumables - 3
Products in work-in-progress and semi-finished (922) (1,105)
Finished products and goods for resale 9,502 6,656
Total 8,580 5,554

Note 37 - Increases on internal works capitalised

The account increases on internal works capital&sadunted to Euro 20,025 thousand in 2012 (Euro
23,919 thousand in 2011) and concerns the capitimliss of tangible and intangible fixed assetshef t
production or acquisition costs, not including fioang charges.

In 2012, the account concerned for Euro 19,702 ghond (Euro 23,689 thousand in 2011) the
capitalisation of development costs with the chiméstics described in the relative accounting @ple.

Note 38 — Financial income and charges

The following table highlights the principal comgonts of the account.

2012 2011
Net Net
Charges Income charges Charges Income charges
(income) (income)
Currency differences 8,368 9,982 (1,614) 11,059 8,736 2,323
Interest 16,080 394 15,686 14,008 395 13,613
Others 3,786 3,088 698 15,957 15,206 751
Total 28,234 13,464 14,770 41,024 24,337 16,687

Net financial charges decreased from Euro 16,68dstéind in 2011 to Euro 14,770 thousand in 2012 (-
Euro 1,917 thousand).

Net currency differences improved from a loss ofdER,323 thousand in 2011 to gains of Euro 1,614
thousand in 2012, improving therefore by Euro 3,8®tsand.

Net interest charges increased by Euro 2,073 timolsa

The increase in net interest charges of Euro 2(8@3sand is principally due to the recognition efalilt
interest on the short and medium/long-term bankapkeyunpaid on maturity and until the effectiveedat
of the approval of the restructuring agreement,afighe contribution from improved reference instre
rates in 2012 compared to 2011.

Other financial income and charges report a neease of Euro 53 thousand, due to the reduction in
dividends from investments in subsidiaries for Eqy®12 thousand, a reduction in other financiabme

of Euro 4,306 thousand, entirely offset by the dase in other financial charges of Euro 12,171
thousand.

In 2011 Other financial income included prior yeamome of Euro 3,061 thousand recognised in ths¢ fir
half of 2011 following the settlement of liabilifef a similar amount relating to the residual w#iin of

an IRPEG credit granted in 2005 and paid by the Agency. In addition in 2011 a positive effect was
recognised of Euro 1,795 thousand from the mankdoket valuation of Forward operations in US
Dollars. These amounts were offset by the increddeuro 739 thousand following the cancellation in
2012 of bank commissions no longer due following dlebt restructuring agreement signed on December
11, 2012.

The change in Other financial charges of Euro 1P,fhousand in 2012 principally relates to the
recognition in 2011 of the write-down of the fin@laeceivable from the parent company ltaltel Grou
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S.p.A. for Euro 13,137 thousand. This decreaseoffast by the impact of Euro 2,063 thousand from th
mark-to-market valuation of Forward operations i8 Dollars recorded in the year which decreased
from a gain of Euro 1,617 thousand at DecembeRB12 to a loss of Euro 446 thousand at December 31,
2012.

The increase in net interest charges of Euro 2t0@3sand is principally due to the recognition efalilt
interest on the short and medium/long-term banlapkyunpaid on maturity and until the effectiveedat

of the approval of the Restructuring Agreement.

Note 39 — Investments gains/loss

This account Investments gains/losses is compaged

2012 2011
Losses Gains L Iogses Losses Gains Net Iogses
(gains) (gains)
Investment gains/(losses)/other 739 65 674 1,667 4,275  (2,608)
Total 739 65 674 1,667 4,275 (2,608)

Net investment gains/losses amount to a loss ab B thousand in 2012 due to the loss relatintdo
negative shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary pamy Italtel Arabia Ltd. In 2011 a gain was repdrte
of Euro 2,608 thousand due to the revaluation eflthltel B.V investment, following the future sbhar
capital increase payment.

The write-downs/revaluations in subsidiaries andoested companies recognised in the year are
reported in Attachment 1.

Note 40 - Income taxes

The income tax account reports income of Euro 7tt®isand compared to charges of Euro 1,604
thousand in the previous year.

Estimated current income taxes for the year amtuiuro 480 thousand and concern IRAP for Euro
456 thousand (Euro 1,098 thousand in 2011) andgfotexes of Euro 24 thousand (Euro 2,591 thousand
in 2011).

Deferred tax income amounts to Euro 7,614 thouga612 (Euro 2,085 thousand in 2011).

Reconciliation of effective taxes relating to thendpany is broken down as follows:

2012 2011
Theoretical taxe& (5,960) (40,992)
IRAP 600 1,200
IRAP previous year (144) (202)
Argentina withholding taxes - 2,554
Write-down of Italtel S.p.A. goodwill not deductabl - 35,750
Deferred taxes not recorded on tax losses and tem
differences - (573)
Positive components not subject to taxation (1,354) (119)
Non-deductible (exempt) tax components (377) 3,849
Income taxes - branch offices 24 37
Other changes 77 -
Effective tax (7,134) 1,604

(a) Determined applying the theoretical tax rate 06%47to the pre-tax result

Note 41 - Transactions with related parties

In 2012 and 2011 Italtel S.p.A. reports transadtionth related parties as follows:

December 31, 2011 TradeFinancial ~ Others Trade Financial Other
receivablesreceivable receivabl payables payables payables
s es
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Subsidiary companies:

Cons. Italtel Telesis in liquidation - 557 - - -
Italtel BV - - - (133) -
Italtel Argentina SA 14,056 - Q) - -
Italtel Brasil Ltd 2,255 - (31) - -
Italtel SA 1,282 - - (6,305) -
Italtel France S.A.S. 5,653 - (5) (1,473) -
Italtel Kenya Ltd 534 - (32) - -
Italtel Middle East FZ-LLC 834 - - (737) -
Italtel Oman 290 - - - -
Italtel Nga — Next Generation Access

S.p.A. in liquidation

(liguidated on October 29, 2012) 1 - - (214) -
Italtel Poland SP.Zo.0. 1,162 - - -
OO0QO ltaltel Russia in liquidation

(liguidated on May 31, 2012) - - 1 - -
Italtel Arabia Ltd 2,412 - (24) - -
Italtel Peru S.A.C. 3,525 - - - -
Total 32,004 557 (92) (8,862) -
Group companies:

Cored - Reti Duemila consortium in

liquidation 59 - (52) - -
Hermes consortium in liquidation 27 - (84) - -
Italtel Deutschland Gmbh 3,146 - - (2,773) -
Italtel Telecomunications Hellas EPE 1,105 7 - - -
Italtel Belgium Sprl - - (394) - -
Italtel UK Ltd 164 512 (132) - -
Total 4,501 519 (662) (2,773) -
Holding company:

Italtel Group S.p.A. 1 - - - -
Total 1 - - - -
Other related parties:

Clayton Dubilier & Rice - - - - (148)
Telecom ltalia 22,415 - (291) - -
Cisco Systems 14 - (72,768) - -
Total 22,429 - (73,059) - (148)
Grand total 58,935 1,076 (73,813) (11,635) (148)
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December 31, 2012 Trade Financial Others Trade Financial Other
receivables receivables receivabl payables payables receivabl
es es/
(payables
Subsidiary companies:
Cons. Italtel Telesis in liquidation - 570 - - - -
Italtel BV - - - - - -
Italtel Argentina SA 18,551 - - (25) - -
Italtel Brasil Ltd 2,106 - 1 (31) (2,047) -
Italtel SA 1,251 - (14) (9,612) -
Italtel France S.A.S. 4,842 - - 2) (1,837) -
Italtel Kenya Ltd 451 - - - - -
Italtel Middle East FZ-LLC 1,208 - - - (347) -
Italtel Oman 98 - - - - -
Italtel Nga — Next Generation Access -
S.p.A. in liquidation
(liquidated on October 29, 2012) - - - - -
Italtel Poland SP.Zo.0. 1,067 - - - - -
OO0QO ltaltel Russia in liquidation -
(liquidated on May 31, 2012) - - - - -
Italtel Arabia Ltd 1,524 - - (24) (1,206) -
Italtel Peru S.A.C. 5,386 - - - - -
Total 36,484 570 1 (96) (15,049) -
Group companies:
Cored - Reti Duemila consortium in
liquidation 59 - - (59) - -
Hermes consortium in liquidation 27 - - (93) - -
Italtel Deutschland Gmbh 1,705 - - - (5,750) -
Italtel Telecomunications Hellas EPE 468 7 - - - -
Italtel Belgium Sprl - - - (394) - -
Italtel UK Ltd 168 406 - - - -
Total 2,427 413 - (546) (5,750) -
Holding company:
Italtel Group S.p.A. - 756 - - - -
Total - 756 - - - -
Other related parties:
Clayton Dubilier & Rice - - - - - (145)
Telecom ltalia 16,387 - - (714) (4,500) 10,000
Cisco Systems 287 - - (81,506) - -
Total 16,674 - - (82,220) (4,500) 9,855
Grand total 55,585 1,739 1 (82,862)  (25,299) 9,855
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2011 Sales Purchases Financial Other
income/(charges)
Subsidiary companies:
Consorzio ltaltel Telesis in liquidation - - 12 -
Italtel Argentina S.A. 17,936 (5) - (928)
Italtel Brasil Ltd 5,199 - 18 (493)
Italtel SA 2,846 1) (165) 571
Italtel France S.A.S. 6,135 (5) 47) 1,565
Italtel Kenya Ltd 300 - - 113
Italtel Middle East FZ-LLC 209 - 9) 258
Italtel Oman 48 - - 242
Italtel Nga — Next Generation Access
S.p.A. in liquidation
(liquidated on October 29, 2012) - - 5) 1
Italtel Poland SP.Zo.0. 1,077 - - 284
OO0QO ltaltel Russia in liquidation
(liguidated on May 31, 2012) - - - 242
Italtel Arabia Ltd 597 (24) - 1,412
Italtel Peru S.A.C. 14,632 - - 78
Total 48,979 (35) (196) 3,345
Group companies:
Cored - Reti Duemila consortium in
liquidation - - - @)
Hermes consortium in liquidation - - - 9)
Italtel Deutschland Gmbh 4,598 - (21) 1,087
Italtel Telecommunications Hellas EPE 1,945 - - 431
Italtel Belgium Sprl - - - -
Total 6,543 - (21) 1,502
Holding company:
Italtel Group S.p.A. - - 284 1
Total - - 284 1
Other related parties:
Clayton Dubilier & Rice - - - (2)
Telecom ltalia 144,790 (2,669) - -
Cisco Systems 5 (163,446) (143) 2,333
Total 144,795 (166,115) (143) 2,332
Grand total 200,317 (166,150) (76) 7,180
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2012 Sales Purchases Financial Other
income/(charges)
Subsidiary companies:
Consorzio ltaltel Telesis in liquidation - - 13 -
Italtel Argentina S.A. 12,812 - - 16
Italtel Brasil Ltd 2,562 - 47) -
Italtel SA 8,591 (14) (166) 338
Italtel France S.A.S. 5,380 (2) 27) 1,077
Italtel Kenya Ltd 61 - - (12)
Italtel Middle East FZ-LLC 596 - (16) 155
Italtel Oman 2 - - 16
Italtel Nga — Next Generation Access
S.p.A. in liquidation
(liquidated on October 29, 2012) - - 2) -
Italtel Poland SP.Zo.o. 896 - - 190
OO0QO ltaltel Russia in liquidation
(liguidated on May 31, 2012) - - - -
Italtel Arabia Ltd 305 - - 195
Italtel Peru S.A.C. 4,695 - - 7
Total 35,900 (16) (245) 1,982
Group companies:
Cored - Reti Duemila consortium in
liquidation - - - (5)
Hermes consortium in liquidation - - - (8)
Italtel Deutschland Gmbh 2,909 - (97) 545
Italtel Telecommunications Hellas EPE 315 - - 124
Italtel Belgium Sprl - - - -
Total 3,224 - (97) 656
Holding company:
Italtel Group S.p.A. - - 314 1
Total - - 314 1
Other related parties:
Telecom ltalia 107,840 (1,643) - 10,000
Cisco Systems 7,266 (110,047) - 191
Total 115,106 (111,690) - 10,191
Grand total 154,230 (111,706) (28) 12,830

In relation to senior managers with strategic resfulities, in 2012 and in 2011 emoluments were
matured for a total amount respectively of Euro22,9housand and Euro 3,843 thousand. These
emoluments were as follows:

2012 2011
Current emoluments 2,815 3,677
Post-employment benefits 106 166
Total 2,921 3,843

A number of members of the corporate boards ofGbmpany, in addition to a number of Key Senior
Managers of Italtel S.p.A. participated in the aediy share plan (Plan A), the stock option plan ied
purchase of shares (Plan C), in addition to a stgtlon plan for Managers and Key Contributors (Pla
B). Plan B is currently not active as the optiontoaatically expired eight years after vestinghree
tranches respectively in 2001, 2002 and on Jugéd4.
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Note 42 - Commitments

Italtel S.p.A. has undertaken rental contracts rofoperating nature concerning essentially buildings
vehicles and IT equipment. The following table suamises the commitments in place concerning these
contracts.

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
To be repaid
- within one year 9,565 1,708
- between one and two years 9,397 1,607
- between two and three years 5,296 1,640
- between three and four years 4,226 375
- between four and five years 4,000 430
- over five years 4,000 449
Total 36,484 6,209

A surety is in place of Euro 12,000 thousand issnedvour of the lessor to guarantee rental paymen
on the Castelletto complex.

Note 43 - Independent Audit Firm fees

In accordance with Article 37, paragraph 16 of ktive Decree No. 39/2010, enacting amendments to
the Civil Code, which supplemented Article 2427tud Civil Code with No. 1tis, the following table
reports the fees for 2012 for the auditing of actsly PricewaterhouseCoopers.

2012
Audit Services 278
Tax consultancy 29
Total 2012 auditing costs 307

Note 44 — Subsequent events

Except for that stated in the note on Subsequeehtivn the Directors’ report, at the preparatiatecf
the present financial statements, no further sicgnit events are reported.
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Note 45 — List of investee companies

List of other investments in subsidiaries and ass@ted companies valued at cost

Company name Registered Currency Share % held Book
(activities) office capital value
Italian subsidiaries:

Consorzio Italtel Telesis in liquidationSettimo Euro 516,456 100 Italtel S.p.A 6
(intergrated telematic systems) Milanese

Foreign subsidiaries:

Italtel BV Amsterdam  Euro 6,000,000 100 Italtel S.p.A 9,226
(commercial and financial) (Holland)

Italtel Argentina SA Buenos Aires Argentin 4,030,000 71.46 Italtel BV 284
(telecommunications systems) (Argentina) e Peso 28.54 lItaltel S.p.A

Italtel Kenya Ltd Nairobi Kenyan 500,000 99.98 ltaltel BV -
(telecommunications systems) (Kenya) Shilling 0.02 Italtel S.p.A

Italtel Brasil Ltda San Paolo Brazilian 6,586,636 85.12 lItaltel S.p.A 1,775
(telecommunications systems) (Brazil) Real 14.88 ltaltel BV

Italtel France Sas Suresnes Euro 40,000 100 Iltaltel S.p.A 40
(commercial) (France)

Italtel Poland Sp.Zo.0. Varsavia Polish 400,000 100 Italtel S.p.A 101
(commercial) (Polond) Zloty

Italtel Middle East Fz-LLC Dubai AED 2,500,000 100 Italtel S.p.A 204
(commercial) (Arab Emirates)

Italtel Arabia Ltd Riyadh SAR 3,287,980 90.00 Italtel S.p.A -
(commercial) (Saudi Arabia) 10.00 Italtel BV

Italtel Peru S.A.C. Lima Nuevo 641,000 90.00 ltaltel BV 14
(commercial) (Peru) Sol 10.00 Iltaltel S.p.A

Italtel de Venezuela S.A. Caracas Bolivian 940,000 95.00 ltaltel S.p.A 285
(commercial) (Venezuela) o 5.00 Italtel BV

Associated Italian companies:

Cored - Reti Duemila consortium in - Milan Euro 260,000 30.00 Italtel S.p.A 76
liquidation

(broadband networks)

Hermes consortium in liquidation Milan Euro 510,000 24.00 Italtel S.p.A 118
(transmission systems)

Associated foreign companies:

Italtel Telecom. Hellas EPE Athens Euro 18,000 80.00 Italtel Group 4
(commercial) (Greece) 20.00 lItaltel S.p.A
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List of investments in other companies valued at cbs

Company name Registered Curren Share % held Book
(activities) office cy capital value
Cefriel — S.c.r.l. Milan Euro 100,350 5.80 ltaltel S.p.A. 36
(training and research)

Consorzio Milano Ricerche Milan Euro 186,431 8.30 ltaltel S.p.A. 15
(design and research)

Consel — Consorzio Elis per la Rome Euro 51,000 2.50 ltaltel S.p.A. 1
Formazione Professionale Superiore -

S.cr.l

SISTEL - Comunicagoes, Automacablonte de Euro 10,338,838 0.88 lItaltel S.p.A. 29
e Sistemas S.A. Caparica 0.72 ltaltel BV
(telecommunications systems) (Portugal)

Consorzio MIP - Politecnico di Milan Euro 150,000 5.88 ltaltel S.p.A. -
Milano

Consorzio Nazionale Imballaggi Rome Euro variabile 0.005 Italtel S.p.A. 1
CONAI

(package management)

Consorzio COFRIDIP Padova Euro 28,402 9.09 ltaltel S.p.A. 2
S.P.S. S.p.A. in liquidation na Euro na 7.00 ltaltel S.p.A. -
Distretto Tecnologico Sicilia Micro eCatania Euro 600,000 4.55 ltaltel S.p.A. 27

Nano Sistemi s.c.a.r.l.
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Attachments to the Financial Statements

Attachment 1: Equity investments and advances on westments

31/12/11 Changes in the year 31/12/12
Costand Write-downs Book Acquisitions/ Disposals Write-d owns ()  Utilisation Total Cost Write-downs Book
share capital value Subscriptions Reductions Write- writ e-downs changes value
payments share cap. pay. backs (+) in the year
Investments in subsidiaries:
Italtel NGA-Next Generation Access S.p.A. in liquidat  ion 212 (6) 206 - (212) - 6 (206) - - -
Consorzio ltaltel Telesis in liquidation 517 (504) 13 - - @) - @) " 517 (511) 6
Italtel B.V.* 9,226 - 9,226 - - - - - 9,226 - 9,226
Italtel Argentina S.A. 284 - 284 - - - - - 284 - 284
Italtel Kenya LTD - - - - - - - - - - -
Italtel Brasil LTDA 1,775 - 1,775 - - - - - 1,775 - 1,775
ltaltel France S.A.S. 40 - 40 - - - - - 40 - 40
Italtel Poland SP. ZO.0** 1,281 (1,281) - 101 - - - 101 " 1,382 (1,281) 101
Italtel Middle East FZ-LLC 550 (411) 139 - - 65 - 65 550 (346) 204
00O ltaltel Russia in liquidation - - - - - - - - - - -
Italtel Arabia LTD**** 2,638 (2,638) - - - - - - 7 2638 (2,638) -
Italtel Perti S.A.C 14 - 14 - - - - - 14 - 14
ltaltel Venezuela S.A *** 285 - 285 - - - - - 285 - 285
16,822 (4,840) 11,982 101 (212) 58 6 (47) 16,711 (4,776) 11,935
* includes share capital increase payment of Euro 3,217 thousand at 31.12.2012
** includes share capital increase payment of Euro 1,280 thousand at 31.12.2012
*** jncludes share capital increase payment of Euro 1 thousand at 31.12.2012
*% includes share capital increase payment of Euro 2,102 thousand at 31.12.2012
31/12/2011 Changes in the year 31/12/2012
Cost Write-downs Book Acquisitions/ Disposals Write-downs (-) Utilisation Total Cost Write-downs Book
value Subscriptions Reductions Write- write-downs ~ changes value
backs (+) in the year
Investments in associated companies:
Italtel Telecommunications Hellas EPE 4 - 4 - - - - - 4 - 4
Consorzio Hermes in liquidation 118 - 118 - - - - - 118 - 118
Cored Consorzio Reti Duemila in liguidation 77 (1) 76 - - - - - 77 (1) 76
199 (1) 198 - - - - - 199 (1) 198
31/12/2011 Changes in the year 31/12/2012
Cost Write-downs Book Acquisitions/ Disposals Write-downs (-) Utilisation Total Cost Write-downs Book
value Subscriptions Reductions Write- write-downs ~ changes value
share cap. pay. backs (+) in the year
Investments in other companies:
S.P.S. Spain liquidation 11 (11) - - - - - - 11 (11) -
Cefriel - S.c.r.l. 36 - 36 - - - - - 36 - 36
Consorzio Nazionale Imballaggi Conai 1 - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
Sistel - Comunicagoes, Automacao e Sistemas S.A. 91 (62) 29 - - - -7 91 (62) 29
Consel - Consorzio Elis per la formaz. Professionale - S.cr.l 1 - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
Consorzio Cofridip 2 - 2 - - - - - 2 - 2
Distretto Tecnologico Sicilia Micro e Nano Sististem iS.carl 23 - 23 4 - - - 4 27 - 27
Consorzio Cost.Milano Ricerche Centro Inn.tecnologica 15 - 15 - - - - - 15 - 15
180 (73) 107 4 - - - 4 184 (73) 111
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Attachment 1.1: List of holdings in subsidiary andassociated companies

Name Registered Office Share Net Profit Holding Corr  esponding Book Difference
Capital Capital Equity (loss) % Net Equity value
in foreign curr. value * (A-B)
A (B
Subsidiaries
ITALTEL B.V.* AMSTERDAM 6,000 9,265 (169) 100 " 9,265 " 9,226 " 39
CONSORZIO TELESIS IN LIQUIDAZIONE SETTIMO MILANESE 516 (505) (14) 100 (505) " 6 (511)
ITALTEL ARGENTINA S.A. BUENOS AIRES 621 3,944 258 28.54 " 1,126 284 " 842
Peso 4,030,000
ITALTEL BRASIL LTDA S.PAOLO 2,436 3,719 1,287 85.12 " 3,166 1,775 " 1,391
Real 6,586,636
ITALEL KENYA LTD NAIROBI 4 (270) (58) 002 - T -
Kenyan Schilling 500,000
ITALTEL POLAND SP. ZO.0* VARSAVIA 98 372 280 100 " 372 101 " 271
Polish Zloty 400,000
ITALTEL MIDDLE EAST FZ-LLC DUBAI 516 187 53 100 " 187 204 " (17)
UAE Dirham 2,500,000
ITALTEL FRANCES.A.S. SURESNES 40 1,455 1,411 100 " 1,455 40 1,415
ITALTEL ARABIA LTD* RIY AHD 664 (1,196) (750) %0 (1,076) - (1,076)
Riyal 3,287,980
ITALTEL PERU S.A.C* LIMA 190 973 36 10 " 97 14 83
Nuevo sol 641,000
ITALTEL VENEZUELA S.A.* CARACAS - - - 95 " - 285 (285)
Bolivar 940,000
Associated company
ITALTEL TELECOMMUNICATIONS HELLAS EPE ATHENS 18 914 92 20 183 4 179
CONSORZIO HERMES IN LIQUIDATION MILAN 510 516 - 24 124 118'— 6
CONSORZIO RETI DUEMILA IN LIQUIDATION MILAN 260 255 - 30 " 76 76 " -

* The book value includes the share capital increase payments



Proposal to the Shareholder’ AGM

PROPOSALS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS' ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Dear Shareholders,

We submit for your approval the financial staterseat December 31, 2012 which report a loss of Euro
14,539,016, previously covered by the Extraordirggingreholders’ Meeting of March 27, 2013.

Dear Shareholders,
you are invited to resolve upon the following mette

« The appointment of the Board of Directors, whosendiaée expires with the approval of the 2012
Annual Accounts.

e The appointment of the audit firm for the auditioigthe parent company financial statements and the
auditing of accounts as per Article 24B8-and subsequent (expiring due to completion of rat#)d
for the years 2013-2014-2015.

« The withdrawal of liability actions against the m@mt statutory auditors and/or statutory auditors
departing from office in the three years preceding signing of the Restructuring Agreement and
release from all relative obligations.

You are invited to pass the relative motions.

Settimo Milanese, March 27, 2013

For the Board of Directors

The Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

ITALTEL S.p.A.
Registered Office in Settimo Milanese (MI) — Via Reiss Romoli, Castelletto
Share capital Euro 116,858,248.00 fully paid-in
Tax and Milan Company Registration Office No. 13210460153

BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

ON THE 2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Statutory Auditors of your Company paspared the present report in accordance witkclart
2429, paragraph 2 of the Civil Code. The reporiceons the oversight and control activities caroet during

the financial year by the Board of Statutory Auditan accordance with law, considering also the ridicct

principles for Boards of Statutory Auditors” recomnded by the Italian Accounting Board. The 2012iltes
were as follows:

BALANCE SHEET AMOUNT
Non-current assets € 317,273,794
Current assets € 172,945,423
Total assets € 490,219,217
Shareholders’ equity € (52,306,783)
Non-current liabilities € 71,36283
Current liabilities € 471,156,672
Total liabilities € 542,526,000
Memorandum accounts € 0

The income statement may be summarised as follows:

INCOME STATEMENT AMOUNT
Operating loss € (6,228,925)
Financial income and charges € (14,770,415)
Investments income and charges € 673,945)
Income taxes € 7,134,269
Loss for the year € (14,539,016)

In particular, the Board supervised compliance Wath and the memorandum of association, in addtiothe
principles of correct administration.

The Board also supervised, with regard to thatiwitts remit and on the basis of company documethts,
information received from the Independent Auditnfriand from the relevant departments, the adequityeo
organisational structure, of the internal contydtem and of the accounting system, in additiotinéoreliability

of this latter to correctly represent operating rése For these purposes, the Board held meetingis wi
department managers and obtained necessary informabordinating itself with the activities cadi®ut by
the Independent Audit Firm, with whom a number efetings were held.
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In particular, the Board:

 participated at meetings of the Board of Directamsl also obtained from Directors, on a periodidsyas
information on the activities carried out and om thperations of greatest economic, financial and
balance sheet impact of the company and its sar@d| ensuring that the operations approved and
implemented by the company and by the Directorseviercompliance with law and the by-laws and
were within the scope of powers conferred and didimvolve conflicts of interest;

» periodically assessed the state of receivablesrant®vel and reasons for overdue receivables;

 verified, based on the information received frone tlelevant departments, that the inter-company
operations and those with related parties weréethaut at normal market conditions;

« verified, through periodic meetings with the int@roontrol department manager and with the managers
of the other relevant departments, the adequacyhef organisational structure and its correct
functioning, particularly in relation to the oveght of internal control;

« assessed the dispute in course;
» supervised in particular the development of the mamy’s financial situation.

Overall, the Board of Statutory Auditors, withinetlextent of its remit, expresses a positive opirsonthe
corporate governance and organisational structutfeeccompany, in addition to its correct functiogi

During the supervisory activities described abawesignificant facts emerged which require specifention in
the present report or warrant attention.

We are assured from the information provided byltitependent Audit Firm PricewaterhouseCoopersAS.p.
during the year of the correct maintenance of ttemanting records and of the recording of operatingnts in
the year, in addition to the correspondence offifencial statements with the accounting recordd toeir
conformity with law and correct accounting prineigl

The Board highlights that in the meetings with théependent Audit Firm the content of the periodiports
was evaluated and various issues concerning thatisih of the company and the recognition to tiaricial
statements of specific accounts were discussed.

The assets recognised in the financial statemeets walued prudently, under the going concern fpieand

in compliance with the accruals principle.

In particular, the value of goodwill correspondstiie result of the impairment test carried out bhyeaternal
company on the preparation of the Plan.

In relation to events subsequent to year-end, thardd notes that, under the measures for the cafitahcial
and industrial rescue of the Company establisheth®yDebt Restructuring Agreement as per Articlg-bi of
the Bankruptcy Law signed on December 11, 2012rcmeyel by the Milan Court on February 26, 2013 aledi f

at the Milan Company Registration Office on Margi2013 (measures described at page 30 and subserfuen
the Directors’ Report), the Extraordinary Sharebosd Meeting of ITALTEL S.p.A., held on March 27023,
approved the recapitalisation of the Company foroEw53,035,272 through the issue of equity financia
instruments as per Article 2346, sixth paragraphthef Civil Code — principally undertaken througte th
conversion of receivables of a similar amounttherefore re-establishing the shareholders’ gqaft the
Company, also in accordance with Article 2447 ef @ivil Code, to an amount of Euro 100,728,488.

The Board notes the positive conclusion of theoacthn shareholders’ equity taken by the Company, as
established by the above-stated Restructuring Ageee and invites the Directors to closely monitoe plan
and the subsequent phases in line with the indidatee periods and methods.

*kk

Dear Shareholders,

The 2012 financial statements submitted for youarapal report a loss of Euro
14,539,016.

The Board does not note any reasons against iteegp

Milan, April 3, 2013
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The Board of Statutory Auditors
Marco Tani
Marco Baccani

Carlo Delladio

[94]



Independent
Auditors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

i

pwe

AUDITORS’ REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 14 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE
N° 39 OF 27 JANUARY 2010

To the shareholder of
ITALTEL SpA

1 We have audited the financial statements of Italtel SpA as of 31 December 2012 which
comprise balance sheet, income statement, comprehensive income statement, statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity, cash flow statement and related notes. The Directors of Italtel
SpA are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in compliance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards issued by the Italian
Accounting Profession (Consiglio Nazionale dei Dottori Commercialisti e degli Esperti
Contabili) and recommended by Consob, the Italian Commission for listed Companies and the
Stock Exchange. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain the
necessary assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement
and, taken as a whole, are presented fairly. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the
Directors. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

For the opinion on the financial statements of the prior period, which are presented for
comparative purposes as required by law, reference is made to our report dated 21 December
2012.

3 In our opinion, the financial statements of Italtel SpA as of 31 December 2012 comply with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ; accordingly,
they have been prepared clearly and give a true and fair view of the financial position, result of
operations and cash flows of Italtel SpA for the period then ended.

4 The Directors of Italtel SpA are responsible for the preparation of the Directors’ report in
compliance with the applicable laws. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
consistency of the Directors’ report with the financial statements, as required by law. For this
purpose, we have performed the procedures required under Italian Auditing Standard n° oo1
issued by Consiglio Nazionale dei Dottori Commercialisti e degli Esperti Contabili and
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recommended by Consob. In our opinion, the Directors’ report is consistent with the financial
statements of Ttaltel SpA as of 31 December 2012.

Milan, 12 April 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA
Signed by

Marilena Cederna
(Partner)

This report has been translated into the English language from the original, which was issued in
Italian, solely for the convenience of international readers.
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